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NEWS RELEASE
FOR IMMEDIATE RELEASE

SHININGBANK ENERGY ANNOUNCES FEBRUARY 2005
MONTHLY DISTRIBUTION

Shiningbank Energy Income Fund today announced that its cash distribution for February
will be $0.23 PER UNIT. This distribution is consistent with the monthly distribution
paid to unitholders since June 2003.

The distribution is payable on February 15, 2005 to unitholders of record on
January 31, 2005. The ex-distribution date is January 27, 2005

Shiningbank Energy Income Fund is a conventional oil and gas royalty trust listed on the
Toronto Stock Exchange under the symbol SHN.UN.

For further information please contact;

David M. Fitzpatrick, President and C.E.O.

Bruce K. Gibson, Vice President, Finance and C.F.O.
Debbie Carver, Investor Relations

Shiningbank Energy Ltd.

Telephone:  (403) 268-7477

Facsimile: (403) 268-7499

Toll Free: (866) 268-7477

Email: irinfo@shiningbank.com

Website: www.shiningbank.com
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NEWS RELEASE
FOR IMMEDIATE RELEASE

SHININGBANK ENERGY ANNOUNCES MARCH 2005
MONTHLY DISTRIBUTION

Shiningbank Energy Income Fund today announced that its cash distribution for March
2005 will be $0.23 PER UNIT. This distribution is consistent with the monthly
distribution paid to unitholders since June 2003.

The distribution is payable on March 15, 2005 to unitholders of record on February
28, 2005. The ex-distribution date is February 24, 2005.

Shiningbank Energy Income Fund is a conventional oil and gas royalty trust listed on the
Toronto Stock Exchange under the symbol SHN.UN.

For further information please contact:

David M. Fitzpatrick, President and C.E.O.

Bruce K. Gibson, Vice President, Finance and C.F.O.
Debbie Carver, Investor Relations

Shiningbank Energy Ltd.

Telephone:  (403) 268-7477

Facsimile:  (403) 268-7499

Toll Free: (866) 268-7477

Email: irinfo@shiningbank.com

Website: www.shiningbank.com
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NEWS RELEASE
FOR IMMEDIATE RELEASE

SHININGBANK ENERGY ANNOUNCES 2004 CANADIAN
INCOME TAX INFORMATION

Shiningbank Energy Income Fund (the “Fund”) today announced that distributions to
unitholders in 2004 were 73.57% taxable and 26.43% tax deferred. A total of $2.76 per
unit was distributed from January to December of 2004.

Unitholders holding their investment in a Registered Retirement Savings Plan (RRSP),
Registered Retirement Income Fund (RRIF) or Deferred Profit Sharing Plan should not
report any distribution income on their 2004 income tax return.

Unitholders holding their units outside such plans will receive a “T3 Supplementary” slip
from the Fund’s Trustee, Computershare Trust Company of Canada, if their units are held
in registered form, or from their broker if the units are held in a brokerage account. The
deadline for mailing all T3 Supplementary slips to unitholders is March 31, 2005.

The taxable portion of distributions received should be recorded as “Other Income™ on the
2004 income tax return in accordance with the following table. Amounts received, which
were not considered taxable are not reported on the T3 and are used to adjust the cost base

(ACB) of the units for calculating capital gains or losses upon disposition of the units.

Distribution Taxable Income ACB Reduction
Record Date Payment Date (8 per unit) (8 per unit) ($ per unit)
December 31, 2003 January 15, 2004 $0.23 $0.1692 $0.0608
January 31, 2004 February 15, 2004 $0.23 $0.1692 $0.0608
February 28, 2004 March 15, 2004 $0.23 $0.1692 $0.0608
March 31, 2004 April 15, 2004 $0.23 $0.1692 $0.0608
April 30, 2004 May 15, 2004 $0.23 $0.1692 $0.0608
May 31, 2004 June 15, 2004 $0.23 $0.1692 $0.0608
June 30, 2004 July 15, 2004 $0.23 $0.1692 $0.0608
July 31, 2004 August 15, 2004 $0.23 $0.1692 $0.0608
August 31, 2004 September 15, 2004 $0.23 $0.1692 $0.0608
September 30, 2004 October 15, 2004 $0.23 $0.1692 $0.0608
October 31, 2004 November 15, 2004 $0.23 $0.1692 $0.0608
November 30, 2004  December 15, 2004 $0.23 $0.1692 $0.0608
Totals 2004 $2.76 $2.0304 $0.7296
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Shiningbank Energy Income Fund is a conventional oil and gas royalty trust and its units
are listed on The Toronto Stock Exchange under the symbol "SHN.UN”.

For further information please contact:

David M. Fitzpatrick, President and C.E.O.

Bruce K. Gibson, Vice President, Finance and C.F.O.
Debbie Carver, Investor Relations

Shiningbank Energy Ltd.

Telephone:  (403) 268-7477

Facsimile: (403) 268-7499

Toll Free: (B66) 268-7477

Email: irinfo@shiningbank.com

Website: www shiningbank.com
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Alberta Securities Commission

British Columbia Securities Commission
The Manitoba Securities Commission

Office of the Administrator, New Brunswick
Securities Commission of Newfoundland
Nova Scotia Securities Commission

Ontario Securities Commission

Registrar of Securities, Prince Edward Island
L'Autorité des marchés financiers
Saskatchewan Financial Services Commission
Toronto Stock Exchange

Computershare

Computershare Trust Company of Canada
530 - 8th Ave SW, Suite 600

Calgary, Alberta

T2P 338

Telephone: (403) 267-6800

Facsimile: (403) 267-6529
www.computershare.com

A4

Canada
Australia
Channel Islands
Hong Kong
Germany
Ireland

New Zealand
Phillippines
South Africa
United Kingdom
USA

Dear Sirs:

Subject: Shiningbank Energy Income Fund

We advise the following with respect to the upcoming Meeting of Trust Unitholders for the subject Income
Fund:

1. Meeting Type : Annual General & Special Meeting
2. Security Description of Voting Issue : Trust Units

3. CUSIP Number : 824 916 100

4, ISIN Number : CA 8249161008

5. Record Date : March 21, 2005

6. Meeting Date : May 10, 2005

7. Meeting Location : Calgary, AB

Yours truly,

COMPUTERSHARE TRUST COMPANY OF CANADA

“signed by”

Jodie Hansen
Assistant Corporate Trust Officer
Direct Dial No. (403) 267-6889
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NEWSfRELEASE* NI
FOR IMMEDIATE RELEASE

SHININGBANK ENERGY ANNOUNCES 2004 INCOME TAX INFORMATION
FOR U.S. INVESTORS

Shiningbank Energy Income Fund (the “Fund”) today announced that its distributions to U.S.
investors in 2004 were 82.39% taxable as “qualified dividends” and 17.61% tax deferred.
The Fund calculated earnings and profits under U.S. tax principles in order to provide this
information to investors.

U.S. investors holding their investment in a Qualified Retirement Plan should not report any
income related to distributions received on their 2004 tax return. U.S. investors holding units
outside a Qualified Retirement Plan should report the taxable portion as “qualified dividend
income”. Amounts which are not considered taxable reduce the cost base of the units for
calculating capital gains or losses upon disposition of the units.

After consulting with its tax advisors, and according to IRS notices 2003-71 and 2004-79, the
Fund is of the opinion that the 2004 distributions paid to U.S. residents are to be treated as
"qualified dividends”. Under the Jobs and Growth Tax Relief Reconciliation Act of 2003
“qualified dividends” are subject to a maximum tax rate of 15%.

According to IRS statements a trust does not need to be recognized in certain databases
established on behalf of U.S brokers for the trust to be recognized as a “qualified foreign
corporation”. Canadian trusts that are not SEC filers cannot satisfy the safe harbours necessary to
be included in such databases but may very well be qualified corporations. Firms subscribing to
such databases are advised that status as a “qualified foreign corporation” is to be based solely on
the IRS’s procedures.

As non-residents of Canada, U.S. investors in the Fund are subject to a 15% Canadian
withholding tax on the total distribution. This is a non refundable tax and in most cases the
amount withheld can be treated as a foreign tax credit for U.S. tax purposes. Registered non-
resident unitholders will receive a Form NR4 from the Fund’s transfer agent, Computershare
Trust Company of Canada, stating the amount of foreign tax withheld. Non-registered unitholders
will receive the information through their broker.

The Fund is not required to file Form 1099s, and is providing this information in lieu of such
requirement. Brokers, acting as intermediaries for investors, may be required to provide Form
1099s for their clients but these may not accurately reflect the information presented here. Form
1099 reporting does not control how the taxpayer is entitled to report distributions. Investors
should consult with their brokers and tax advisors to ensure that the information presented in this
news release is accurately reflected in their 1099s and tax returns.

This information is not exhaustive of all possible U.S. income tax considerations, and is
provided as a general guideline only. Unitholders of the Fund should consult their own
legal and tax advisors regarding their individual tax consequences.
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Shiningbank Energy Income Fund is a conventional oil and gas royalty trust and its umt</ are
listed on The Toronto Stock Exchange under the symbol "SHN.UN". |

David M. Fitzpatrick, President and C.E.O.

Bruce K. Gibson, Vice President, Finance and C.F.O.
Debbie Carver, Investor Relations

Shiningbank Energy Ltd. ‘
Telephone:  (403) 268-7477 |
Facsimile:  (403) 268-7499 |
Toll Free: (866) 268-7477 i
Email: irinfo@shiningbank.com :
Website: www.shiningbank.com

For further information please contact: ;
|
|
!
|
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NEWS RELEASE - FOR IMMEDIATE RELEASE

SHININGBANK ENERGY ANNOUNCES 2004 RESERVE INFORMATION

Shiningbank Energy Income Fund (the “Fund” or “Shiningbank”), today announced the results
of its December 31, 2004 independent reserves evaluation. Parts of the evaluation were
conducted by each of Paddock Lindstrom & Associates Ltd. (“PLA”) and Sproule Associates
Limited (“Sproule™) effective December 31, 2004 and prepared in accordance with National
Instrument 51-101. The following information aggregates the results of the two reports.

2004 HIGHLIGHTS

> Increased proved plus probable reserves by 22% and proved reserves by 15% through
acquisition and development in 2004,

» Proved producing reserves constitute 84% of total proved reserves and total proved
reserves equate to 68% of total proved plus probable reserves;

» Shiningbank replaced 277% of 2004 production with new reserves acquired or developed
in the year, bringing cumulative replacement to 276% of production over the life of the
Fund;

» On the basis of proved plus probable reserves:

>

New reserves were acquired at an average cost of $12.90 per barrel of oil equivalent
(“boe”) including future development costs (“FDCs”) and $11.16 per boe excluding
FDCs;

Three year acquisition costs averaged $11.98 per boe including FDCs and $10.66 per
boe excluding FDCs;

Development costs for the year aggregated $11.79 per boe including technical
revisions and changes in FDCs and $9.80 per boe excluding revisions and FDCs;

Total acquisition and development costs, including revisions and the change in FDCs

and technical revisions, aggregated $12.70 per boe, $10.81 per boe without revisions
and FDCs;

The recycle ratio for 2004, based on an operating netback of $25.96 per boe, was 2.0
to 1, indicating extremely cost effective reserve additions.

The Fund’s reserve life index (“RLI”) stands at 9.8 years based on estimated 2005
production. Shiningbank’s RLI has fluctuated between 9.6 and 10.4 years over the
past five years.

The following tables summarize the independent reserve estimates and value at December 31,

2004:



Summary of Oil and Gas Reserves - Forecast Prices and Costs

Reserves (Company Interest)

2004 2003
il Natural Gas NGL Oil Equivalent  Qil Equivalent
(mbbi) (mmcf) (mbbl) {mboe) {mboe)

Proved

Developed Producing 4,791.6 173,242.7 5,979.9 39,645.3 35,852.1
Developed Non-Producing 28.5 17,025.5 424.5 3,291.6 2,846.1
Undeveloped 159.8 19,459.3 1,069.0 4,472.0 2,353.4
Total Proved 4,980.9 209,7275 7,4734 47,408.9 41,051.6
Probable 2,658.4 97,880.7 3,771.2 22,643.1 16,343.6
Total Proved plus Probable 7,539.3 307,608.2 11,2446 70,052.0 57,395.2
Value of Reserves using Forecast Prices and Costs

Discount factor

{000s) 0% 5% 10% 12% 15%
Present value of reserves

Proved Developed Producing $ 864,857 $ 689,424 $ 584,968 $ 553,666 $ 514,101
Proved Developed Non-Producing 68,892 51,863 41,798 38,828 35,116
Proved Undeveloped 81,373 59,707 45,987 41,840 36,615
Total Proved 1,015,122 800,994 672,753 634,334 585,832
Probable 464,884 273,833 188,585 166,835 141,620
Total Proved plus Probable $1,480,006 $1,074827 $ 861,338 $ 801,169 § 727,452
Reserves Reconciliation

Reserves (Company Interest)
2004
Qil Natural Gas NGL Qil Equivalent
(mbbl) {mmcf) {mbbl) (mboe)

Total Proved

December 31, 2003 4,572.8 182,862.3 6,001.7 41,051.6

Acquisitions 1,434.2 41,014.7 1,891.9 10,161.9

Dispositions (86.5) (536.7) (15.6) (191.8)

Extensions 0.0 2,196.9 121.8 488.0

Discoveries 37.5 15,893.2 701.4 3,387.8

Technical revisions and economic factors (105.6) (20.7) (84.0) (193.1)

Production _(871.5)  (31,682.2) (1,143.8) (7,295.7)

December 31, 2004 4,880.9 209,727.5 7,473.4 47,408.9
Total Proved plus Probable

December 31, 2003 6,786.6 252,953.5 8,449.7 57,395.2

Acquisitions 2,216.3 67,384.7 3,117.3 16,564.4

Dispositions (149.8) (626.1) (15.6) (269.8)

Extensions 0.0 2976.7 160.2 656.4

Discoveries 50.4 23,589.6 1,108.2 5,090.2

Technical revisions and economic factors (492.7) (6,988.0) (431.4) (2,088.7)

Production - (871.5)  (31,682.2)  (1,143.8) (7,295.7)

December 31, 2004 7,539.3 307,608.2 11,244.6 70,052.0




Notes to tables:

1.

Barrel of oil equivalent (boe) volumes are reported at 6:1 with 6 mcf = 1 bbl. The 6:1 conversion
ratio is based on an energy equivalency conversion method primarily applicable at the burner tip
and does not represent a value equivalency at the wellhead. While it is useful for comparative
measures, it may not accurately reflect individual product values and may be misleading if used in
isolation.

Company interest includes working interest plus royalty interests attributable to the Fund.

The present value of reserves is net of estimated future capital expenditures, royalty burdens,
operating costs and abandonment costs, but prior to any provision for general and administrative
expenses. It should not be assumed that present value is representative of the fair market value
of the assets. Present value is based on Sproule's escalated price forecast as of January 1,
2005, which assumes a base 2005 oil price of US$44.29/bbl and an Alberta natural gas reference
price of C$6.76/mcf.

Shiningbank Energy Income Fund is a conventional oil and gas royalty trust and its units are
listed on The Toronto Stock Exchange under the symbol “SHN.UN”.

For further information contact:

David M. Fitzpatrick, President and C.E.O.

Bruce K. Gibson, Vice President, Finance and C.F.O.
Debbie Carver, Investor Relations

Shiningbank Energy Ltd.

Telephone: (403) 268-7477

Facsimile: (403) 268-7499

Toll Free: (866) 268-7477

Email:

irinfo@shiningbank.com

Website: www.shiningbank.com
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NEWS RELEASE - FOR IMMEDIATE RELEASE
SHININGBANK ENERGY ANNOUNCES 2004 FINANCIAL RESULTS

Shiningbank Energy Income Fund (the “Fund” or “Shiningbank™), today announced its audited
financial results for the year ended December 31, 2004.

2004 HIGHLIGHTS

>

Production volumes increased by 19% over 2003 to average 19,933 boe/d of which 72%
was natural gas.

Production increases were mainly due to the acquisition of Birchill Resources Limited in
early 2004 and the subsequent development drilling.

Revenues increased by 24% in 2004 to $307.5 million, as a result of higher production
volumes and commodity prices.

Net earnings before income tax increased by 3% to $52.6 million from $51.2 million in
2003.

Net earnings after income tax increased by 117% to $138.8 million from $64.0 million
due to a $74.8 million one-time recovery of future income taxes related to a corporate
restructuring completed in the fourth quarter. This had no effect on cash flow or
distributions.

Cash flow before change in non-cash working capital increased 29% in 2004 to $174.9
million, up from $136.0 million in 2003.

Fourth quarter distributions totaling $37.4 million resulted in a payout ratio of 79% in the
quarter and 84% for the year.

The combination of strong commodity prices and level operating expenses, 1% higher
than in 2003, resulted in record operating netbacks of $25.96 per boe.

The Fund’s balance sheet ended the year in very healthy condition with a debt to annual
cash flow ratio of 1 to 1.

Investors’ pre-tax total return for 2004 amounted to 30%, comprised of a 15% cash-
on-cash distribution yield and a 15% increase in unit price.
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Shiningbank Energy Income Fund - 2004 Financial and Operating Highlights

Three months ended December 31, Year ended December 31,
2004 2003 % 2004 2003 %

FINANCIAL
($ thousands except per Trust Unit amounts)
Qil and natural gas sales? $ 82,453 $ 58,474 41 $ 307,514 $ 247,207 24
Net earnings before income tax 13,974 6,092 129 52,607 51,232 3
Future income tax (recovery) (74,064) 738 (10,136) (86,199) (12,722) 578
Net earnings after income tax 88,038 5,354 1,544 138,806 63,954 117
Cash flow before change in

non-cash working capital 47,220 30,082 57 174,878 136,038 29
Distributions to unithclders 37,390 30,629 22 146,360 122,287 20
Distributions per Trust Unit 0.69 : 0.69 - 2.76 2.85 (3)
Long term debt 182,147 121,691 : 50 182,147 121,691 50
Unitholders' equity 515,944 364,215 42 515,944 364,215 42
OPERATIONS
Daily Production

Qil (bbl/d}) 2,502 2,018 24 2,381 2,023 18

Natural gas (mmcf/d) 90.4 76.6 18 86.6 74.9 16

Natural gas liquids (bbl/d) 3,258 2,530 29 3,125 2,252 38

Oil equivalent (boe/d) 20,833 17,311 20 19,933 16,759 18
Average Prices (including hedging)?

Oil ($/bblh) $ 4261 $ 3362 27 $ 4314 $ 3795 14

Natural gas ($/mcf) $ 720 % 6.32 14 $ 7.06 $ 7.00 1

Natural gas liquids ($/bbl) $ 4370 § 3293 33 $ 4024 $§ 3365 20

Oil equivalent ($/boe) $ 4323 $ 36.71 18 $ 4214 $ 4042 4
UNIT TRADING
Units traded (thousands) 12,715 9,073 40 44,001 37,262 18
Value traded ($ thousands) $ 277,894 $ 153,851 81 $ 865,687 $ 612,995 41
Unit price

High $ 2398 $ 1899 $ 2398 $ 18.99

Low $ 20.01 $ 15.05 $ 16.51 $ 14.80

Close $ 2149 $ 1864 $ 2149 $ 18.64
Units outstanding {thousands) 54,141 44,343 54,141 44,343

' 2003 figures restated as per note 3 to the consolidated financial statements.

2 Oil & natural gas sales and average prices are stated before transportation costs.

The following discussion and analysis of the operating and financial results of Shiningbank is for the three months
and year ended December 31, 2004. This information is provided as of March 1, 2005. The fourth quarter and year-
end results have been compared with the corresponding periods in 2003, Certain comparative figures have been
restated to reflect the accounting changes described in Note 3 to the consolidated financial statements. Average
prices have been restated to be prior to transportation costs in order to be consistent with the 2004 presentation. This
discussion and analysis should be read in conjunction with the Fund’s audited consolidated financial statements for
the years ended December 31, 2004 and 2003, together with the accompanying notes included herein. Additional
information about the Fund is available on SEDAR at www.sedar.com.

4
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Barrel of oil equivalent (boe) volumes are reported at 6:1 with 6 mcf = 1 bbl. All figures are in Canadian dollars
unless otherwise noted.

Results of Operations
PRODUCTION VOLUMES

Daily Production Volumes

Three months ended December 31, Year ended December 31,
2004 2003 % 2004 2003 %
Qil (bbl/d) 2,502 2,018 24 2,381 2,023 18
Natural gas (mmcf/d) 90.4 76.6 18 86.6 74.9 16
Natural gas liquids (bbl/d}) 3,259 2,530 29 3,125 2,252 39
Qil equivalent (boe/d) 20,833 17,311 20 19,933 16,759 19
Natural gas % of production 72% 74% (2) 72% 74% (2)

Fourth quarter daily average production grew 20% over fourth quarter 2003, and 19% year over year. Natural gas
liguids (“NGL”) accounted for the majority of the volume increases as a result of the acquisition of NGL-rich
properties, notably Ferrier, during the year. The volume growth in 2004 was primarily due to acquisitions, along
with a successful development drilling program.

The most significant acquisitions were the first quarter 2004 purchases of Birchill Resources Limited (“Birchill”) for
$170.1 million and Good Ridge Explorations Ltd. (“Good Ridge™) for $7.0 million. Both acquisitions closed in
early March and, together, added approximately 19% to 2004 production. These acquisitions were partially offset
by the natural declines of producing properties, which are estimated to average 14% per year. Production in 2005 is
expected to average between 19,500 and 20,000 boe/d.

The Fund’s 2004 drilling program added approximately 2,000 boe/d to year-end production rates. Due to wet
weather in the spring and summer of 2004 which restricted field access, the effect of the drilling program was not
fully realized until late in the year, and will carry over to 2005. Production from these new wells will initially
decline faster than the Fund’s average. The impact is expected to be a slight increase in the average decline rate in
2005, as well as a marginal reduction in the Fund’s reserve life index until the wells have stabilized at a level of
long-term deliverability.

PRICING (INCLUDING HEDGING ACTIVITY)

Average Prices - After Hedging

Three months ended December 31, Year ended December 31,
2004 2003 % 2004 2003 %
Average Prices
Oil ($/bbl) $ 42.61 $ 33.62 27 $ 4314 $ 3795 14
Natural gas ($/mcf) $ 7.20 $ 632 14 $ 7.06 $ 7.00 1
Natural gas liquids ($/bbl) $ 43.70 $ 3293 33 $ 40.24 $ 33.865 20
Qil equivalent ($/boe) $ 4323 5 367 18 $ 4214 § 4042 4
Benchmark Prices
WTt (US$/bbl) $ 48.28 $ 31.21 55 $ 41.40 $ 31.04 33
AECO natural gas {Cdn$/mcf) $ 7.08 $ 559 27 $ 6.79 $ 670 1

Natural Gas

Shiningbank’s realized natural gas prices averaged $7.20/mcf for the fourth quarter, 14% higher than for the same
period in 2003. For the full year, the average price was 1% higher than 2003 at $7.06/mcf. Natural gas pricing
remained relatively flat throughout 2004 despite significant increases in oil prices. Hedging decreased the realized
gas price by $0.11/mef for the quarter and $0.07/mef for the year, which compares with a 2003 hedging gain of
$0.35/mcf for the quarter and $0.11/mef for the year.

Gas pricing fundamentals remain strong. The Fund expects prices to weaken late in first quarter 2005 with the end
of winter, a normal seasonal effect. The Fund also expects that there will be significant market volatility in 2005
with benchmark prices averaging in the range of Cdn$6.50 to $7.50/mcf. Shiningbank does not control the prices
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received for its production, but it does mitigate market risk through various methods including hedges and
geographical diversity.

Oil and Natural Gas Liquids

Realized oil prices for the quarter were $42.61/bbl, up 27% from fourth quarter 2003. Hedging reduced the realized
price by $8.36/bbl for the quarter compared with a hedging loss of $1.50/bbl in fourth quarter 2003.

For full-year 2004, Shiningbank’s average oil price rose 14% to $43.14/bbl. Hedging reduced this realized price by
$5.46/bbl as compared to a $1.33/bbl decline in 2003. The benchmark West Texas Intermediate (“WTI”) price
averaged 33% higher than in 2003, however strength in the Canadian dollar partially offset this increase. Oil prices
are expected to remain high in US dollar terms, with many analysts calling for a US$40.00/bbl average price for
2005. Futures prices at the time of writing were over US$50.00/bbl.

NGL prices were also strong, reflecting high oil prices. The average NGL price in the fourth quarter 2004 was 33%
higher than in fourth quarter 2003 at $43.70/bbl, and 20% higher for the full year at an average $40.24/bbl.

Hedging

Shiningbank maintains an active hedging program designed to reduce the variability of cash flow and stabilize
distributions. Under the Fund’s hedging policy, not more than one-half of production volumes of any commodity
can be hedged at any one time. Gains and losses from hedging activities are typically recorded when they are
realized and are included in oil and natural gas sales unless a particular hedge is considered ineffective. During
2004, the Fund hedged an average of 26% of total gas production (25% - 2003) and 39% of total oil production
(37% - 2003). Currently, Shiningbank has the following hedging contracts in place:

Period Commodity Volume Price
April 1, 2004 — March 31, 2005 Gas 5,000 GJ/d $5.91/GJ
November 1, 2004 — March 31, 2005 Gas 5,000 GJ/d $7.50 /GJ floor
$11.00/GJ ceiling
April 1, 2005 — December 31, 2005 Gas 5,000 GJ/d $5.00 /GJ floor
$6.39/GJ ceiling
January 1, 2005 - June 30, 2005 Qil 500 bbl/d US$37.00/bbt floor
) US$50.50/bbl ceiling
February 1, 2005 — December 31, 2005 Oil 500 bbl/d US$40.00/bbl floor
US$55.40/bbi ceiling
April 1, 2005 — October 31, 2005 Gas 5,000 GJ/d $6.70/GJ
REVENUES
Three months ended December 31, Year ended December 31,
% of % of % of % of
_ {000s) 2004 Revenue 2003  Revenue 2004 Revenue 2003 Revenue
Qil $ 11,731 14 § 6,520 11§ 42,352 14 § 29,000 12
Natural gas 60,850 74 42,116 72 226,040 74 188,454 76
Natural gas liquids 13,102 15 7,664 13 46,019 15 27,667 11
Other income (loss) (398) - 49 - 91 - 84 -
Gas hedging {909) (1) 2,402 4 (2,229) (1) 2,980 1
Qil hedging (1,923) (2) (277) - (4,759) (2) (978) -

$ 82,453 100 $ 58474 100  § 307,514 100§ 247,207 100
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The accompanying table demonstrates the net effect of price and volume variances on revenues.

SALES VARIANCE ANALYSIS (INCLUDING HEDGING ACTIVITY)

Three months ended December 31, Year ended December 31,
(000s) 2004/2003 ©_2004/2003
Qil and natural gas liquids
Volume increase $ 3,705 $ 15,880
Price increase 5,298 12,043
Net increase $ 9,003 $ 27,923
Natural gas
Volume increase $ 8,057 $ 30,388
Price increase 7,366 1,989
Net increase $ 15423 $ 32,377
ROYALTIES
Three months ended December 31, Year ended December 31,
2004 2003 % 2004 2003 %
Total royalties, net (000s) $ 19,159 $ 12,794 50 $ 63,930 $ 53,628 19
As a % of revenue 23.2% 21.9% 6 20.8% 21.7% (4)
Per boe $ 1000 § 8.03 25 $ 876 $ 8.77 -

Royalty expense consists of royalties paid to provincial governments, freehold landowners and overriding royalty
owners. The royalty rate was marginally lower in 2004 due to a one-time credit received in the third quarter of 2004
related to 2003 Crown royalties, offset in part by the high commodity price environment. The fourth quarter royalty
rate was 6% higher due to the hedging loss experienced in 2004 as compared to a hedging gain in 2003. Hedging
gains and losses affect revenue without a corresponding effect on royalties. The 2004 fourth quarter pre-hedging
royalty rate was 22.4% which is comparable to the 2003 rate of 22.7% for the same period. The Fund expects that
commodity prices in 2005 will be similar to those realized in 2004, resulting in little change to the 2005 royalty rate.
The Alberta government provides a credit under the Alberta Royalty Credit program, which the Fund is eligible to
access on a small portion of its properties. The Fund recorded the maximum credit of $500,000 in both 2004 and
2003.

TRANSPORTATION COSTS
Three months ended December 31, Year ended December 31,
2004 2003 % 2004 2003 %
Transportation costs (000s) $ 1,186 3 1,293 8) $ 5550 $ 5050 10
Per boe $ 062 % 0.81 (23) $ 076 $ 0.83 (8)

Transportation costs decreased 23% on a boe basis from fourth quarter 2003. The decrease was the result of prior
quarter adjustments flowing through the fourth quarter. The 8% year over year decrease was the result of lower
pricing and termination of certain transportation service commitments. In 2005, transportation costs are expected to
be flat on a boe basis with 2004.

OPERATING COSTS

Three months ended December 31, Year ended December 31,
2004 2003 % 2004 2003 %
Operating costs (000s) $ 11,465 $ 11,058 4 $ 48,692 $ 40,536 20
Per boe $ 598 § 6.94 (14) $ 667 §$ 6.63 1

Operating costs on a boe basis decreased 14% from fourth quarter 2003 and increased 1% year over year. Higher
field and plant maintenance costs in most areas were offset by volume increases in some areas with lower operating
costs. The Fund expects 2005 costs to average $7.00/boe. While the Fund has gained efficiencies of scale in its
operations on a per boe basis, operating costs will remain under pressure due to rising field costs, aging of the
property portfolio and the likelihood of higher energy costs in 2005.
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OPERATING NETBACKS

Natural Gas Wells

Three months ended December 31, Year ended December 31,
($/boe) 2004 2003 % 2004 2003 %
Oil and natural gas sales $ 4447 3 35.36 26 $ 4290 $ 4012 7
Hedging gain (loss) (1.22) 1.50 (181) (0.78) 0.42 (286)
Royatties 10.09 8.07 25 8.83 8.91 (1}
Transportation costs 0.65 0.87 (25) 0.80 0.89 (10)
Operating costs 5.59 6.50 (14) 6.29 6.25
Operating netback $ 2692 § 2142 26 $ 26.20 $ 2449 7

Qil Wells

Three months ended December 31, Year ended December 31,
(3/boe) 2004 2003 % 2004 2003 %
Oil and natural gas sales $ 49.70 $ 3527 41 $ 46.94 $ 3949 19
Hedging gain (loss) (7.54) (0.97) 677 (4.45) (1.00) 345
Royalties 8.07 7.06 14 7.55 6.64 14
Operating costs 14.29 13.50 6 14.15 11.86 18
Operating netback $ 19.80 $ 13.74 44 $ 20.79 $ 19.88 5

All Weils

Three months ended December 31, Year ended December 31,
($/boe) 2004 2003 % 2004 2003 %
Oil and natural gas sales $ 44.71 $ 3635 26 $ 4310 §  40.09 8
Hedging gain (loss) (1.48) 1.33 (211) (0.96) 0.33 (391)
Other income (loss) (0.21) 0.03 (800) 0.01 - -
Royalties 10.00 8.03 25 8.76 8.77 -
Transportation costs 0.62 0.81 (23) 0.76 0.83 (8)
Operating costs 5.98 6.94 (14) 6.67 6.63 1
Operating netback $ 2642 $ 2093 26 $ 2596 $ 24.19 7

Total operating netback increased 26% quarter over quarter due mainly to higher commodity prices and lower
transportation and operating costs. The year over year operating netback increased 7% due to higher cornmodity
prices and lower transportation costs.

GENERAL AND ADMINISTRATIVE COSTS

Three months ended December 31, Year ended December 31,
2004 2003 % 2004 2003 %
General and administrative costs (000s) $ 1686 $§ 1432 18 $ 6,681 $ 4,649 44
Per boe $ 088 $ 090 (2) $ 092 $ 076 21
Per average Trust Unit $ 003 §$ 003 - $ 0143 § 011 18

General and administrative costs per boe decreased 2% from fourth quarter 2003, and increased 21% year over year.
The increases, including higher per average Trust Unit metrics, were due to higher activity levels resulting from
acquisitions and increasing costs for corporate governance due to additional regulation. At year end, Shiningbank
had 43 full-time employees and 24 full-time and part-time consultants at its head office. Field and production staff
consisted of two production superintendents, 18 full-time employees and 38 contract operators. Costs of field and
production staff are included in operating costs. General and administrative costs for 2005 are expected to trend
upward to approximately $1.25/boe as a result of further corporate governance and related administrative costs.
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INTEREST ON LONG TERM DEBT

Three months ended December 31, Year ended December 31,
2004 2003 % 2004 2003 %
Interest on long term debt (000s) $ 1,759 § 1,093 61 $ 6158 $ 6,103 1
Per boe $ 092 $ 069 33 $ 084 $ 1.00 (16)
Per average Trust Unit $ 003 3 002 50 $ 012 $ 015 (20)

Interest expense, which includes bank charges, increased 61% from fourth quarter 2003 due to higher debt levels
resulting from the funding of capital expenditures. Year over year interest expense was relatively flat due to higher
debt levels being offset by lower interest rates. Shiningbank is currently in compliance with all external debt
covenants. Interest expense in 2003 is expected to be approximately $1.25/boe due to higher projected debt levels
and interest rates.

DEPLETION, DEPRECIATION AND ACCRETION

Three months ended December 31, Year ended December 31,
2004 2003 % 2004 2003 %
Depletion, depreciation and accretion (000s) $ 32,035 $ 22865 40 $ 118,547 $ 78,853 50
Per boe $ 1671 § 1436 16 $ 1625 § 12.89 26

Depletion, depreciation and accretion rose 16% per boe for the fourth quarter and 26% year over year. These
increases were primarily due to expansion of the asset base from acquisitions made during the first quarter and
associated future development costs. The fourth quarter depletion calculation was based on December 31, 2004
reserve estimates.

The 2003 comparative figure has been restated and increased by $3.8 million as a result of the adoption of the new
asset retirement obligation standard. The accretion of discount on the asset retirement liability and additional

depletion due to asset retirement costs are now included as part of this expense.

TRUST UNIT INCENTIVE COMPENSATION

Three months ended December 31, Year ended December 31,
2004 2003 % 2004 2003 %
Trust unit incentive compensation (000s) $ 333 $ 147 127 $ 1,263 $ 572 121
Per boe $ 017 $ 0.09 89 $ 017 $ 0.08 89

During fourth quarter 2003, the Fund elected to prospectively adopt amendments to the Canadian Institute of
Chartered Accountants (CICA) Handbook Section 3870, “Stock-based Compensation and Other Stock-based
Payments” for all rights issued on or after January 1, 2003. At that time, a total of $572,000 was expensed for 2003,
representing the fair value of rights issued and which vested in 2003.

During fourth quarter 2004, one new issue of rights was granted. Six new issues of rights, aggregating 580,000 in
total (2003 — 525,000) were granted during the year. The fair value of rights issued was determined using a Black-
Scholes model, and will be brought into income over the vesting period of the rights. Expenses in 2004 of $1.3
million represented the fair value of rights issued during 2003 and 2004 and which vested in 2004. All of these
costs are “non-cash” costs and are not deducted in calculating distributions to unitholders.

INTERNALIZATION OF MANAGEMENT CONTRACT

Three months ended December 31, Year ended December 31,
2004 2003 % 2004 2003 %
Internalization of management contract (000s) $ 1,307 $ 1,561 (18) $ 3511 3 50989 (41)
Per boe $ 068 $ 098 (31) $ 048 $ 098 (51)

Effective October 9, 2002, the Fund internalized its management by acquiring all of the shares of Shiningbank
Energy Management Inc., the former Manager of the Fund. Prior to the acquisition, the Fund paid fees of 3.25% of
net operating income, a fee of 1.5% on the purchase price of acquisitions and a quarterly scheduled dividend in
accordance with the terms of a management agreement. The acquisition eliminated all future fees and dividends.
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Of the total purchase price of $20.6 million, $11.0 million was deferred, representing Exchangeable Shares subject
to escrow provisions which are being amortized into income over specific vesting periods through 2007. During
2004, $2.7 million (2003 - $5.4 million) was expensed, representing the amortization of these escrowed
Exchangeable Shares. At December 31, 2004, $1.9 million was left to be amortized ($1.3 million in 2005, $0.4
million in 2006 and $0.2 million in 2007).

Total consideration for the internalization was reduced by $1.8 million at the time of the transaction to provide for
performance and retention bonuses to be paid to employees. During 2004, the remaining balance of this bonus pool,
or $817,250, was paid out in cash and included in internalization expenses. This compares with $582,000 paid in
2003.

TAXES
Three months ended December 31, Year ended December 31,
2004 2003 % 2004 2003 %
Capital and large corporation taxes (000s) $ (451) $ 139 (424) $ 574 % 595 4
Future income tax (recovery) (000s) $ (74,064) S 738  (10,138) $ (86,199) §$ (12,722) 578
Per boe $ (3888 $ 055 (7,169) § (11.74) $  (1.98) 493

The Fund is obligated to pay provincial capital taxes and federal large corporations tax in its operating entities.
Under the Fund’s structure, payments are made between Shiningbank Energy Ltd. and the Fund. These payments
provide the mechanism for transferring income to unitholders along with tax benefits and future tax liabilities.
Current income taxes are not presently payable by the Fund or Shiningbank Energy Ltd.

In first quarter 2004, the Alberta government passed legislation to reduce the provincial corporate income tax rate to
11.5% from 12.5% effective April 1, 2004. Shiningbank’s expected future income tax rate incorporating this rate
reduction is approximately 38.49% compared with the current rate of approximately 38.62% applicable to the 2004
tax year.

During the fourth quarter, the Fund changed its organizational structure to take advantage of certain tax attributes of
a partnership acquired in the Birchill acquisition. These changes eliminated future income taxes payable within the
Fund on income earned from the Birchill assets by taking advantage of the tax flow-through structure of that
partnership. As a result of the Fund’s restructuring, a reduction in future income taxes was credited to income in the
fourth quarter in accordance with Canadian generally accepted accounting principles (“GAAP”). The effect on
earnings for the year was an additional $78.4 million, or $1.50 per Trust Unit ($1.47 diluted). Net eamings were
also affected through increased depletion charges arising from future income taxes being recorded in the cost of the
assets at the time of the Birchill acquisition. This additional depletion reduced earnings by $8.1 million, or $0.15
per Trust Unit, basic and diluted. The costs of the restructuring were included in general and administrative costs in
the fourth quarter.

NET EARNINGS

Shiningbank’s fourth quarter earnings were $88.0 million or $1.62 per Trust Unit ($1.60 diluted). Earnings in fourth
quarter 2003, after restatement for the retroactive application of new accounting policies, were $5.4 million or $0.12
per Trust Unit, basic and diluted. For the year ended December 31, 2004 net earnings were $138.8 million or $2.66
per Trust Unit ($2.61 diluted), compared with restated 2003 figures of $64.0 million or $1.54 per Trust Unit ($1.51

diluted). Net earnings for the fourth quarter were increased by $78.4 million or $1.44 per Trust Unit ($1.43 diluted)
as a result of an internal restructuring which reduced future income taxes. See “Taxes”.
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DISTRIBUTIONS TO UNITHOLDERS

Distributions to unitholders

Three months ended December 31, Year ended December 31,

(000s except per Trust Unit amounts) 2004 2003 % 2004 2003 %
Cash flow before change in

non-cash working capital $ 47220 $ 30,082 57 $ 174,878 $ 136,038 29
Capital expenditures (13,323) (6,865) 94 (56,339) (22,831) 146
Asset retirement expenditures (208) (57) 265 (684) (218) 214
Working capital adjustments 3,701 7,469 (50) 28,505 9,398 203
Distributions to unitholders $ 37390 $ 30,629 22 $ 146,360 § 122,287 20
Distributions per Trust Unit $ 069 % 0.69 - $ 276 3 2.85 (3)
Trust Units outstanding 54,141 44,343 22 54,141 44,343 22

Distributions to unitholders for the quarter increased 22% over the same period in 2003 to $37.4 million, while
distributions per Trust Unit were consistent in both periods at $0.69. For full-year 2004, distributions to unitholders
increased 20% to $146.4 million from $122.3 million in 2003. The increases in distributions to unitholders for both
periods in 2004 were due to higher production volumes, large gains in pricing for oil and NGL and strong gas prices.
On a per Trust Unit basis, the effect of an increased number of Trust Units outstanding offset the increase in
distributions to unitholders. Full-year distributions decreased 3% to $2.76 in 2004 from $2.85 in 2003 as a result of
greater holdbacks to fund capital expenditures. The Fund paid out 84% of its cash flow in 2004 compared with 90%
in 2003. Management expects that the current distribution level will continue through 2005 provided that
commodity prices remain at or near 2004 levels.

2005 Cash Flow Sensitivities

The estimated sensitivity of cash flow to commodity price variables is shown in the table below.

(000s) Per Trust Unit
US $1 per bbi $ 1,700 $ 0.03
Cdn $0.25 per mcf $ 5900 $ 011
US $0.01 exchange $ 800 $ 0.01
100 bbl/d $ 1,100 $ 0.02
1 mmcf/d $ 1,700 $ 0.03
1% prime rate $ 1,900 $ 0.03

INCOME TAX INFORMATION

In 2004, 73.57% of cash distributions paid by the Fund were required to be included in the income of unitholders.
The remaining 26.43% reduced each unitholder’s adjusted cost base (“ACB”) for income tax purposes. A summary
of cash distributions paid in 2004 and the implications for Canadian taxpayers is shown below.

Distribution® Taxable Income ACB Reduction
Record Date Payment Date ($ per Trust Unit) ($ per Trust Unit) (3 per Trust Unit)
December 31, 2003 January 15, 2004 $ 0.23 $ 0.1692 $ 0.0608
January 31, 2004 February 15, 2004 $ 0.23 $ 0.1692 $ 0.0608
February 29, 2004 March 15, 2004 $ 0.23 $ 0.1692 $ 0.0608
March 31, 2004 April 15, 2004 $ 0.23 $ 0.1692 $ 0.0608
April 30, 2004 May 15, 2004 $ 023 $ 0.1692 $ 0.0608
May 31, 2004 June 15, 2004 $ 0.23 $ 0.1892 $ 0.0608
June 30, 2004 July 15, 2004 $ 0.23 $ 0.1692 $ 0.0608
July 31, 2004 August 15, 2004 $ 023 $ 0.1692 $ 0.0608
August 31, 2004 September 15, 2004 $ 023 $ 0.1692 $ 0.0608
September 30, 2004  October 15, 2004 $ 0.23 $ 0.1692 $ 0.0608
October 31, 2004 November 15, 2004 $ 023 $ 01692 $ 0.0608
November 30, 2004 December 15, 2004 $ 0.23 $ 0.1692 $ 0.0608
Total $ 2.76 $ 2.0304 $ 0.7296

! Distributions for income tax purposes are based on cash received during 2004 rather than accrual-based income reported
elsewhere in this report,
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For US unitholders, 82.39% of distributions were taxable in 2004. Unitholders in both Canada and the U3 should
consult tax advisors as to the proper treatment of Shiningbank distributions for income tax purposes.

ANNUAL FINANCIAL INFORMATION

(000s except per Trust Unit amounts) 2004 2003 2002
Restated (note 3) Restated (note 3)

Qil and natural gas sales $ 307,514 $ 247,207 $ 142,661
Net earnings (loss) before income tax 52,607 51,232 (1,859)
Per Trust Unit — basic 1.01 1.23 (0.06)
Per Trust Unit — diluted 0.99 1.21 (0.06)
Net earnings after income tax 138,806 63,954 12,598
Per Trust Unit — basic 2.66 1.54 0.40
Per Trust Unit - diluted 2.61 1.51 0.40
Total assets 826,797 614,149 507,824
Total long term debt 182,147 121,691 115,283
Property acquisitions 2,615 156,829 49,595
Corporate acquisitions 177,067 - -
Capital expenditures 56,339 22,931 11,867
Cash flow before change in non-cash working capital 174,878 136,038 68,243
Per weighted average Trust Unit 3.35 3.27 215
Distributions to unitholders 146,360 122,287 69,607
Per Trust Unit 2,76 2.85 2.16
Payout ratio 84% 90% 102%
Trust Units outstanding 54,141 44,343 33,194
Weighted average 52,209 41,595 31,877
Dividends to former Manager - - 517

Acquisitions are a key driver of Shiningbank’s growth. In 2003, the Fund completed a major acquisition of
properties at Ferrier/O’Chiese. In 2004, the Fund completed a major corporate acquisition of Birchill and a much
smaller corporate acquisition of Good Ridge. Such acquisitions add to production volumes, revenues, earnings and
assets. Revenues and earnings are also greatly affected by commodity prices, particularly natural gas prices as 72%
of the Fund’s 2004 production was natural gas. With its high weighting to natural gas, the Fund’s revenue and
earnings results closely track changes in natural gas pricing.

In 2003, substantial production growth through acquisitions and a rebound in oil and gas prices boosted revenues
and earnings compared with relatively weak natural gas prices in 2002 which resulted in lower revenues and
earnings. In 2004, the same combination of acquisition-driven production growth and high commodity prices
resulted in higher revenues and cash flow. Earnings increased as a percentage of revenue in 2004 as a result of the
recovery of future income taxes related to the Fund’s internal restructuring.
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QUARTERLY FINANCIAL INFORMATION

(000s except per Trust Unit amounts) March 31 June 30  September 30  December 31
2004

Oil and natural gas sales $ 69,625 $ 80,723 $ 74713 $ 82453

Net earnings before income tax 13,485 12,851 12,297 13,974

Per Trust Unit - basic 0.29 0.24 0.24 0.26

- diluted 0.28 0.24 0.23 0.25

Net earnings after income tax 18,796 16,072 15,900 88,038

Per Trust Unit - basic 0.40 0.30 0.30 1.62

- diluted 0.39 0.29 0.29 1.60

Cash flow before change in non-cash working capital 39,544 45,190 42,924 47,220

Per weighted average Trust Unit 0.84 0.84 0.80 0.87

Distributions to unitholders 34,767 36,977 37,226 37,390

Per Trust Unit 0.69 0.69 0.69 0.69

Payout ratio 88% 82% 87% 79%
2003

Oil and natural gas sales $ 60,180 $ 65,507 $ 63,046 $ 58,474

Net earnings before income tax 16,885 15,027 13,227 6,092

Per Trust Unit - basic 047 0.36 0.30 0.14

- diluted 0.47 0.35 0.29 0.14

Net earnings after income tax 19,499 23,583 15,517 5,354

Per Trust Unit - basic 0.55 0.56 0.35 0.12

- diluted 0.54 0.55 0.35 0.12

Cash flow before change in non-cash working capital 34,176 36,723 35,057 30,082

Per weighted average Trust Unit 0.96 0.87 0.79 0.68

Distributions to unitholders 30,886 30,330 30,442 30,629

Per Trust Unit 0.78 0.69 0.69 0.69

Payout ratio 90% 83% 87% 102%

As with Shiningbank’s annual results, quarterly fluctuations are primarily the result of production increases due to
acquisitions, the Fund’s development drilling program and realized gas prices which can be extremely volatile.
Volume increases from acquisitions occurred in second quarter 2003 through the acquisition of assets at
Ferrier/O’Chiese and again, in second quarter 2004 with the acquisitions of Birchill and Good Ridge.

Natural gas prices remained strong and relatively consistent through the two years, apart from exceptionally strong
prices in first quarter 2003 which led to higher distributions for that period. Oil prices increased substantially in late
2004, however, with oil playing a small role in Shiningbank’s overall revenues, and with increased capital programs
absorbing the extra cash flow, there was no change in distributions.

COSTS OF ACQUISITIONS AND DEVELOPMENT

During the first quarter, Shiningbank spent $177.1 million on the acquisitions of Birchill and Good Ridge. These
acquisitions added approximately 19% to Shiningbank’s production volumes for 2004 with the majority of additions
coming in the Ferrier area, adjacent to Shiningbank’s existing property and using much of the same infrastructure.

A total of $56.3 million was spent on drilling and new facilities during 2004, compared with $22.9 million in 2003.
Cash flow was used to fund $27.8 million of these expenditures, with the balance being funded by debt. The
increased expenditures funded a successful development drilling program concentrated in the Ferrier/O’Chiese area.
Of the year’s total, $13.3 million was spent in the fourth quarter compared with $6.9 million in fourth quarter 2003.
A total of 96 wells (20.3 net) were drilled in 2004, 88 (18.5 net) of which were successful gas wells, four (0.9 net)
were successful oil wells and four (0.9 net) were dry and abandoned. In addition, Shiningbank farmed-out an
additional 30 wells for which no costs were incurred.

In 2005, the Fund plans to spend approximately $50 million on drilling, new facilities and maintenance capital. This
will be funded through a combination of cash flow and debt financing.
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NET ASSET VALUE
: Discount Factor

(000s except per Trust Unit amounts) 10% 12%
Present value of reserves®

Proved $ 672,753 $ 634,333

Probable 188,585 166,835
Undeveloped lands 27,800 27,800
Working capital deficiency (10,015) (10,015)
Total assets 879,123 818,953
Long term debt (182,147) (182,147)
Net asset value $ 696,976 $ 636,806
Trust Units outstanding 54,141 54,141
Net asset value per Trust Unit at December 31, 2004 $ 12.87 $ 11.76

! The present value of reserves is calculated based on price forecasts and reserve estimates prepared by Sproule Associates
Limited in their December 31, 2004 evaluations.

LIQUIDITY AND CAPITAL RESOURCES

Shiningbank’s ability to grow depends on access to bank lines of credit supplemented by periodic equity infusions.
Smaller acquisitions through the course of the year are funded by bank debt. Equity is issued to fund single large
acquisitions, or to pay down debt acquired following a number of smaller acquisitions. When the proceeds of an
equity issue are greater than acquisition costs, the excess is used to reduce bank debt.

Since the Fund’s initial public offering in 1996, 11 public equity issues have been completed. Acquisitions have led
to steady accretion in value to unitholders. This accretion is offset when equity is issued as existing unitholders are
diluted by the issue of new units. However, as all new equity issues have been done in conjunction with an
acquisition, over time, unitholders have not been diluted. This is apparent in the stability of the Net Asset Value
(NAV) per unit of the Fund over time. At the inception of the Fund, the NAV was $9.43 per unit, discounted at
10%. At the end of 2004, despite payment of over $19 per unit in distributions over eight years, the NAV per unit is
at a level of $12.87, discounted at 10%, indicating that unitholders have not been diluted.

Long Term Debt

The Fund has a $225 million revolving credit facility with a syndicate of four Canadian chartered banks of which
$182.1 million was drawn at December 31, 2004. The revolving period extends to April 27, 2005, at which time the
facility reverts to a two-year term with principal payments, if necessary, commencing on July 28, 2005, The facility
is secured by a $300 million floating charge debenture on all assets of Shiningbank together with supporting
debentures and guarantees from the Fund’s operating subsidiaries and affiliates. Borrowings under the facility bear
interest at an annual rate ranging from the banks’ prime rate to the banks’ prime rate plus 0.95%, depending on the
total debt to cash flow ratio or, at Shiningbank’s option, the bankers’ acceptance rate plus a stamping fee.

Unitholders' Equity

On March 8, 2004, the Fund issued 8,800,000 new Trust Units at $17.00 each for gross proceeds of $149.6 million.
In addition, a total of 997,204 Trust Units were issued during the year under the Trust Unit Rights Incentive Plan,
under the Fund’s Distribution Reinvestment Plan, and through the exercise of Exchangeable Shares.

When equity is raised, the intended use of proceeds is specified in the related prospectus. Each major equity issue
has been undertaken to acquire properties or to reduce debt incurred from prior acquisitions. In all cases, the
proceeds were used according to the purpose specified.

As of March 1, 2005, the Fund had 54,280,516 Trust Units, 263,482 non-escrowed Exchangeable Shares and
353,614 escrowed Exchangeable Shares outstanding. Exchangeable Shares held in escrow will be released over the
next three years under the terms of two escrow agreements. Exchangeable Shares are not eligible for distributions
until they are exchanged for Trust Units at the discretion of the holder. The exchange rate was initially one Trust
Unit for each Exchangeable Share. The exchange rate increases with each distribution by an amount equal to the per
unit distribution divided by the 10-day weighted average trading price of the Trust Units preceding the record date
for that distribution. As of December 31, 2004, the exchange rate was 1 to 1.32647,
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Future Growth

Shiningbank’s growth is based on its ability to raise debt and equity capital in Canadian financial markets. The Fund
examines acquisition opportunities and selects those it believes to be accretive for such parameters as cash flows,
distributions, net asset value, production and reserves.

Acquisitions are typically made using the Fund’s credit facilities. Periodically, new Trust Units are issued, and the
proceeds are used to pay down debt accumulated from previous acquisitions.

If the Canadian equity or debt markets were unable to satisfy Shiningbank’s funding needs, it would impair the
Fund’s ability to continue to replace production and maintain distributions. The Fund has lines of credit held by
four Canadian chartered banks, which provide sufficient debt capital to satisfy the Fund’s ability to complete all but
the largest acquisitions. However, the Fund's governing documents restrict debt levels to 40% of the value of its
properties, and debt service costs are not to exceed 30% of the projected annual cash flow.

Contractual Obligations

Payments Due by Period

Less than 1-3 4-5 After
(000s) Total 1 Year Years Years 5 Years
Long term debt principal’ $ 182,147 $ - $ 182,147 $ - $ -
Operating leases 8,071 826 3,003 3,173 1,069
Pipeline transportation 5,234 1,306 2,612 1,316 -
Total obligations $ 195,452 $ 2132 $ 187,762 $ 4,489 $ 1,089

" The long term debt obligation assumes that the revolving credit line is not renewed in April 2005.

Shiningbank has on-going capital commitments in the ordinary course of business for development drilling,
equipment and facilities. These are funded through a combination of cash flow, debt financing and periodic equity
financing.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES

The Fund makes numerous accounting estimates in its financial statements in order to provide timely information to
users. A critical accounting estimate is one that requires management to make assumptions about matters that are
highly uncertain at the time the estimate is made and, if a different estimate was used, financial results would be
materially different. The following estimates are considered critical:

Reserves

The Fund must estimate its reserves. Reserves are evaluated and reported on annually by independent petroleum
reserve evaluators who use various subjective factors and assumptions, including forecasts of costs based on
geological and engineering data, projected future rates of production, and timing and amounts of future development
costs. Although reserves are estimated, management believes the estimates are reasonable based on information
available at the time the estimates were prepared. Management, the Fund’s internal engineers, and the Board’s
Environmental, Corporate Governance and Reserve Review Committee all review and approve the estimates
reported by the independent reserve evaluators.

As new information becomes available, changes are made to the reserve estimates and future development cost
estimates. Historically, the Fund has had no significant changes to these estimates, with the exception of adjusting
reserves for acquisitions and divestitures and the results of new drilling. Future actual results could vary greatly
from the estimates made, resulting in material changes to the depletion calculation and asset impairment test.

Asset Retirement Obligation

The Fund’s estimated asset retirement obligation is based on estimated timing and costs to abandon and restore
properties.
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FINANCIAL REPORTING

During 2003 and 2004, there were numerous changes to financial reporting and regulatory requirements. The most
important changes for Shiningbank are described below.

Asset Retirement Obligations

Effective January 1, 2004, Shiningbank adopted CICA handbook section 3110, “Asset Retirement Obligations.”
The standard requires the recognition and measurement of liabilities related to legal obligations to retire property,
plant and equipment upon acquisition of the liability. The initial liability must be measured at fair value and
subsequently adjusted for the accretion of discount and changes in the fair value. The asset retirement cost is
capitalized and depleted into earnings over time.

Hedging Relationships

Effective January 1, 2004, the Fund adopted Accounting Guideline 13, “Hedging Relationships™ which establishes
standards for the documentation and effectiveness of hedging relationships for the purposes of applying hedge
accounting. The adoption of this standard had no effect on the Fund’s financial results.

Trust Unit Incentive Compensation

In September 2003, the CICA amended section 3870 of its handbook - “Stock-based Compensation and Other
Stock-based Payments.” Effective January 1, 2004, companies are required to use the fair value method to measure
all stock-based payments and recognize compensation expense in their financial statements. The Fund elected to
adopt these amendments in fourth quarter 2003 for all rights issued on or after January 1, 2003.

Previously the Fund followed common practice in the sector and used the excess of the unit price over the exercise
price at the date of the financial statement as a surrogate for fair value. If the Fund were to continue to use this
method under the amended standard, the Fund could experience large fluctuations, even recoveries, in compensation
expense over the next 10 years. Because of the highly volatile nature of distributions and unit trading prices,
management believes amounts expensed and/or recovered under this calculation do not properly represent the
benefit conveyed to rights holders during the vesting period, and could be confusing when reading the financial
statements.

Management considered numerous methods of determining the fair value of rights granted and has chosen to use a
Black-Scholes option-pricing model to determine fair value. The calculation of fair value requires management to
make numerous assumptions, as outlined in note 7 to the financial statements.  Readers are cautioned that the
assumptions made are estimates of future events and actual results could differ materially from those estimated.

Supplemental Disclosure

Management believes that distributions to unitholders, cash flow and netbacks are useful supplemental measures.
Distributions to unitholders should not be construed as an alternate to net income as determined by Canadian GAAP.
All references to cash flow throughout this MD&A are based on cash flow before changes in non-cash working
capital, which management uses to analyze operating performance and leverage. Cash flow as presented is not
intended to represent operating cash flow or operating profits, nor should it be viewed as an alternative to cash flow
from operating activities, net earnings or other measures of financial performance calculated in accordance with
Canadian GAAP. Operating netbacks, which are calculated as average unit sales price less royalties, transportation
costs and operating costs, represent the cash margin for product sold, calculated on a boe basis. Distributions to
unitholders, cash flow and netbacks as presented do not have any standardized meanings prescribed by Canadian
GAAP and therefore may not be comparable with the calculations of similar measure for other entities.

Forward-looking statements

This MD&A contains forward-looking statements relating to future events. In some cases, forward-looking
statements can be identified by such words as “may,” “expects” or similar expressions. These statements represent
management’s best projections, but undue reliance should not be placed upon them as they are derived from
numerous assumptions. These assumptions are subject to known and unknown risks and uncertainties, including the
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business risks discussed in this MD&A and in the AIF, which may cause actual performance and financial results to
differ materially from any projections of future performance or results expressed or implied by such forward-looking

statements. Accordingly, readers are cautioned that events or circumstances could cause results to differ materially
from those predicted.

Barrel of oil equivalent

Barrel of oil equivalent (boe) volumes are reported at 6:1 with 6 mcf=1 bbl. The 6:1 boe conversion ratio is based
on an energy equivalency conversion method primarily applicable at the bumer tip and does not represent a value
equivalency at the wellhead. While it is useful for comparative measures, it may not accurately reflect individual
product values and may be misleading if used in isolation.
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Consolidated Balance Sheets

December 31 ($ thousands)

2004 2003
Restated (note 3)
ASSETS
Current assets
Accounts receivable $ 50,712 $ 31,587
Prepaid expenses 4,471 2,630
55,183 34,217
Fixed assets (note 4)
Petroleum and natural gas properties and equipment 1,133,426 826,352
Accumulated depletion and depreciation (364,814) (248,670)
768,612 577,682
QOther assets 3,002 2,250
§ 826,797 $ 614,149
LIABILITIES AND UNITHOLDERS' EQUITY
Current liabilities
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities $ 40,268 $ 30,727
Trust Unit distributions payable 24,930 20,428
65,198 51,155
Long term debt (note 5) 182,147 121,691
Future income taxes (note 6) 33,266 50,564
Asset retirement obligation {note 3) 30,242 26,524
Unitholders' equity
Trust Units (note 7) 706,954 550,267
Exchangeable Shares (note 7) 7,019 5,267
Contributed surplus (note 7) 1,416 572
Accumulated earnings 308,517 169,711
Accumulated Trust Unit distributions (507,962) (361,602)
515,944 364,215
$ 826,797 $ 614,149

See accompanying notes to the consolidated financial statements
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Consolidated Statements of Earnings and Unitholders' Equity
Year ended December 31 (8 thousands, except per Trust Unit amounts)
2004 2003
Restated (note 3)
Revenues
Oil and natural gas sales $ 307514 $ 247207
Rovalties 63,930 53,628
243,584 193,579
Expenses
Transportation 5,550 5,050
Operating 48,692 40,536
General and administrative 6,681 4,649
Interest on long term debt 6,159 6,103
Depletion, depreciation and accretion 118,547 78,853
Trust Unit incentive compensation (rote 7) 1,263 572
Internalization of management contract (note 10) 3,511 5,989
190,403 141,752
Earnings before taxes 53,181 51,827
Capital and large corporation taxes (note 6) 574 593
Future income tax recovery (note 6) (86,199) (12,722)
Net earnings $ 138,806 $ 63954
Unitholders' equity, beginning of year 364,215 264,887
Issue of Trust Units 156,687 158,297
Change in Exchangeable Shares, net (note 7) 1,752 (1,208)
Change in contributed surplus (note 7) 844 572
Distributions to Unitholders (146,360) (122,287)
Unitholders' equity, end of year $ 515944 $ 364,215
Net earnings per Trust Unit (note 7)
Basic $ 2.66 3 1.54
Diluted 3 2.61 3 1.51

See accompanying notes to the consolidated financial statements
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Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows

Years ended December 31 (§ thousands)

2004 2003
Restated (note 3)
Operating activities
Net earnings $ 138,806 $ 63,954
Items not requiring cash
Depletion, depreciation and accretion 118,547 78,853
Internalization of management contract 2,693 5,381
Trust Unit incentive compensation 1,263 572
Gain on sale of other assets (232) -
Future income tax recovery (86,199) (12,722)
Cash flow before change in non-cash working capital 174,878 136,038
Asset retirement expenditures (684) (218)
Change in non-cash working capital (note 8) (21,291) 1,514
152,903 137,334
Financing activities
Increase in long term debt 60,456 6,408
Distributions to Unitholders (146,360) (122,287)
Issue of Trust Units 155,327 151,708
69,423 35,829
Change in non-cash working capital (note 8) 4,502 512
73,925 36,341
Total cash provided $ 226,828 $ 173,675
Investing activities
Property acquisitions $ (2,613 $ (156,829)
Corporate acquisitions (note 4) (177,067) -
Capital expenditures (56,339) (22,931)
Long term investments (23) (211
Proceeds on sale of fixed assets 3,496 5,770
Proceeds on sale of other assets 1,000 -
(231,548) (174,201)
Change in non-cash working capital (note 8) 4,720 526
Total cash used $ (226,828) $ (173,675)

See accompanying notes to the consolidated financial statements
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the years ended December 31, 2004 and 2003
(8 thousands, except Trust Units and per Trust Unit amounts)

1. ORGANIZATION

Shiningbank Energy Income Fund (“Shiningbank™ or the "Fund") is an unincorporated open-end investment trust
formed under the laws of the Province of Alberta pursuant to a trust indenture dated May 16, 1996 and subsequently
amended. Operations commenced on July 1, 1996. The beneficiaries of the Fund are the holders (the "Unitholders")
of trust units (the "Trust Units").

On March 5, 2004, the Fund acquired all of the shares of Good Ridge Explorations Ltd. (“Good Ridge”) through its
wholly owned indirect subsidiary Shiningbank Energy Ltd. (the “Corporation”). On March 8, 2004, the Corporation
acquired all of the shares of Birchill Resources Limited (“Birchill”) which in turn held substantially all of its assets
in a partnership. Also on March 8, 2004, the Corporation, Good Ridge and Birchill were amalgamated, continuing
as Shiningbank Energy Ltd. The partnership, which was renamed Shiningbank Energy Partnership (“SEP”),
remained in place and was held by the Corporation.

On December 31, 2004, the Corporation transferred substantially all of its interest in SEP to a newly formed limited
partnership called Shiningbank Limited Partnership (“SLP”) and SEP was wound up. SLP is held by a newly
created operating trust called Shiningbank Operating Trust (“SOT”), the sole beneficiary of which is the Fund. The
Corporation is the general partner of SLP.

The trust indenture provides that 300,000,000 Trust Units may be issued. Each Trust Unit represents an equal
fractional beneficial interest in any distributions from the Fund and in the net assets of the Fund on termination or
winding up of the Fund. All Trust Units rank among themselves equally and rateably without discrimination,
preference or priority. The trust indenture provides that Trust Units are redeemable at any time on demand by the
Unitholders at amounts as determined by a market price formula. The total amount payable by the Fund in respect of
all Trust Units tendered for redemption, however, may not exceed $100,000 in any calendar month.

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared by management using Canadian generally accepted
accounting principles. The preparation of financial statements requires management to make estimates and
assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities, the disclosure of contingencies at the date of
the financial statements, and revenues and expenses during the reporting period. Actual results could differ from
those estimated.

Significant items subject to such estimates and assumptions include the amounts recorded for depletion and
depreciation of the petroleum and natural gas properties, accretion of discount on asset retirement obligations, and
asset retirement expenditures which are based on estimates of reserves and future costs and the amounts recorded for
Trust Unit incentive compensation which are based on the estimated fair value of rights granted. By their nature,
these estimates, and those related to future cash flows used to assess impairment, are subject to measurement
uncertainty and the impact on the financial statements of future periods could be material.

(a) Principles of consolidation

These consolidated financial statements include the accounts of the Fund and its direct and indirect subsidiaries,
including the Corporation, SLP, SOT, Shiningbank Holdings Corporation (“SHC”) and 1130243 Alberta Inc.

(b) Fixed assets

The Fund follows the full cost method of accounting for petroleum and natural gas properties under which all
acquisition and development costs are capitalized. Such costs include land acquisition, geological, geophysical and
drilling costs for productive and non-productive wells and directly related overhead charges. Proceeds from the sale
of petroleum and natural gas properties are applied against capitalized costs. Gains or losses upon disposition of
such properties are not recognized unless the disposition would alter the depletion and depreciation rate by 20% or
more.
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The costs of fixed assets, plus a provision for future development costs of proved undeveloped reserves, are depleted
and depreciated using the unit-of-production method based on estimated total proved reserves volumes, before
royalties, as determined by independent engineers. Proved reserves are converted to a common unit of measure on
the basis of their approximate relative energy content. Other miscellaneous assets are depreciated on a declining
balance basis at 20% per annum,

Oil and gas assets are evaluated annually to determine that the carrying amount in a cost centre is recoverable and
does not exceed the fair value of the properties in the cost centre. The carrying amounts are assessed to be
recoverable when the sum of the undiscounted cash flows expected from the production of proved reserves, the
lower of cost and market of unproved properties and the cost of major development projects, exceeds the carrying
amount of the cost centre. When the carrying amount is in excess, and is therefore assessed as not recoverable, an
impairment loss would be recognized to the extent that the carrying value of assets exceeds the sum of the
discounted cash flows from the production of proved and probable reserves, the lower of cost and market of
unproved properties and the cost of major development projects. The cash flows are estimated using expected future
product prices and costs and are discounted using a risk-free interest rate (see note 4).

(c) Goodwill

Goodwill is recorded upon a corporate acquisition when the total purchase price exceeds the net identifiable assets
and liabilities of the acquired company. The goodwill balance is not amortized but instead is assessed for
impairment annually or more frequently, if necessary. Impairment is determined based on the fair value of the
reporting entity compared to the carrying or net book value of the reporting entity. Any impairment will be charged
to earnings in the period in which the fair value of the reporting entity is below the carrying value,

(d) Asset retirement obligation

Shiningbank recognizes the fair value of an Asset Retirement Obligation (‘ARO™) in the period in which it is
incurred when a reasonable estimation of the fair value can be made. The fair value of the estimated ARO is
recorded as a long-term liability, with a corresponding increase in the carrying value of the asset. In pertods
subsequent to initial measurement, the passage of time results in liability changes and the amount of accretion is
charged against current period income. The liability is also adjusted for revisions to previously used estimates.

Previously, Shiningbank recognized a provision for estimated future site restoration and abandonment costs
calculated on the unit-of-production method over the remaining proved reserves. Actual site restoration and
abandonment costs were charged against the liability as incurred.

(e) Income taxes

The Fund is a taxable trust under the Income Tax Act (Canada). Any taxable income is allocated to the Unitholders
and therefore no provision for income taxes relating to the Fund is included in these financial statements.

The Fund’s corporate subsidiaries follow the tax liability method of accounting for income taxes. Under this
method, income tax liabilities and assets are recognized for the estimated tax consequences attributable to
differences between the amounts reported in the financial statements and their respective tax bases, using enacted
income tax rates. The effect of a change in income tax rates on future income tax liabilities and assets is recognized
in income in the period that the change occurs.

The Fund’s corporate subsidiaries are taxable Canadian corporations and are liable for tax on income that they
retain. The Corporation is also subject to capital taxes in jurisdictions where such taxes apply and these taxes are
deducted from distributions to Unitholders.

(f) Financial instruments

The Corporation from time to time employs financial instruments to manage exposures related to interest rates and
commodity prices. These instruments are not used for speculative trading purposes. The Fund formally documents
all relationships between hedging instruments and hedged items and assesses, both at the hedge’s inception and on
an ongoing basis, whether the derivatives that are used in hedging transactions are highly effective in offsetting
changes in fair values or cash flows of hedged items. Gains and losses on commodity price hedges are included in




News Release — Shiningbank Energy Income Fund 21
March 4, 2005

revenues upon the sale of related production provided there is reasonable assurance that the hedge is and will
continue to be effective.

Realized and unrealized gains and losses associated with hedging instruments that have been terminated or cease to
be effective prior to maturity, are deferred on the balance sheet and recognized in income in the period in which the
underlying hedged transaction is recognized.

For transactions that do not qualify for hedge accounting, the Fund applies the fair value method of accounting by
recording an asset or liability on the consolidated balance sheet and recognizing changes in the fair value of the
instruments in the current period statement of earnings.

(g) Trust Unit Rights Incentive Plan

The Fund accounts for the Trust Unit Rights Incentive Plan using the fair value based method. Under this method,
compensation costs attributed to the Trust Unit rights are measured at fair value at the grant date and recognized
over the vesting period, with a corresponding increase to contributed surplus. Consideration paid by employees and
directors of the Corporation on the exercise of Trust Unit rights under this plan is recorded in Trust Units equity
upon receipt, along with the amount of non-cash Trust Unit incentive compensation expense recognized in
contributed surplus.

(h) Joint ventures

Substantially all of the Fund's petroleum and natural gas activities are conducted jointly with others and,
accordingly, these financial statements reflect only the Fund's proportionate interest in such activities.

(i) Per Trust Unit amounts

Basic earnings per Trust Unit is computed by dividing net earnings by the weighted average number of Trust Units
outstanding for the year. Diluted net earnings per Trust Unit amounts reflect the potential dilution that could occur
if securities or other contracts to issue Trust Units were exercised or converted to Trust Units.

(j) Revenue recognition

Revenue from the sale of oil and natural gas is recognized when the product is delivered.

(k) Comparative figures

Comparative figures have been reclassified to conform to current year presentation.

3. CHANGE IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(a) Asset retirement obligation

Effective January 1, 2004 Shiningbank has adopted CICA handbook section 3110, “Asset Retirement Obligations.”
The standard requires the recognition and measurement of liabilities related to legal obligations to retire property,
plant and equipment upon acquisition of the liability. The initial liability must be measured at fair value and
subsequently adjusted for the accretion of discount and changes in the fair value. The asset retirement cost is

capitalized and depleted into earnings over time.

This change in accounting policy has been adopted retroactively with restatement of the prior period presented for
comparative purposes. The effect of the adoption is as follows:

Balance sheet December 31, 2003 December 31, 2002
Increase in fixed assets for asset retirement costs $ 12,531 $ 13,521
Net increase in asset retirement obligation 15,329 15,560
Decrease in future income tax liability (771) (493)

Decrease in accumulated earnings (2,028) (1,546)




INCWS RCICASC — oNNNINZLAankK Encrgy income rund Ld
March 4, 2005

Statement of earnings Year ended December 31, 2003
Accretion expense on asset retirement obligation $ 1,981
Increased depletion due to asset retirement costs 1,845
Eliminate prior provision for site restoration (3,066)
Increase future income tax recovery 277
Net earnings impact § 483
Basic net earnings per Trust Unit $ 001
Diluted net earnings per Trust Unit $§ 001

The estimated asset retirement obligation is based upon the Fund’s net ownership interest in each area, estimated
costs to abandon and reclaim wells and facilities in the area, and the anticipated timing of such expenditures.

Undiscounted expenditures totalling $37.6 million are expected to be made over the next 33 years. The Fund’s
credit adjusted risk free rate of 7% and an inflation rate of 2% were used to calculate the present value of the
obligation.

The Fund’s asset retirement obligation is as follows:

Year ended December 31, Year ended December 31,

2004 2003

Carrying amount, beginning of year $ 26,524 $ 23,907
Liability incurred during the year, net of dispositions 2,212 854
Settlement of liability during the year (684) (218)
Accretion expense 2,190 1,981
Carrying amount, end of year $ 30,242 $ 26,524

(b) Trust Unit incentive compensation

During 2003 the Fund elected to adopt the amendments to the CICA Handbook Section 3870, “Stock-based
Compensation and Other Stock-based Payments.” The section was adopted effective January 1, 2003 and Trust Unit
incentive compensation expense of $572,000 was recorded in 2003 for rights granted during 2003 and vesting within
the year.

(c) Hedging relationships

Effective January 1, 2004, the Fund adopted Accounting Guideline 13, “Hedging Relationships” that establishes
standards for the documentation and effectiveness of hedging relationships for the purposes of applying hedge
accounting. The adoption of this standard had no effect on the Fund’s financial results.

4. FIXED ASSETS

(a) Acquisition of Birchill Resources Limited

Effective January 1, 2004 the Corporation acquired all the outstanding shares of Birchill for $170.1 million. The
transaction closed on March 8, 2004. The acquisition was accounted for by the purchase method and the results of

operations of Birchill are included in the accounts from the closing date. Birchill and the Corporation were
subsequently amalgamated.

Cash consideration $ 169,639
Related fees and expenses 463
Cost of acquisition $ 170,102
Working capital deficiency 5 (5.724)
Future income tax (66,700)
Asset retirement obligation (3,028)
Petroleum and natural gas properties and equipment 245,554
Total consideration $§ 170,102
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(b) Acquisition of Good Ridge Explorations Ltd.

Effective January 1, 2004 the Corporation acquired all the outstanding shares of Good Ridge for $7.0 million. The
transaction closed on March 5, 2004. The acquisition was accounted for by the purchase method and the results of
operations of Good Ridge are included in the accounts from the closing date. Good Ridge and the Corporation were
subsequently amalgamated.

Cash consideration $ 6,935
Related fees and expenses 30
Cost of acquisition $ 6,965
Working capital $ 578
Future income tax (2,201)
Asset retirement obligation (147)
Petroleum and natural gas properties and equipment 7,025
Goodwill 1,710
Total consideration $ 6,965

(c) Ceiling test

The Fund performed a ceiling test calculation at December 31, 2004 to assess the recoverable value of fixed assets.
Future prices were obtained from third parties, adjusted for commodity differentials specific to the Fund, and then
escalated based on factors in the Fund’s year-end independent reserves evaluation. The following table summarizes
the benchmark prices used in the ceiling test calculation. Based on these assumptions, the undiscounted value of

future net revenues from proved reserves exceeded the carrying value of the Fund’s fixed assets at December 31,
2004.

Oil Gas

Year WTI Edmonton Light AECO Alberta Reference

US$/bbl C$/bbl C$/mmbtu C$/mmbtu
2005 $ 4429 $ 5125 $ 697 $ 6.76
2006 41.60 48.03 6.66 6.45
2007 37.09 42.64 6.21 6.00
2008 33.46 38.31 5.73 5.55
2009 31.84 36.36 5.37 5.21
2010 32.32 36.91 5.47 5.31
2011 32.80 37.47 5.57 5.38
2012 33.30 38.03 5.67 5.48
2013 33.79 38.61 5.77 5.58
2014 34,30 39.19 5.87 5.68
2015 34,82 39.78 5.98 5.79
Thereafter + 1.5%/annum + 1.5%/annum + 1.5%/annum + 1.5%/annum

s. LONG TERM DEBT

The Corporation has a $225 million revolving credit facility with a syndicate of four Canadian chartered banks of
which $182.1 million was drawn at December 31, 2004 (2003 - $121.7 million). The revolving period extends to
April 27, 2005. If the revolving facility is not renewed on that date, it will revert to a two year term with principal
payments commencing on July 28, 2005. The facility is secured by a $300 million floating charge debenture on all
assets of the Corporation together with supporting debentures and guarantees from operating subsidiaries and
affiliates. Borrowings under the facility bear interest at an annual rate ranging from the banks’ prime rate to the
banks’ prime rate plus 0.95%, depending on the Fund’s total debt to cash flow ratio, or, at Shiningbank’s option, the
bankers’ acceptance rate plus a stamping fee.
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6. INCOME TAXES

The provision for income taxes in the financial statements differs from the result that would have been obtained by
applying the combined federal and provincial tax rate to the Corporation’s and SHC’s earnings before income taxes.

This difference results from the following items:

2004 2003
Taxable loss of the Corporation and SHC $ (27,800) $ (17,400)
Combined federal and provincial tax rate 38.62% 40.60%
Computed income tax recovery (10,700) (7,100)
Increase (decrease) in income taxes resulting from:
Non-deductible Crown charges 3,500 1,800
Other 2,901 (222
Internalization of management contract 1,400 2,400
Resource allowance (1,800) (1,900)
Change in tax rate (3,100) (7,700)
Internal restructuring (78,400) -
Future income tax recovery (86,199) (12,722)
Capital and large corporation taxes 574 595
Income and capital taxes $ (85,625) $ (12,127)

The recovery of future income taxes, through the internal restructuring, resulted from the transfer of the partership
acquired in the Birchill acquisition from the Corporation to a new operating trust, the beneficiary of which is the

Fund.

The components of the Corporation’s and SHC’s future income tax liability at December 31, are as follows:

2004 2003
Future income taxes:
Oil and natural gas properties $ 49,151 $ 59,999
Asset retirement obligation (9,084) (4,636)
Non-capital losses (4,383) (3,935)
Other (2,418) (864)
$ 33,266 $ 50,564
7. TRUST UNITS
(a) Authorized
300,000,000 Trust Units
) Issued
2004 2003
Number Amount Number Amount
Balance, beginning of year 44343 415 550,267 33,193937 $§ 391,970
Issued for cash 8,800,000 149,600 10,338,500 155,078
Less: Commissions and issue costs - (8,143) - (8,216)
Issued on exercise of rights 618,166 8,024 134,673 1,831
Issued for cash under Dividend Reinvestment Plan 296,538 5,846 179,488 3,016
[ssued on conversion of Exchangeable Shares 82,500 941 496,817 6,588
Transfer from contributed surplus on exercise of rights - 419 - -
Balance, end of year 54,140,619 § 706,954 44,343,415 $ 550,267
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(c) Exchangeable Shares

On October 9, 2002, SHC issued 1,136,614 Exchangeable Shares in connection with the management internalization
transaction, The Exchangeable Shares are exchangeable, at the option of the holder, into Trust Units for no
additional consideration. As at December 31, 2004, 353,614 (2003 - 555,678) Exchangeable Shares were held in
escrow to be released over periods up to October 2007 under the terms of two escrow agreements. The number of
Trust Units issuable upon conversion is based upon the exchange ratio in effect at the conversion date. The
exchange ratio is adjusted by the distributions paid to Unitholders divided by the 10-day weighted average unit price
preceding the record date. The Exchangeable Shares are not eligible for distributions.

2004 2003

Number Amount Number Amount
Balance, beginning of year 126,290 $ 5,267 378,872 $ 6475
Released from escrow 202,064 - 202,064 -
Conversion of Exchangeable Shares ‘ (64,872) (941) (454,646) (6,589)
Amortization of deferred portion - 2,693 - 5,381
Balance, end of year 263,482 § 7,019 126,290 $ 5267
Exchange ratio, end of year 1.32647 1.18417
Trust Units issuable upon conversion of non-escrowed shares 349,501 149,549
Trust Units issuable upon conversion of escrowed shares 469,058 658,016
Total Trust Units issuable upon conversion of all shares 818,559 807,565

(d) Trust Unit Rights Incentive Plan

Under Shiningbank’s Trust Unit Rights Incentive Plan the initial exercise price of rights granted may not be less
than the current market price of the Trust Units as of the date of grant and the maximum term of each right is not to
exceed 10 years. The exercise price of the rights is to be adjusted downwards from time to time by the amount, if
any, that distributions to Unitholders in any calendar quarter exceed 2.5% (10% annually) of the Fund’s
consolidated net book value of fixed assets. A total of 3,197,796 Trust Units have been reserved for issuance under
the plan. At December 31, 2004, there were 1,396,901 (2003 - 1,460,067) rights outstanding, of which 395,234
(2003 — 583,401) were exercisable at a weighted average exercise price of $13.34 (2003 - $14.20). In January 2005,
a further 717,500 Trust Unit rights were granted.

Rights 2004 2003
Weighted Average Weighted Average
Number Exercise Price  Number Exercise Price
Balance, beginning of year 1,460,067 $ 13.93 1,059,000 $ 15.00
Granted 580,000 $ 1875 525,000 $ 1524
Forfeited (25,000) $ 1644 - $ -
Exercised (618,166) $ 1298 (123,933) § 1344
Balance before reduction of exercise price 1,396,901 $ 16.31 1,460,067 § 1522
Reduction of exercise price (1.57) (1.29)

Balance, end of year 1,396,901 $ 14.74 1,460,067 $ 1393
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The following table summarizes information about Trust Unit rights outstanding and exercisable at December 31,
2004:

Rights Outstanding Rights Exercisable
Weighted Average

Number Remaining Weighted Number Weighted
Range of Exercise ~ Outstanding Contractual Life Average  Exercisable Average
Prices At 12/31/04 (Yrs)  Exercise Price At 12/31/04 Exercise Price
$10.00t0 $ 12.99 481,667 7.8 $ 12.08 65,000 $ 11.96
$13.00t0 $ 16.99 380,234 6.8 $ 1392 330,234 $ 13.62
$17.00t0 $21.50 535,000 9.1 $ 17.71 - $ -
$10.00t0 $ 21.50 1,396,901 8.0 $ 14.74 395,234 § 13.34

Shiningbank recorded Trust Unit incentive compensation expense of $1,263,000 for the year ended December 31,
2004 (2003 — $572,000) for rights issued in 2003 and 2004, and vesting within the year.

During the year, $419,000 (2003 - $nil) of contributed surplus was transferred to Trust Unit equity in respect of
rights exercised during the period.

The following table reconciles the movement in the contributed surplus balance:

Contributed surplus 2004 2003
Balance, beginning of year $ 572 8 -
Trust Unit incentive compensation 1,263 572
Net benefit on rights exercised ' (419 -
Balance, end of year $1,416 $ 572

' Upon exercise, the net benefit is reflected as a reduction of contributed surplus and an increase to Unitholders’
capital.

The fair value of the 580,000 rights issued during the year was estimated using a Black-Scholes option-pricing
model with the following assumptions: risk-free interest rates ranging from 4.33 to 4.82% (2003 ~ 4.16 to 4.76%),
volatility of 60%, life of 10 years, and a dividend yield rate of 10% representing the difference between the
anticipated distribution and the anticipated drop in the strike price.

For rights issued in 2002, Shiningbank has elected to disclose the pro forma effect as if the amended accounting
standard had been adopted January 1, 2002. For the years ended December 31, 2004 and 2003, Shiningbank’s net
income would have decreased by $508,000 per year ($0.01 per basic and diluted Trust Unit in 2003 and 2004) due
to additional Trust Unit incentive compensation expense related to rights granted in 2002.

(e) Distribution Reinvestment Plan

The Distribution Reinvestment Plan (“DRIP”) entitles eligible Unitholders to purchase additional Trust Units by re-
investing their cash distributions or by making additional optional cash payments of up to a2 maximum of $3,000 per
quarter for the purchase of additional Trust Units. Trust Units are acquired on the open market at the prevailing
market price or issued from treasury at the average market price over the last 10 days of trading. During 2004,
296,538 Trust Units were issued from treasury (2003 — 179,488) under the DRIP for proceeds of $5.8 million (2003
- $3.0 million).

3] Per Trust Unit amounts

For the year ended December 31, 2004, the weighted average number of Trust Units and non-escrowed
Exchangeable Shares outstanding was 52,208,852 (2003 - 41,594,854). In computing diluted net earnings per Trust
Unit, the dilutive effect of unit rights and escrowed Exchangeable Shares, added 984,155 Trust Units (2003 —
772,760) to the weighted average number of Trust Units outstanding.
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8. OTHER CASH FLOW DISCLOSURES
(a) Change in non-cash operating working capital
2004 2003
Accounts receivable $ (24,271 $ (7,950)
Prepaid expenses (1,841) 248
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities 4,821 9,216
$(21,291) S 1514
(b) Change in non-cash financing working capital
2004 2003
Distributions payable to Unitholders $ 4,502 $ 512
() Change in non-cash investing working capital
2004 2003
Accounts payable for capital accruals $ 4,720 $ 526
@ Cash payments
2004 2003
Cash payments made for taxes $ 1,231 $ 625
Cash payments made for interest $ 6,023 $ 6,077

9. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

As at December 31, 2004, there are no significant differences between the carrying amounts and the fair value of
accounts receivable, accounts payable, accrued liabilities, Trust Unit distributions payable, and long-term debt. The
Corporation is exposed to interest rate variance on the long term debt disclosed in the balance sheet. Gains and
losses on commodity price hedges are included in revenues upon the sale of related production provided there is

reasonable assurance that the hedge is and will continue to be effective.

Substantially all of the Fund’s accounts receivable are due from customers in the oil and gas industry and are subject
to the normal industry credit risks. The carrying value of accounts receivable reflects management’s assessment of
the associated credit risk. Substantially all derivative financial instruments are entered into with Canadian chartered

banks in order to reduce credit risk.

At December 31, 2004, Shiningbank held certain oil and natural gas hedge contracts, the terms of which are listed in
the following table. The estimated market value at December 31, 2004, had the contracts been settled at that time,

would have been a loss of $103,484.

Period Commodity Volume Price

April 1, 2004 — March 31, 2005 Gas 5,000 GJ/d $5.91/GJ

November 1, 2004 — March 31, 2005 Gas 5,000 GJ/d $7.50 /GJ floor
$11.00/GJ ceiling

April 1, 2005 — December 31, 2005 Gas 5,000 GJ/d $5.00 /GJ floor
$6.39/GJ ceiling

January 1, 2005 - June 30, 2005 Oil 500 bbl/d US$37.00/bbl floor

US$50.50/bbl ceiling
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Subsequent to December 31, 2004, Shiningbank entered into two additional hedge contracts.

Period Commodity Volume Price

February 1, 2005 — December 31, 2005 il 500 bbl/d US$40.00/bbl floor
US$55.40/bbl ceiling

April 1, 2005 —~ October 31, 2005 Gas 5,000 GJ/d $6.70/GJ

10. INTERNALIZATION OF MANAGEMENT CONTRACT

Effective October 9, 2002, the Fund acquired all of the outstanding shares of Shiningbank Energy Management Inc.,
the former Manager of the Fund. Total consideration for the transaction consisted of a cash payment of $2.91
million plus 1,136,614 Exchangeable Shares. Total consideration was reduced by $1.8 million to provide for
performance/retention bonuses to be paid to employees. During 2004, the remainder of this bonus pool, or $817,250
(2003 - $582,750) was paid out in cash and expensed.

Total consideration:

Cash $ 2910
Exchangeable Shares issued 16,490
Costs associated with the transaction 1,195
Total purchase price § 20,595

Prior to the acquisition, the Fund paid fees to the former Manager of 3.25% of net operating income, a fee of 1.5%
on the purchase price of acquisitions and a quarterly scheduled dividend in accordance with the terms of the
management agreement. The acquisition resulted in the elimination of all fees and dividends under the management
contract.

Exchangeable Shares in the amount of $10.0 million were originally subject to escrow provisions and are being
deferred and amortized into income as internalization of management contract expense over the specific vesting
periods through 2007. For the year ending December 31, 2004, $2,693,400 (2003 - $5,380,600) has been recorded
as expense representing the amortization of these escrowed Exchangeable Shares.

Shiningbank Energy Income Fund is a conventional oil and gas royalty trust and its units are listed on The Toronto
Stock Exchange under the symbol “SHN.UN".

For further information contact:

David M. Fitzpatrick, President and C.E.O.

Bruce K. Gibson, Vice President, Finance and C.F.O.
Debbie Carver, Investor Relations

Shiningbank Energy Ltd.

Telephone:  (403) 268-7477

Facsimile:  (403) 268-7499

Toll Free: (866) 268-7477

Email: irinfo@shiningbank.com

Website: www .shiningbank.com
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NEWS RELEASE
FOR IMMEDIATE RELEASE

SHININGBANK ENERGY ANNOUNCES APRIL 2005
MONTHLY DISTRIBUTION

Shiningbank Energy Income Fund today announced that its cash distribution for April
2005 will be $0.23 PER UNIT. This distribution is consistent with the monthly
distribution paid to unitholders since June 2003.

The distribution is payable on April 15, 2005 to unitholders of record on March 31,
2005. The ex-distribution date is March 29, 2005.

Shiningbank Energy Income Fund is a conventional oil and gas royalty trust listed on the
Toronto Stock Exchange under the symbol SHN.UN.

For further information please contact:

David M. Fitzpatrick, President and C.E.O.

Bruce K. Gibson, Vice President, Finance and C.F.O.
Debbie Carver, Investor Relations

Shiningbank Energy Ltd.

Telephone:  (403) 268-7477

Facsimile:  (403) 268-7499

Toll Free: (866) 268-7477

Email: irinfo@shiningbank.com

Website: www.shiningbank.com
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AGREEMENT AMENDING
ROYALTY AGREEMENT

February 28, 2003 BRI n

Between AR o -
R R, :

CTGE e

SHININGBANK ENERGY LTD., a corporation amalgamated” =i " "+
under the laws of Alberta, having its registered office and principal o
place of business in Calgary, Alberta (the “Grantor”)

and

COMPUTERSHARE TRUST COMPANY OF CANADA, a trust
company incorporated under the laws of Canada, with offices in
Calgary, Alberta (“Trustee”) for and on behalf of Shiningbank
Energy Income Fund, a trust formed in accordance with the laws of
Alberta (the “Fund”™)

Recitals

A. The holders of the trust units of Shiningbank Energy Income Fund (the "Fund") resolved at
a Special Meeting thereof held on October 8, 2002 (the "Meeting"), to effect an
internalization of the management of the Fund (the “Internalization Transaction”) by the
purchase of all of the issued and outstanding shares of Shiningbank Energy Management Inc.
(“SEMI”) by Shiningbank Holdings Corporation, a subsidiary of the Fund and subsequently
amalgamating the Grantor and SEMI (the “Amalgamation”).

B. The holders of the trust units of the Fund also resolved at the Meeting to amend this Royalty
Agreement to provide that the distributions to the holders of the trust units may be made
monthly rather than quarterly if deemed desirable by the Board of Directors of the Grantor.

C. All actions have now been taken to give effect to the Internalization Transaction and the
Amalgamation.
D. The parties hereto wish to amend and restate the Royalty Agreement to reflect the above.

The parties agree as follows.

Article 1
Amendments

The parties hereto agree that the Royalty Agreement will be amended effective as of the date
set out above such that it shall be amended and restated, such restatement to be in the form attached
hereto as Schedule "A" to this Agreement, and such Restated Royalty Agreement shall be the Royalty
Agreement.
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Article 2
Continuation

The Royalty Agreement, as amended as aforesaid, shall continue in full force and effect in
accordance with the terms thereof.

Article 3
Miscellaneous

3.1 Enurement

This Agreement shall enure to the benefit of and be binding upon the parties hereto and their
respective successors and permitted assigns.

3.2  Waivers in Writing

No waiver by any party hereto of any breach of any of the covenants, conditions and
provisions herein contained shall be effective or be binding on any other party hereto unless such
waiver is expressed in writing and any waiver so expressed shall not limit or affect its rights with
respect to any other or future breach.

33 Amendments
A
No amendment, alteration or variation of this Agreement or any of its terms or conditions
shall be binding upon the parties hereto unless made in writing and signed by the duly authorized
representatives of each of the parties hereto.

3.4  Liability

The parties hereto acknowledge that the Trustee is entering into this agreement solely in its
capacity as Trustee on behalf of the Trust and the obligations of the Trust hereunder shall not be
personally binding upon the Trustee or any of the holders of the Trust Units of the Trust and that any
recourse against the Trust, the Trustee or any holder of the Trust Units of the Trust in any manner
in respect of any indebtedness, obligation or liability of the Trust arising hereunder or arising in
connection herewith or from the matters to which this agreement relates, if any, including without
limitation claims based on negligence or otherwise tortious behaviour, shall be limited to, and satisfied
only out of, the Trust Fund as defined in the Trust Indenture with respect to the Trust as the
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same was amended and restated as of February 28, 2003.

Executed and delivered.

CLARKR/916502.1

COMPUTERSHARE TRUST COMPANY
OF CANADA, as Trustee for and on behalf
of SHININGBANK ENERGY INCOME
FUND

Per; "signed"

Per:___ "signed"

SHININGBANK ENERGY LTD

Per;  "signed"

Per; "signed"




Schedule A

Amended and restated
as of February 28, 2003

Royalty Agreement
Between:

SHININGBANK ENERGY LTD., a corporation incorporated under
the laws of Alberta, having its registered office and principal place of
business in Calgary, Alberta

and

COMPUTERSHARE TRUST COMPANY OF CANADA, a trust
company incorporated under the laws of Canada with offices in
Calgary, Alberta as trustee for and on behalf of Shiningbank Energy
Income Fund, a trust formed in accordance with the laws of Alberta

Recital:

The Grantor wishes to grant the Royalty and the Royalty Owner wishes to acquire the Royalty from
the Grantor on the terms and conditions set forth herein.

The parties agree as follows.

Article 1
Definitions
1.1 Definitions

For the purposes of this Agreement, including the recitals, the following words and expressions shall
have the following meanings except where the context otherwise expressly provides:

“Additional Properties” means those P&NG Rights and any related Tangibles and Miscellaneous
Interests which are acquired by the Grantor after the Closing Date;

“Administrative Services Agreement” means the agreement between the Grantor and the Trustee
as trustee for and on behalf of the Royalty Fund dated October 9, 2002, pursuant to which the
Grantor has agreed to provide certain management and administration services to the Royalty Fund
and the Trustee, and all amendments thereof, substitutions therefor and replacements thereof;

“Affiliate” means an affiliated body corporate within the meaning of Section 2(1) of the Business
Corporations Act (Alberta);

“Agreement” means this agreement including the Schedule A hereto;
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“ARC” means credits or rebates in respect of Crown Royalties which are paid or credited by the
Crown, including those paid or credited under the Alberta Corporate Tax Act which are commonly
known as ‘Alberta Royalty Credits’;

“Asset Value” in respect of any Property or the Properties at any time means the present worth
(using the Discount Rate) of the estimated pre-tax net cash flow from such Property or the Properties
of the Proved Reserves and 50% of the Probable Reserves shown on the most recent independent
engineering report relating to such Property or the Properties;

“Business Day” means a day other than a Saturday, Sunday or statutory holiday in Alberta;
“Canadian resource property” shall have the meaning attributable to such term in the Tax Act,
“Capital Costs” means:

(a) drilling costs, completion costs and equipping costs of wells; and

(b) all other costs relating to the Properties which are “capital costs” under GAAP,

but does not include Future Acquisition Costs;

“Closing” means the closing of the issuance of Trust Units by the Royalty Fund contemplated by a
final prospectus dated July 18, 1996;

“Closing Date” means the date upon which the Closing occurs;

"Commodity Price Swaps" means swap, hedging and other arrangements made by the Grantor, from

time to time, the purpose of which is to mitigate or eliminate fluctuations in prices or commodities
which affect Production Costs or revenues attributable to the Properties;

“Credit Facilities” means the credit facilities of the Grantor existing as of the date hereof, and those
made available to the Grantor, from time to time hereafter, to fund the payment of or to refinance the
payment of Production Costs, Future Acquisition Costs and other corporate requirements of the
Grantor, and all amendments thereto, substitutions therefor and replacements thereof;

“Crown” means Her Majesty the Queen in Right of Canada or a Province thereof;

“Crown Royalties” means any amount paid or payable to or received or receivable by the Crown by
virtue of an obligation imposed by statute or a contractual obligation substituted for an obligation
imposed by statute as a royalty, tax (other than municipal or school tax), lease rental or bonus or in
lieu thereof that may be reasonably regarded as being in relation to P&NG Rights or the production
of Petroleum Substances;

"Currency Exchange Swaps" means swap, hedging and other arrangements made by the Grantor,
from time to time, the purpose of which is to mitigate or eliminate fluctuations in rates of exchange
of one currency for another which affect Production Costs or revenues attributable to the Properties;
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“Debt Service Charges” means, in respect of a Period:

(a)

(b)

(©)

all interest, penalties, fees, indemnities, legal costs, and other costs, expenses and
disbursements for which the Grantor is liable pursuant to the Credit Facilities and
which, in each case, accrue during such Period;

all amounts payable during such Period on account of principal pursuant to the Credit
Facilities including, without limitation, scheduled, prepaid (voluntary or mandatory)
and accelerated principal and (subject to the provisos below) any amounts required
to be paid on account of banker’s acceptances and letters of credit (other than fees
described in (a) above);

plus (if there is a net loss) or minus (if there is a net profit) the net profit or loss from
Interest Rate Swaps which accrues during such Period;

provided that the difference between the face amount of a banker’s acceptance which is issued
and accepted pursuant to the Credit Facilities and its discount proceeds (such difference being
the “imputed interest”) shall be treated as interest accruing at the times that it is considered
to accrue in accordance with GAAP and provided that when the Grantor becomes liable under
the Credit Facilities to pay the full amount of a banker’s acceptance, the face amount less the
amount of imputed interest for such banker’s acceptance shall be included in the Debt Service
Charges;

“Deductible Production Costs” means, in respect of a Period and without duplication:

(a)
(b)

less
(c)
(d)

Production Costs for that Period; plus

Deductible Production Costs which are carried forward to such Period pursuant to
Section 3.4;

Production Costs paid from advances made pursuant to the Credit Facilities; and

payments made in that Period by the Grantor in respect of Production Costs from
Other Revenues and Grantor Disposition Proceeds pursuant to subsection 2.4(c);

“Deferred Purchase Payment” means any payment in addition to the payment of the Initial Purchase
Payment required to be made by the Royalty Owner to the Grantor pursuant to Section 2.2 as
additional consideration for the Royalty;

“Discount Rate” on any particular day shall be the lesser of:

(a)

twice the yield on ten year Government of Canada Bonds on the fifth Business Day
preceding the particular date, rounded down to the nearest whole percentage point;
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(b) the yield on ten year Government of Canada Bonds on the fifth Business Day
preceding the particular date plus 8%, rounded down to the nearest whole percentage
point; or

(c) 15%;
“Execution Date” means July 31, 1996,

“Farmout” means an agreement whereby a Person at arm’s length to the Grantor and the Royalty
Owner agrees to pay for the drilling of one or more wells on one or more of the Properties in order
to earn an interest therein with the Grantor retaining a royalty or residual interest in such Properties;

“Future Acquisition Costs” means amounts paid by or on behalf of the Grantor in respect of the
costs of acquiring interests in Additional Properties (including purchase price, adjustments, broker’s
fees and commissions, professional and consulting fees and disbursements);

“GAAP” means, as of any time, generally accepted accounting principles in Canada as at such time;

“General and Administrative Costs” means the amount in aggregate representing all expenditures
and costs incurred in the management and administration of the Grantor and the Royalty Fund
including, without limitation:

(a) all reasonable costs and expenses relating to the Grantor and the Royalty Fund and
paid directly to Third Parties by or on behalf of the Grantor or the Royalty Fund or
their Affiliates, including, without limitation, Trustee’s fees; and

(b) all reasonable costs and expenses incurred by the Grantor specifically for the Royalty
Fund including, without limitation, auditing, accounting, bookkeeping, rent and other
leasehold expenses, legal, land administration, engineering, travel, telephone, data
processing, reporting, executive and management time, salaries and all of those costs
and expenses incurred by the Grantor (or any successor to it as administrator under
the Administrative Services Agreement) in discharging its obligations under the
Administrative Services Agreement;

“Grantor” means Shiningbank Energy Ltd. and each of its Affiliates, unless the context or an express
indication indicates otherwise;

“Grantor Disposition Proceeds” means:

€)] 1% of the proceeds of assignment, sale or other disposition of the Properties or any
portion thereof (excluding proceeds in respect of Tangibles and Miscellaneous
Interests directly related thereto); plus the portion of the remaining 99% of such
proceeds which are utilized to repay borrowings of the Grantor; and

(b) 100% of the proceeds of assignment, sale or other disposition of Tangibles and

Miscellaneous Interests directly related to the Properties assigned, sold or otherwise
disposed of;
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“Grantor’s Share” means the share (determined as if the Royalty had not been granted) which 1s
attributable to the Properties, for which the Grantor is responsible or to which the Grantor is entitled;

“Grantor’s Share of Production” means the Grantor’s Share of the production of Petroleum
Substances from the Royalty Lands and lands pooled or unitized therewith;

“In Specie Distribution” means a distribution pursuant to Section 3.13 of the Trust Indenture;

“Initial Properties” means those P&NG Rights, Tangibles and Miscellaneous Interests in which the
Grantor has an interest (whether contingent or absolute, legal or beneficial, present or future, vested
or not) as of the Execution Date including, without limitation, the P&NG Rights, Tangibles and
Miscellaneous Interests relating to the lands and leases described in Schedule A;

“Initial Purchase Payment” means the net proceeds from the issuance of Trust Units by the Royalty
Fund contemplated by a final prospectus dated July 18, 1996 after deducting underwriting fees, legal
fees, accounting fees and printing expenses and all other fees and expenses which may be incurred
in connection with such issuance, representing the consideration for the Royalty (other than Deferred
Purchase Payments) an estimate of which is paid by the Royalty Owner on the Execution Date and
the balance of which shall be paid or refunded (if overpaid) within 120 days of the Execution Date
and, for greater certainty, the Initial Purchase Payment shall total $48,769,730 and shall be satisfied,
in part through a cash payment of $27,612,398 and in part by an absolute assignment of the Royalty
Owner’s entire right, title and interest in and to the Instalment Receivables and certain rights under
the Instalment Receipt Agreement;

“Instalment Receipt Agreement” means the Instalment Receipt and Pledge Agreement dated July
31, 1996 made between the Royalty Fund, Richardson Greenshields of Canada Limited, CIBC Wood
Gundy Securities Inc., Levesque Beaubien Geoffrion Inc., TD Securities Inc., Moss Lawson &
Company Limited, First Marathon Securities Limited, Montreal Trust Company of Canada and The
Trust Company of the Bank of Montreal;

“Instalment Receipts” means the Instalment Receipts issued on the closing of the Offering,
representing beneficial ownership of the Trust Units issued pursuant to the Offering subject to the
pledge of such Trust Units as security for the payment of the Instalment Receivables pursuant to the
Instalment Receipt and Pledge Agreement;

“Instalment Receivables” means the unpaid final instalments of $4.00 per Trust Unit payable to the
Royalty Fund on or before July 31, 1997 in respect of the Instalment Receipts issued on closing of

the Offering;

“Interest Rate Swaps” means interest rate swap, hedging and other arrangements made by the
Grantor, from time to time, the purpose of which is to mitigate or eliminate exposure to fluctuations
in interest rates applicable to the Credit Facilities or which otherwise affect Production Costs;

“Leases” means collectively the leases, reservations, permits, licenses, certificates of title or other
documents of title (including all renewals and extensions of such documents and all documents issued
in substitution therefor) by virtue of which the holder thereofis entitled to drill for, win, own, remove
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and/or receive proceeds from the sale or disposition of Petroleum Substances within, upon or under
all or any part of the Royalty Lands or lands pooled or unitized therewith;

“Lender” means:

(a) the lender or lenders (if there is more than one) that make the Credit Facilities
available to the Grantor and includes any agent acting on their behalf; and

(b)  the Person or Persons with whom the Grantor makes Swap Arrangements;

“Miscellaneous Interests” means all interests, property, rights and assets of the Grantor, whether
contingent or absolute, legal or beneficial, present or future, vested or not (and not being P&NG
Rights, Tangibles, seismic or geophysical data), which pertain to the P&NG Rights or Tangibles or
are described below in this definition, including without limitation, the interests of the Grantor in any
of the following property, rights and assets:

(a) contracts, agreements and documents (including Title and Operating Documents)
relating to any of such P&NG Rights or Tangibles or any rights in relation thereto;

(b) Surface Rights which are used or held for use in connection with any of such P&NG
Rights or Tangibles;

(©) permits, licences, authorizations and deposits relating to any of such P&NG Rights
or Tangibles, including in respect of facilities, wells and pipelines, the export, removal,
transportation, purchase or sale of Petroleum Substances;

(d) the wells, including without limitation the wells listed in Schedule A hereto;

(e) all extensions, renewals, replacements or amendments of the foregoing items
described in subparagraphs (a) to (d) of this definition;

€3] books, maps, records, documents, geological, engineering, data processing, well,
plant and other reports, studies, data, information, tapes, disks, computer programs,
papers or other records which relate to or are necessary or useful in connection with
the Properties or any of the property or assets referred to in subparagraphs (a), (b),
(c), (d) or (e) of this definition;

provided always that Miscellaneous Interests and Properties shall not include the well bores
for wells located on the Royalty Lands which are dry and abandoned and for which a
certificate of reclamation or certificate of restoration has been issued;

“Month” means a period commencing at 7:00 a.m. Calgary time on the first day of a calendar month
and ending at 7:00 a.m. Calgary time on the first day of the following calendar month;
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“Non-Deductible Crown Royalties” means Crown Royalties which are either:

(a)
(b)

required to be included in taxable income pursuant to the Tax Act, or

not permitted to be deducted in computing taxable income pursuant to the Tax Act;

“Offering” means the offering by the Royalty Fund of 5,289,333 Trust Units pursuant to the
Prospectus dated July 18, 1996, at a price of $10.00 per Trust Unit payable on an instalment basis,
with the initial payment of $6.00 per Trust Unit payable on the closing of the Offering and the final
instalment of $4.00 per Trust Unit payable on or before July 31, 1997

“Other Revenues” means, in respect of a Period, ARC payable to the Grantor during the Period and
the Grantor’s Share of all revenues which accrue during such Period including, without limitation:

(a)

(b)

©

(d)

(e)

(B

(8

(h)

fees and similar payments made by Third Parties for processing, transportation,
gathering, refining or treatment of their Petroleum Substances in facilities comprised
in the Tangibles;

proceeds from the sale of Petroleum Substances purchased from Third Parties and
processed in facilities comprised in the Tangibles;

take or pay and similar payments made to the Grantor in lieu of a buyer taking
delivery of all or a portion of the Grantor’s Share of Production;

proceeds from the sale of Tangibles and Miscellaneous Interests (except when sold
in connection with P&NG Rights);

insurance proceeds, including business interruption insurance, property damage
insurance and third party liability insurance proceeds;

the net profit or loss (which will be a negative amount for purposes of computing the
Other Revenues if there is a net loss) from Currency Exchange Swaps which settled
during the Period;

incentives, rebates and credits in respect of Production Costs payable to the Grantor
during the Period; and

proceeds from the sale or licensing of seismic and similar data,

but not including Production Revenues and proceeds from the sale of P&NG Rights and any
related Tangibles and Miscellaneous Interests;

“P&NG Rights” means all of the right, title, estate and interest of the Grantor (whether absolute or
contingent, legal or beneficial, present or future, vested or not, and whether or not an interest in land)

in or to:

(a)

rights to explore for, drill for, produce, take, save or market Petroleum Substances;




(b)
(©

(d)

(®)

®

€9)
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rights to a share of the production of Petroleum Substances;

rights to a share of the proceeds of, or to receive payments calculated by reference to
the quantity or value of, the production of Petroleum Substances, other than rights
under agreements for the sale of Petroleum Substances;

the interests set forth in Schedule A hereto in and to and in respect of the Leases and
the Royalty Lands subject to the burdens, liens and encumbrances listed in Schedule
A hereto;

the interests in and to and in respect of the Leases and the Royalty Lands hereafter
acquired by the Grantor subject to the burdens, liens and encumbrances existing at the

time of such acquisition;

rights to acquire any of the rights described in subparagraphs (a) to (e) of this
definition; and

interests in any rights described in subparagraphs (a) to (f) of this definition;

including, without limitation, all interests and rights known as working interests, royalty
interests, overriding royalty interests, gross overriding royalty interests, profits interests, net
profits interests, revenue interests, net revenue interests, economic interests and other
interests; fractional or undivided interests in any of the foregoing; and all freehold, leasehold
or other interests in any lands, but not including, Tangibles or Miscellaneous Interests;

“Party” means the Royalty Owner or the Grantor;

"Period" means Quarter provided that from time to time the Board of Directors of the Grantor may
give notice that Period shall mean either Month or Quarter, as the case may be, effective at the end
of the Quarter within which such notice is given in each case, and thereafter Period shall mean
whatever is specified by such notice, provided that the two Month period commencing at 7:00 a.m.
Calgary time on January 1, 2003 and the Month commencing at 7:00 a.m. Calgary time on March 1,
2003 shall each be a Period;

“Permitted Investments” means:

(a)

(b)

obligations issued or guaranteed by the Government of Canada or any province of
Canada or any agency or instrumentality thereof;

term deposits, guaranteed investment certificates, certificates of deposit or bankers’
acceptances of any Canadian chartered bank or other financial institution the short-
term debt or deposits of which have been rated at least Al or the equivalent thereof
by Standard & Pools Ratings Group or at least Pl or the equivalent thereof by
Moody’s Investor Service, Inc. or which have been rated at least Al by CBRS Inc.
and Rl by Dominion Bond Rating Service Limited; and
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(c) commercial paper rated at least Al or the equivalent by CBRS Inc. and Rl (high) by
Dominion Bond Rating Service Limited, in each case maturing within 180 days after
the date of acquisition;

“Person” shall be interpreted broadly and shall include any individual, partnership, joint venture, body
corporate, association, trust, unincorporated organization, government or other entity;

“Petroleum Substances” means petroleum, crude bitumen, oil sands, natural gas, coal bed methane,
natural gas liquids, related hydrocarbons and any and all other substances, whether liquid, solid or
gaseous, whether hydrocarbons or not, produced or producible in association with any of the
foregoing, including hydrogen sulphide and sulphur;

“Probable Reserves” means those reserves which analysis of drilling, geological, geophysical and
engineering data does not demonstrate to be proved, but where such analysis suggests the likelihood
oftheir existence and future recovery under current technology and existing or anticipated economic
conditions provided that the Probable Reserves to be obtained by the application of enhanced
recovery processes will be the increased recovery over and above that included in Proved Reserves
which can be realistically estimated for the pool on the basis of enhanced recovery processes which
can be reasonably expected to be instituted in the future;

“Proceeds Account” means the interest bearing account maintained by the Grantor in trust for the
Royalty Fund with a Canadian chartered bank pursuant to Section 8.3;

“Production Costs” means, in respect of a Period and without duplication, the following items:

(a)  Debt Service Charges;

(b) the Grantor’s Share of all costs and expenses (including, both operating costs and
Capital Costs) in respect of the Properties and the Title and Operating Documents
incurred in such Period, including, without limitation:

() costs and expenses for lifting or otherwise recovering Grantor’s Share of
Production (including, without limitation, costs and expenses of waterflood,
miscible flood and other secondary and tertiary recovery operations);

(ii) costs and expenses for extracting and processing Grantor’s Share of
Production (including without limitation costs and expenses of compressing,

dehydrating, separating and treating Grantor’s Share of Production);

(i)  royalty and other amounts pursuant to the Leases (other than Non-Deductible
Crown Royalties);

(iv)  costs and expenses for storing or stockpiling Grantor’s Share of Production;

(v)  costs and expenses for gathering and transporting (whether by pipelines,
trucking or otherwise) Grantor’s Share of Production to the point of sale;




©

(d)

(®)

(vi)
(vii)

(viii)

(ix)

)
(xi)

(xii)

(xii)

(xiv)

(xv)

(xvi)
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costs and expenses for marketing Grantor’s Share of Production;
drilling costs, completion costs, equipping costs and operating costs of wells;

costs and expenses of obtaining, processing, reprocessing and interpreting of
seismic, geological and other data;

insurance premiums and similar items and property, municipal, production, ad
valorem, mineral and other taxes and assessments in respect of the Royalty
Lands or operations thereon, or the Tangibles or the operation thereof or the
production therefrom;

costs and expenses for the purpose of generating Other Revenues;

costs, expenses and other amounts in respect of Third Party claims arising in
connection with the Properties including, without limitation, claims and
adjustments arising out ofthe acquisition, sale or disposition of the Properties;

costs and expenses for clean-up and remediation of spills of hazardous
substances and other environmental damage and costs and expenses paid for
land reclamation obligations associated with the Properties;

costs and expenses including payments to a sinking fund for abandonment of
wells and decommissioning of Tangibles;

costsand expenses of acquiring Tangibles and Miscellaneous Interests (except
when acquired together with P&NG Rights) and costs and expenses of
maintaining, operating, repairing and replacing Tangibles and Miscellaneous
Interests (including, without limitation, Surface Rights);

all other costs and expenses (including both operating costs and Capital
Costs) pursuant to the Leases or the Title and Operating Documents; and

cash calls paid for any of the costs and expenses enumerated items (i) through
(xv) above, inclusive;

current income taxes, capital taxes and other direct taxes of the Grantor which accrue
during such Period,;

the Grantor’s general overhead and administrative expenses for the Period, including
without limitation the General and Administrative Costs payable in such Period; and

all costs and expenses not listed above related to the Properties which are incurred
during such Periocd;

provided, however, that items (b) through (e) shall not include: (v) Future Acquisition Costs,
(w) depreciation or deferred taxes, (x) losses from Commodity Price Swaps (y) Non-
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Deductible Crown Royalties or (z) any amounts paid with respect to the acquisition of the
shares or other securities of Shiningbank Energy Management Inc.;

“Production Revenues” means, in respect of a Period, the gross proceeds from the sale of the
Grantor’s Share of Production which accrue during such Period (including, without limitation, the
share reserved to the Crown) after taking into account the credit or set off for take or pay payments
plus income from royalties, net profits interests and other similar interests plus the net profit or loss
(which will be a negative amount for this purpose) from Commodity Price Swaps; provided, however,
that Production Revenues shall not include, (x) proceeds of the Grantor in connection with the
disposition of any P&NG Rights and any related Tangibles and Miscellaneous Interests, or (y) ARC
receivable by the Grantor during such Period;

“Properties” means the Initial Properties and the Additional Properties;

“Proved Reserves” means reserves estimated as recoverable with a high degree of certainty under
current technology and existing economic conditions in the case of constant price and cost analyses
and anticipated economic conditions in the case of escalated price and cost analyses, from that portion
ofa reservoir which can be reasonably evaluated as economically productive on the basis of analysis
of drilling, geological, geophysical and engineering data, including the reserves to be obtained by
enhanced recovery processes demonstrated to be economic and technically successful in the subject
IEServoir;

“Quarter” means the period from 7:00 a.m. Calgary time on the Execution Date to 7:00 a.m. on
September 30, 1996 and any period of three consecutive Months thereafter which commences on the
first day of January, April, July or October;

“Regulations” means all statutes, laws, rules, orders and regulations in effect from time to time and
made by governments or governmental boards or agencies having jurisdiction over the Properties;

“Royalty” means the entitlement granted herein to receive the Royalty Income subject to the terms
described herein;

“Royalty Disposition Proceeds” means 99% of the proceeds of assignment, sale or other disposition
of the Properties, or any portion thereof (excluding proceeds in respect of Tangibles and
Miscellaneous Interests directly related thereto) to the extent not utilized to repay borrowings of the
Grantor;

“Royalty Fund” means Shiningbank Energy Income Fund;

“Royalty Income” means in respect of a Period the amount by which 99% of Production Revenue
for such Period exceeds 99% of the Deductible Production Costs for such Period;

“Royalty Lands” means the lands to which the P&NG Rights relate;

“Royalty Owner” means Shiningbank Energy Income Fund, a trust formed in accordance with the
laws of Alberta pursuant to the Trust Indenture or such other owner or owners of the Royalty;
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“Royalty Owner Working Capital Amount” means at any particular time the amount of the
Royalty Owner’s available working capital at such time including, without limitation, the proceeds
received by the Royalty Owner from the issue of any Trust Units after the Closing Date and the funds
deposited in the Proceeds Account;

“Royalty Payment” means in respect of a Period, the payment for such Period to which the Royalty
Owner is entitled pursuant to subsection 2.1(b);

“Special Resolution” means a resolution passed by a majority of not less than 66 2/3% of the votes
cast, either in person or by proxy, at a meeting of Unitholders (at which a quorum is present
consisting of at least two Persons representing at least 10% of the votes attaching to all units held by
Unitholders entitled to vote on such resolution), called for the purpose of approving such resolution,
or approved in writing by not less than 66 2/3% of the Unitholders entitled to vote on such resolution;

"Subsidiary" and "Subsidiaries" have the meaning set out in subsection 2.2(c);

“Surface Rights” means rights (whether fee simple or pursuant to orders, licences, leases, easements,
rights-of-way or otherwise) of the Grantor to enter upon, use or occupy the surface of:

(a) any Royalty Lands or lands pooled or unitized therewith;
(b) the lands on which any of the Tangibles is located; and
(©) any lands required to gain access to the foregoing lands;

“Swap Arrangements” means Commodity Price Swaps, Currency Exchange Swaps and Interest
Rate Swaps;

“Tangibles” means:

(@) the interests of the Grantor in and to all tangible property, apparatus, plant,
equipment, machinery and facilities used or held for use for purposes of producing
Petroleum Substances or for storing, measuring, compressing, treating, processing or
collecting Petroleum Substances including, without limitation, the interests of the
Grantor in the tangible equipment described in Schedule A.

(b) all right, title, estate and interest, whether absolute or contingent, legal or beneficial,
present or future, vested or not, held by the Grantor in connection with the P&NG
Rights in and to any tangible property, apparatus, plant, equipment, machinery and
facilities, fixed or non-fixed, real or personal, used or capable of use in exploiting any
Petroleum Substances (whether the P&NG Rights to which such Petroleum
Substances are attributable are owned by the Grantor or by others or both), including:

0 systems, plants and facilities used or useful in producing, gathering,
compressing, dehydrating, scrubbing, processing, treating, separating,
collecting, refrigerating, refining, measuring, storing, transporting or shipping
Petroleum Substances;
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(i1) tangible property and assets used or intended for use in exploring for,
producing, storing, injecting or removing Petroleum Substances; and.

(iii)  allextensions, additions and accretions to any item described in subparagraphs
(1) or (ii) of this definition;

excluding the lands on which any system, plant or facility, property or asset described
in subparagraphs (a) or (b) of this definition is located, but including all producing,
shut-in, injection, disposal and other wells, casing, tubing, weltheads, buildings, plants,
erections, production equipment, improvements, flowlines, pipelines, pipeline
connections, extraction facilities, meters, generators, motors, compressors, separators,
gas treating and processing equipment, dehydrators, scrubbers, pumps, refineries,
pump jacks, tanks, boilers, communications equipment, enhanced recovery systems
and other machinery, apparatus and equipment;

“Tax Act” means the /ncome Tax Act (Canada), R.S.C. 1952 ¢.148 and the regulations thereunder,
as amended; ‘

“Third Party” means any Person other than the Grantor and the Royalty Owner;

“Title and Operating Documents” means, in respect of the Properties, all of the agreements,
contracts, instruments and other documents (including Leases, reservations, permits, licences of all
sorts, exploration agreements, operating agreements, unit agreements, pooling agreements,
assignments, trust declarations and other agreements to recognize the interests of the Grantor,
participationagreements, farm-in and farm-out agreements, royalty agreements, purchase agreements
and transfers; gas, oil, condensate and other production sale contracts; gathering, common stream,
transportation and processing agreements; and agreements for the construction, ownership and/or
operation of Tangibles) by virtue of which such P&NG Rights or Tangibles were acquired or
constructed or are held by the Grantor or pursuant to which the construction, ownership, opération,
exploration, exploitation, development, production, transportation or marketing of such P&NG
Rights, Tangibles or Petroleum Substances are subject or which grant rights which are or may be used
by the Grantor in connection therewith; and the rights and benefits (except for P&NG Rights) granted
under or created by such documents;

“Trust Indenture” means a trust indenture dated May 16, 1996, as amended among the Trustee,
Shiningbank Energy Management Inc., Richardson Greenshields of Canada Limited and Montreal
Trust Company of Canada;

“Trust Unit” means a fractional undivided interest in the Royalty Fund, which represents an
undivided beneficial interest in any distributions from the Royalty Fund and in the net assets of the

Royalty Fund 1n the event of termination or winding-up of the Royalty Fund;

“Trustee” means Computershare Trust Company of Canada in its capacity as trustee for and on
behalf of the Royalty Fund; and

“Unitholders” means holders, from time to time, of Trust Units.
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1.1 Number and Gender

Words importing the singular number include the plural and vice versa and words importing gender
include the masculine, feminine and neuter genders.

1.2 References

The table of contents and headings herein are for convenience of reference only and shall not affect
the construction or interpretation of this Agreement. A reference herein to an Article, Section or
subsection without further reference shall be a reference to an Article, Section or subsection of this
Agreement.

1.3 Choice of Law

This Agreement shall be governed by the laws of the Province of Alberta and the laws of Canada
applicable therein and shall be construed, interpreted and performed in accordance therewith.

1.4 Attornment

Any legal action or proceedings with respect to this Agreement shall be brought in the courts of the
Province of Alberta and the courts of appeal therefrom. Each Party hereby attorns to and accepts for
itself and in respect of its assets generally, irrevocably and unconditionally, the exclusive jurisdiction
of such courts.

1.5  Monetary Sums
All references herein to dollar amounts or sums of money are to lawful funds of Canada.
1.6  In Specie Distribution

In the event of an in specie distribution of an interest in the Royalty pursuant to the rights of
retraction in the Trust Indenture, as amended, there will be no further acquisition of properties under
this Agreement.

Article 2
Royalty
2.1  Royalty Grant

(a) Subject to the terms and conditions hereof, the Grantor hereby grants, transfers,
assigns and conveys the Royalty to the Royalty Owner.

(b) Subject to the terms and conditions hereof, the Royalty Owner, as the owner of the
Royalty, shall be entitled to a payment from the Grantor with respect to each Period
equal to the Royalty Income and the Grantor hereby covenants and agrees to make
such payment.
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The Royalty Owner shall reimburse to the Grantor 99% of all Non-Deductible Crown
Royalties payable by the Grantor in respect of the Properties or the production of
Petroleum Substances therefrom. The Grantor shall be entitled to set off Royalty
Payments against amounts reimbursable to it pursuant to this subsection 2.1(c).

Subject to Section 6.6, the Grantor may acquire Additional Properties. Upon the
acquisition of Additional Properties by the Grantor, such Additional Properties shall
also automatically be subject to the Royalty, subject, to the extent applicable, to the
security described in subsection 9.2(b).

Payment for Royalty Grant

(a)

(b)

(©

The Royalty Owner shall pay to the Grantor as consideration for the granting and
transferring of the Royalty:

() the Initial Purchase Payment; and
(i1) the Deferred Purchase Payments.

The Grantor acknowledges that the Royalty Owner has paid an estimate of the Initial
Purchase Payment on the Execution Date by way of a cash payment in the sum of
$27,612,398.00 and the balance of $21,157,332 by way of an absolute assignment of
the Royalty Owner’s right, title and interest in and to the Instalment Receivables and
certain rights under the Instalment Receipt Agreement. Within 120 days of the
Execution Date the amount of the Initial Purchase Payment shall be finalized and the
Royalty Owner or the Grantor shall pay to the other the underpayment or
overpayment, respectively.

If the Grantor acquires any Additional Properties, whether by way of a purchase of
Additional Properties or the acquisition of the shares of a corporation or an interest
in a partnership, trust or other entity (such corporations, partnerships, trusts and other
entities being hereinafter referred to as a "Subsidiary” or "Subsidiaries") that owns
Additional Properties and the subsequent amalgamation, winding-up, liquidation or
similar combination (a "Combination") of such Subsidiary with the Grantor, the
Royalty Owner shall make a Deferred Purchase Payment to the Grantor in an amount
equal to 99% of the amount of the purchase price (including adjustments) for such
Additional Properties that is allocated to Canadian resource property, to the extent
that such purchase price is not financed with indebtedness incurred or assumed by the
Grantor, provided that in the event of an acquisition of Additional Properties by way
of acquisition of a Subsidiary and its subsequent Combination with the Grantor for
purposes of determining the amount of the Deferred Purchase Payment respecting
such Additional Property:

Q) the purchase price for such Additional Property shall be deemed to include the
purchase price paid for the securities of such Subsidiary and the indebtedness
of such Subsidiary that is not discharged prior to such acquisition; and
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(i1) the purchase price for such Additional Property shall be allocated among the
assets of such Subsidiary in accordance with their fair market value and the
indebtedness of such Subsidiary and any indebtedness incurred to acquire such
Subsidiary or assumed as a result of such acquisition (including for greater
certainty all indebtedness of such Subsidiary that is not discharged prior to
such acquisition) shall be deemed to be indebtedness incurred or'assumed by
the Grantor in that regard, and such indebtedness shall be first allocated to any
Canadian resource property that is included in such Additional Property up to
the fair market value of such Canadian resource property, and the remaining
indebtedness, if any, shall be allocated among the other components of such
Additional Property pro rata in accordance with their respective fair market
values.

(d)  Ifthe Grantor designates any Capital Costs on or before the date on which the same
are incurred, the Royalty Owner shall make a Deferred Purchase Payment to the
Grantor in an amount equal to 99% of the amount of such designated Capital Costs
incurred by the Grantor to the extent that such Capital Costs are not financed with
indebtedness incurred or assumed by the Grantor.

(e) If at any time while the Royalty Owner has an obligation to make a Deferred Purchase
Payment to the Grantor, the Grantor is indebted to the Royalty Owner, the Deferred
Purchase Payment shall be set off against such indebtedness.

® If the Royalty Owner issues any Trust Units after the Closing Date (a "Future
Offering"), the Royalty Owner shall make, if requested to do so by the Grantor, a
Deferred Purchase Payment to the Grantor in such amount as may be specified by the
Grantor, not exceeding the lesser of:

) the net proceeds of the Future Offering after deducting, without limitation,
underwriters’ fees and legal, accounting, engineering, professional fees and
other disbursements; and

(i) 99% of the principal amount of any outstanding indebtedness under the Credit
Facility which reasonably relates to the Canadian resource property purchase
price component of any Additional Property acquired by the Grantor on or
before such Future Offering with the proceeds of the Credit Facility.

2.3 INTENTIONALLY DELETED
2.4  Use of Other Revenues and Grantor Disposition Proceeds

The Grantor shall not pay or be required to pay to the Royalty Owner the Other Revenues or the
Grantor Disposition Proceeds. The Royalty Owner shall have no interest of any kind whatsoever in
the Other Revenues or the Grantor Disposition Proceeds, provided however, after the Closing Date
and as soon as reasonably practicable after receipt thereof by the Grantor, the Grantor shall use the
Other Revenues and such portion of the Grantor Disposition Proceeds not utilized to repay
borrowings of the Grantor for any of the following purposes:
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(a) purchase of Permitted Investments;
(b) payment of Future Acquisition Costs;
©) general corporate purposes of the Grantor; and

(d)  payment of or provision for Production Costs (which would otherwise be deducted
in determining Deductible Production Costs);

provided that the Grantor shall not use the Other Revenues for the payment of or provision for
Production Costs unless the grantor is of the opinion that such payment will not have any adverse tax
consequences for the Grantor or the Royalty Owner. :

2.5  No Right to Take In Kind

The Royalty Owner shall not have the right:

(a) to take in kind all or any portion of the Grantor’s Share of Production for a Period;
or

(b) to separately sell or market all or any portion of the Grantor’s Share of Production
for a Period.

2.6  No Share of Production

The Royalty Owner shall not own or have any rights to any of the Grantor’s Share of Production.
2.7  Amendment to Schedule A

The Grantor shall from time to time as the P&NG Rights, Tangibles and Miscellaneous Interests
pertaining to the Initial Properties are assigned, conveyed, surrendered or otherwise disposed of
pursuant hereto and as Additional Properties are acquired or assigned, conveyed, surrendered or
otherwise disposed of pursuant hereto, issue a revised composite Schedule A to this Agreement. Such
revised Schedule A shall bear the effective date of the revision, shall be numbered sequentially to the
most recent revision issued by the Grantor, shall be initialled by the Grantor and a copy thereof shall
be sent to the Royalty Owner.

2.8  Petroleum Substances Used in Operations

The Royalty shall not apply to Petroleum Substances lost or consumed in operations.

2.9  Not an Interest in Land

The Royalty:

(a) is not a covenant attached to or running with the Royalty Lands;
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is not an interest in land,;
is not an interest in real property; and

does not attach to or form part of the Leases.

Article 3
Payments and Statements

Payments

(a)

(b)

(©)

(d)

(e)

®

On the fifteenth day of the Month following the end of a Period or the next following
Business Day, if such day is not a Business Day, the Grantor shall pay the Royalty
Payment for such Period to the Royalty Owner.

To the extent that Royalty Disposition Proceeds create a credit balance in the
Grantor’s cumulative Canadian oil and gas property expense account (as defined
under the Tax Act) as at the end of any calendar year, the Grantor shall remit to the
Royalty Owner on or before the tenth day of the following January, an amount from
the Proceeds Account equal to such credit balance so as to permit the distribution
thereof.

Royalty Disposition Proceeds shall be paid by the Grantor to the Royalty Owner in
accordance with any required approval obtained from the Unitholders or the board of
directors of the Grantor to an assignment, sale, exchange or other disposition of
Properties and in any event, any Royalty Disposition Proceeds which are not used to
purchase Additional Properties within one year from the date the same are deposited
in the Proceeds Account shall be forthwith paid by the Grantor to the Royalty Owner.

On the fifteenth day of the Month following the end of a Period or the next following
Business Day, if such day is not a Business Day, interest income accrued on the
Proceeds Account during such Period shall be paid by the Grantor to the Royalty
Owner.

Where there are amounts owing by a Royalty Owner as a result of the provisions of
this Agreement, any payments pursuant to this Article may be offset against such
amounts owing

The Grantor shall satisfy, perform and discharge all obligations and responsibilities
under the Income Tax Act (Canada) or any similar provincial legislation, including
withholding any taxes required to be withheld from such payments.

Statements

(a)

Each Royalty Payment in respect of a Quarter, and each Royalty Payment in respect
of the last Month in a Quarter, shall be accompanied by a statement setting forth:
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(1) the amount of the Royalty Payment for such Quarter;
(1)  all calculations used in determining the Royalty Payment for such Quarter;

(i)  the Grantor’s Share of Production (itemized by product) sold during such
Quarter;

(iv)  the Non-Deductible Crown Royalties for such Quarter;
v) the Production Revenues for such Quarter;
(vi)  the Other Revenues for such Quarter;

(vil)  anitemized list of the Production Costs and Deductible Production Costs for
such Quarter;

(viii) the Properties surrendered, farmed out, disposed of or acquired m such
Quarter;

(ix)  wells drilled, cased, or abandoned in such Quarter; and

(x) the amount of the Proceeds Account and Royalty Owner Working Capital
Account as at the end of such Quarter and the amount of the Deferred
Purchase Payments, if any, made in such Quarter.

3.3  Overpayments

If the payment made by the Grantor on account of the Royalty for a Period is greater than the actual
amount of the Royalty Payment for such Period, the Grantor will be entitled to recover the
overpayment by set off against Royalty Payments for subsequent Periods.

34 Carry Forward of Deductible Production Costs

If the Deductible Production Costs for a Period exceed the Production Revenues for such Period,
there shall be no Royalty Payment for such Period and the amount of the excess shall be carried
forward and treated as Deductible Production Costs for the following Period and, if required,
subsequent Periods.

3.5 Collection of Production Revenues and Other Revenues

The Grantor will use all commercially reasonable efforts to obtain the payment of Production
Revenues and Other Revenues but shall not have any liability to the Royalty Owner to the extent that
it fails to collect them, notwithstanding such commercially reasonable efforts to do so.
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Article 4
Insurance
4.1 Maintenance of Insurance

The Grantor shall obtain and maintain such property damage and third party liability insurance with
respect to the Properties with reputable insurers in such amounts and covering such risks as it
reasonably determines to be appropriate, having regard to the insurance maintained by the operators
pursuant to the Title and Operating Documents.

Article §
Books and Records

51 Examination

During the term hereof and for a period of two years thereafter the Grantor shall maintain in Calgary,
Alberta complete books and records pertaining to (i) the Royalty, (ii) Petroleum Substances
attributable to the Royalty Lands consumed or sold by the Grantor, and (iii) all calculations made by
the Grantor to determine the amount of payments on account of the Royalty. The Royalty Owner
shall have the right at all reasonable times during business hours to inspect such books and records
to the extent reasonably necessary in order to verify the amount paid or payable hereunder in respect
of the Royalty.

5.2  Audit

Upon notice to the Grantor, the Royalty Owner shall have the right to audit the books and records
referred to in Section 5.1 within the 24 month period next following the end of the calendar year to
which they relate. The costs of any such audit shall be borne by the Royalty Owner. Any claims of
discrepancies disclosed by such audit shall be made in writing to the Grantor within two months of
the completion of such audit. The Grantor shall respond to any claims within six months of receipt
of such claims. If the Grantor is unable to respond to the claims during the six month period, one
extension of three months may be allowed if requested in writing by the Grantor within such six
month period. If the Grantor disagrees with such claim or discrepancy and such matter cannot be
settled, then the matter will be referred to arbitration in accordance with the Arbitration Act (Alberta)
as amended. In the event that the Grantor agrees with the claim or discrepancy or the claim or
discrepancy is upheld, in whole or in part, by arbitration, the Grantor will forthwith rectify same and
where such rectification includes payment of sums, promptly credit such sums to the Production
Revenues, Other Revenues, Grantor Disposition Proceeds or otherwise as appropriate.

5.3 Confidentiality

The Royalty Owner shall keep all information provided to it pursuant to this Agreement (including,
without limitation, information made available to it in connection with the audits, examinations and
inspections conducted by it pursuant to the foregoing provisions of this Article 5) strictly confidential,
except for information which it is required by law to be disclosed or becomes publicly available
through no act or omission of the Royalty Owner or which becomes available to the Royalty Owner
from a source other than the Grantor, without confidentiality restrictions.
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Article 6
Operations

6.1 Generally

Having regard to and subject to the provisions of the Title and Operating Documents and the
Grantor’s rights and obligations thereunder, the Grantor shall use all reasonable efforts so that:

(a)

(b)

(©)

(d)

operations on the Royalty Lands and lands pooled or unitized therewith for the
recovery of Petroleum Substances and the operation of the Tangibles are conducted
in compliance with all applicable Regulations and in accordance with good oil and gas
field practices;

all duties and obligations of the Grantor under the Title and Operating Documents are
diligently and promptly performed and all amounts payable as rental, royalty or similar
charges from time to time due in respect of the Properties or in accordance with
applicable laws are paid and all other actions as may be reasonably necessary to
maintain the Title and Operating Documents in good standing at all times are taken,
subject to the terms and provisions hereof; and

all Surface Rights needed for the proper operation of the Royalty Lands and the
Tangibles are acquired and maintained in good standing and all taxes, rates,
assessments and other amounts from time to time payable in respect of the Royalty
Lands and the Tangibles are promptly paid.

the Grantor:

(1) will pay or cause to be paid, as they become due and payable, Grantor’s Share
of all accounts of contractors and claims for wages or salaries for services
rendered or performed for the Grantor and for materials supplied to the

Grantor;

(1) will keep the Royalty Lands free from liens and encumbrances resulting from
the failure to pay the costs described in subsection 6.1(d)(i) above, unless and
to the extent there is a bona fide dispute with respect thereto; and

(iii)  will not permit any dues or claims from any Workers’ Compensation Board
or similar authority established under any Regulations to become in arrears
with respect to Grantor’s employees.

6.2  No Obligation to Develop

Nothing contained in this Agreement shall impose any obligation, expressed or 1mp11ed on the
Grantor to explore or develop the Royalty Lands.

6.3  Compliance with and Maintenance of Title and Operating Documents
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The Grantor covenants to and in favour of the Royalty Owner that, except as provided in Article 7,
the Grantor will:

(a) observe and perform all of its duties and obligations under the Title and Operating
Documents; and

(b)  not, without the written consent of the Royalty Owners owning greater than 50% of
the Royalty which will not be unreasonably withheld or delayed:

(1) agree to the amendment or termination of the Title and Operating Documents;
or

(i)  waive or consent to a departure from the performance by any Person of any
of such Person’s obligations under the Title and Operating Documents;

which could have a material, adverse effect on the Royalty or the rights and
obligations of the Royalty Owner in respect of the Royalty, provided, however, that
acts or omissions by Persons (including operators) without specific authorization from
the joint operators and acts or omissions approved by affirmative vote of the joint
operators which the Grantor did not vote in favour of and which are binding upon the
Grantor shall not constitute a breach of the foregoing provisions.

6.4 Rights and Obligations

Except as otherwise expressly provided for herein, as between the Royalty Owner and the Grantor,
the Grantor shall have exclusive control and authority over the production, operation, exploration and
development of the Royalty Lands and lands pooled or unitized therewith and the recovery of
Petroleum Substances from the Royalty Lands and lands pooled or unitized therewith and the
marketing thereof. As between the Royalty Owner and the Grantor, the Grantor shall make all
decisions regarding drilling, completion, equipping, suspension and abandonment of wells and the
rates of production of Petroleum Substances therefrom. Subject to the other provisions of this Article
6, the Grantor shall undertake and implement such activities in such manner as it determines in its sole
discretion. The Royalty Owner acknowledges that, as owner of the Royalty, it shall not be entitled
to any interest in the Properties or the Title and Operating Documents and the Grantor acknowledges
that the Royalty Owner, as owner of the Royalty, shall not be liable for any of the duties or
obligations arising thereunder. The Grantor shall arrange for the sale of the Grantor’s Share of
Production on such terms and conditions as the Grantor (acting in good faith and in accordance with
good oil and gas field practices) may determine.

6.5 Capital Costs

(a) Subject to subsection 6.5(b) below the Grantor may approve future Capital Costs or
other obligations intended to maintain or improve production from the Properties. The
Grantor shall not approve Capital Costs on exploration drilling without the approval
of the Unitholders except where such drilling relates to the extension of an existing
pool. The Grantor may finance Capital Costs by borrowings or by using Grantor’s
working capital. The Royalty Owner acknowledges that the non-approval of Capital
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(b)
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Costs on exploration or development drilling may result in a production penalty or
forfeiture under the Title and Operating Documents.

The aggregate amount of Capital Costs incurred by the Grantor during any calendar
year shall not exceed 15% of the “net cash flow” from the Properties unless financed
with borrowings or additional issuances of Trust Units. For the purposes of this
subsection, “net cash flow” means the amount by which Production Revenues for
such calendar year exceeds Deductible Production Costs for such calendar year, plus
Capital Costs for such calendar year less all applicable Non-Deductible Crown
Royalties net of ARC payable to the Grantor for such calendar year.

Borrowing

(a)

(b)

Subject to subsection 6.6(b) below, the Grantor may borrow funds pursuant to the
Credit Facilities or from the Royalty Owner or otherwise to finance the purchase of
Additional Properties, for Capital Costs or for other financial obligations or
encumbrances in respect of the Properties or for working capital purposes and grant
security on the Properties in priority to the Royalty in accordance with subsection
9.3(b);

The Grantor may not borrow funds under subsection 6.6(a) in mrcumstances where
immediately after such proposed borrowing:

® the Grantor’s total indebtedness pursuant to the Credit Facilities to parties
other than the Trustee and the Grantor’s Affiliates will exceed 40% of the
aggregate Asset Value of all Initial Properties and the Additional Properties
owned by the Grantor and its Affiliates, including for greater certainty any
Additional Properties to be acquired with the proceeds of such proposed
borrowing; or

(i)  the projected Debt Service Charges for the next twelve Months exceed 30%
of the projected Royalty Payments for the next twelve Months.

Notwithstanding the above limitations on borrowing:

(©)

(d)

Any present or future liability or obligation of the Grantor to a financial institution in
respect of a borrowing that contravenes subsection 6.6(b) including any obligation to
repay a financial institution upon demand, shall not be affected, reduced or impaired

by such contravention; and

the priority, validity, effectiveness and enforceability of any mortgage, charge, security
interest or other security whatsoever now or hereafter granted by the Grantor to any
financial institution and which contravenes subsection 6.6(b) shall not be affected,

prejudiced or impaired by such contravention.

Costs of Tangibles and Miscellaneous Interests
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The cost of Tangibles and Miscellaneous Interests comprising any Additional Properties shall be paid
by the Grantor utilizing its own working capital or funds borrowed by it for such purposes pursuant
to the Credit Facilities or from the Royalty Owner or otherwise.

6.8 Site Restoration Costs

If an In Specie Distribution has occurred, the Grantor may, at its discretion, create a sinking fund to
fund site restoration and other liabilities as a result of abandonment of wells.

Article 7
Farmouts, Pooling, Unitization, Surrender, Abandonment

7.1 Farmouts

The Grantor shall have full right, power and authority to Farmout (and subsequently assign any
interest earned pursuant thereto) any of the P&NG Rights comprised in the Properties, from time to
time, provided that, in the Grantor’s sole discretion, the Farmout is prudent and the terms thereof are
in accordance with normal oil and gas industry practices.

7.2 Pooling and Unitization

The Grantor shall have full right, power and authority to pool or unitize any of the P&NG Rights
comprised in the Properties, from time to time, with other P&NG rights provided that, in the
Grantor’s sole discretion, the pooling or unitization is prudent and the terms thereof are in accordance
with normal oil and gas industry practices.

7.3 Surrender

Subject to the Title and Operating Documents, the Grantor may surrender a Lease, in whole or in
part, without the consent of the Royalty Owner, provided that in the reasonable opinion of the
Grantor there are no wells located on the lands covered by the Lease capable of producing Petroleum
Substances in paying quantities from the zones which the Grantor proposes to surrender. From and
after any such surrender, this Agreement and the Royalty shall cease to apply to the Royalty Lands
surrendered except as to matters which occurred prior to the surrender.

7.4 Abandonment and Reclamation
The Grantor shall have the full right, power and authority without the prior consent of the Royalty
Owner to authorize the abandonment of any well comprised in the Properties and/or the reclamation

of any of the Properties if:

(a)  the Grantor determines in its sole discretion that such well is not capable of producing
Petroleum Substances in paying quantities;

(b) the operator of such well or portion of the Properties recommends or elects to do so;
or
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(c) it is in accordance with the Regulations or any order of any government or agency.

Article 8
Disposition of Properties

8.1  Dispositions of Properties

Except as provided in Article 7 and Sections 8.2, 8.3 and 9.2, the Grantor shall not assign, sell or
otherwise dispose of any interest in the Properties without first notifying the Royalty Owner of its
intention to do so and obtaining the written consent of the Royalty Owner, which consent shall not
be unreasonably withheld or delayed. ]

8.2  Release of Royalty

The Grantor may assign, sell, exchange or otherwise dispose of all or any portion of the Properties
and the Royalty Owner irrevocably authorizes the Grantor to release the Royalty therefrom provided
that the Grantor determines such assignment, sale, exchange or other disposition would be in the best
interests of the Unitholders and that such assignment, sale, exchange or other disposition is in
accordance with the following:

(@) an assignment, sale, exchange or other disposition of Properties for proceeds in excess
of 5% of Asset Value must be approved by the board of directors of the Grantor. In
connection with such approval, the board of directors of the Grantor shall determine
whether the Royalty Disposition Proceeds in respect of such assignment sale or other
disposition should be distributed to Unitholders or used to purchase Additional
Properties; and

(b) all assignments, sales, exchanges or other dispositions of Properties in a calendar year
having an aggregate Asset Value of greater than 25% of the Asset Value of all
Properties must be approved by a Special Resolution of the Unitholders. In
connection with such approval, the Unitholders shall determine whether the net
proceeds of such assignments, sales, exchanges or other dispositions should be
distributed to the Unitholders or used to purchase Additional Properties.

8.3  Proceeds of Disposition of Properties

(a) As consideration for the release of the Royalty as provided for in Section 8.2, the
Grantor shall, forthwith upon the receipt of any Royalty Disposition Proceeds, deposit
the same in an interest bearing account maintained by the Grantor in trust for the
Royalty Fund with a Canadian chartered bank (the “Proceeds Account”).

(b) Subject to the entitlement of the Royalty Owner to receive payments in respect of
interest eamed on the Proceeds Account and to receive distributions of principal from
the Proceeds Account as specifically provided for in this Agreement, the Grantor shall
hold and apply the funds deposited in the Proceeds Account towards the Royalty
‘Owner’s obligation to make Deferred Purchase Payments in accordance with the
provisions in this Agreement.
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Article 9
Assignment

9.1 Consent to Assign; Assumption

Except as provided in Section 9.2, a Party shall not assign, sell, mortgage, pledge, charge or grant
a security interest in, or otherwise dispose of any interest under this Agreement without first notifying
the other Party of its intention to do so and obtaining the written consent of the other Party, which
consent will not be unreasonably withheld or delayed. Subject to subsections 9.2, no such assignment,
sale or transfer shall be effective as against the other Party until the assignee, purchaser or transferee
shall have executed and delivered a written undertaking, in favour of, and enforceable by, such other
Party, agreeing to be bound by and to perform all of the terms and provisions of this Agreement
applicable to the interest assigned, sold or disposed of.

9.2  Grant of Security
Notwithstanding Sections 8.1, 8.2 and 9.1:
(a) the Grantor, without the consent of the Royalty Owner, may:
® dispose of tools, machinefy and equipment which is surplus to its needs;
(ii) dispose of Petroleum Substances in the ordinary course of business;

b the Grantor, without the consent of the Royalty Owner, may mortgage, pledge,

charge or grant a security interest in the Initial Properties, the Additional Properties
or this Agreement;

(L to secure its obligations and liabilities under the Credit Facilities or under
Swap Arrangements, which security may be granted in priority to the Royalty;
and

(i1) to finance the purchase of Additional Properties or for Capital Costs or other
financial obligations or encumbrances in respect of the Initial Propertics
and/or the Additional Properties or for working capital purposes, and such
security on the Initial Properties and/or the Additional Properties may be
granted in priority to the Royalty to secure the borrowing of such funds,

and may enter into subordination and postponement agreements with the holders of
the obligations owed under the Credit Facilities, Swap Arrangements and other
financing transactions confirming the subordination of the Royalty thereto.

(c) the Lender or a receiver or receiver-manager of the Grantor or of all or part of its
assets or any other enforcement agent may sell, mortgage or otherwise dispose of the
Properties or the Grantor’s interest under this Agreement, in whole or in part, without
the approval of the Royalty Owner in the course of realization on security for the
Grantor’s liabilities and obligations under or in connection with the Credit Facilities
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or Swap Arrangements and the Royalty may be released, terminated or foreclosed out
in accordance with subsection 9.2(d); and

(d) if all or a portion of the Properties is to be sold, transferred or conveyed (a
“Disposition”) by a receiver or receiver-manager of the Grantor or any of its assets
or a secured creditor of the Grantor in the course of enforcement of any security
having priority over the Royalty (a “Disposing Person”) and the Royalty in relation
thereto is released, terminated or foreclosed, the portion of the proceeds of the
Disposition, net of the cost of the Disposition, to which the Royalty Owner shall be
entitled on account of the release, termination or foreclosure of the Royalty and the
Royalty Owner’s interest in this Agreement or portion thercof pursuant to the
Disposition shall be the greater of the following:

G  $10.00; and

(i) 99% of the amount remaining (the “Remainder”) after the proceeds of the
Disposition, net of the cost of Disposition, have been applied to (A)
Production Costs for the Month in which the Disposition occurs (determined
as if such Month ended on the date that the Disposition occurred) and (B) the
amount of all outstanding liabilities and obligations in respect of the Credit
Facilities and Swap Arrangements, to the extent (if any) not included'in such
Production Costs; provided that payment of the Remainder pro rata to the
Royalty Owners shall only be made when payments by the Person to whom
the Disposition is made are received and after the applications described in
items (A) and (B) above have been made.

The balance of the net proceeds of a Disposition not allocated to the interest in the
Royaltyand the Royalty Owner’s interest in this Agreement released pursuant thereto
will be allocated to the interest in the Properties disposed of pursuant thereto.

Article 10
Term of Agreement

10.1 Term

Subject to Article 9, this Agreement shall continue in full force and effect until there are no Properties
to which the Royalty applies. Thereafter, this Agreement shall nevertheless remain in full force and
effect:

(a) in respect of any accrued and unfulfilled obligations of either Party; and

(b) as to Articles 5 and 9.
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Article 11
Notices and Payments

11.1 Addresses for Service and Payments

All payments hereunder in respect of the Royalty shall be paid or tendered to the Royalty Owner at
its address for notices hereunder or such other place or depository as the Royalty Owner may request
by written notice to the Grantor, provided that no change in the place at which payments on account
of the Royalty are to be paid or tendered shall be effective until 30 days after written notice thereof
has been provided to the Grantor by the Royalty Owner.

11.2  Giving and Deemed Receipt of Notices

Whether or not so stipulated herein, all notices, communications and statements (herein called
“notices”) required or permitted hereunder shall be in writing. Notices may be served:

(a) by delivering them to the Party on which they are to be served at the Party’s address
for notices hereunder, provided such delivery shall be during normal business hours
of the addressee. Such notices shall be deemed received by the addressee when
actually delivered as aforesaid; or

(b) by telecopier (or by any other like method by which a written and recorded message
may be sent) directed to the Party on which they are to be served at the Party’s
telecopy number for notices hereunder. Such notices shall be deemed received by the
addressee thereof (i) when actually received by it if sent within the normal working
hours of a Business Day of the addressee, or (ii) otherwise at the commencement of
the next ensuing Business Day following transmission thereof, whichever is earlier.

11.3  Addresses

The address for service for telecopy numbers and notices hereunder of each of the Parties shall be as
follows:

Grantor:
Shiningbank Energy Ltd.
1050, 250 - 6th Avenue S. W,
Calgary, AB T2P 3C4

Attention: Chief Financial Officer
Telecopy: (403) 231-3099
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Royalty Owner:
Computershare Trust Company of Canada
710, 530 - 8th Avenue S.W.
Calgary, Alberta
T2P 3S8

Attention: Manager, Corporate Trust Department
Telecopy: (403) 267-6598

11.4 Change of Address

A Party may change its said address or telecopy number for notices hereunder by notice to the other

Party.
11.5  In Specie Distribution

Should an /n Specie Distribution occur, the new Royalty Owner shall provide an address for payment
and service to the Grantor.

Article 12
Miscellaneous

12.1 Enurement

Subject to Section 9.1, this Agreement shall enure to the benefit of and be binding upon the Parties
and their respective successors and permitted assigns.

12.2 Waivers in Writing

No waiver by any Party of any breach of any of the covenants, conditions and provisions herein
contained shall be effective or be binding on any other Party unless such waiver is expressed in
writing and any waiver so expressed shall not limit or affect its rights with respect to any other or
future breach. |

12.3 Time of Essence

Time is of the essence of this Agreement.

12.4 No Partnership

Nothing herein shall be construed as creating a partnership and neither Party shall have any
partnership rights or liabilities hereunder or in connection herewith.
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12.5 Severability

This Agreement are severable. In the event of the unenforceability or invalidity of any one or more
of the terms, covenants or conditions of this Agreement under applicable law, such unenforceability
or invalidity shall not render any of other terms, covenants or conditions hereof unenforceable or
invalid and the Parties agree that this Agreement shall be construed as if such unenforceable or invalid
term, covenant or condition was never contained herein.

12.6 Amendments

No amendment, alteration or variation of this Agreement or any of its terms or conditions shall be
binding upon the Parties unless made in writing and signed by the duly authorized representatives of
each of the Parties.

Article 13
Concerning the Trustee

13.1 Acknowledgement

The Parties hereto acknowledge that Computershare Trust Company of Canada is entering into this
Agreement solely in its capacity as trustee of the Royalty Fund and the obligations of the Royalty
Owner hereunder shall not be personally binding upon Computershare Trust Company of Canada or
any of the Unitholders and that any recourse against the Royalty Fund, Computershare Trust
Company of Canada as trustee of the Royalty Fund, or any Unitholder in any manner in respect of
any indebtedness, obligation or liability of the Royalty Owner arising hereunder or arising in
connection herewith or from the matters to which this Agreement relates, if any, including without
limitation, claims based on negligence, tortious behaviour or otherwise, shall be limited to, and
satisfied only out of, the Royalty Fund as defined in the Trust Indenture dated as of May 16, 1996
as it may be amended by supplemental from time to time.

Executed and delivered.

COMPUTERSHARE TRUST COMPANY

OF CANADA, as Trustee for and on behalf

of SHININGBANK ENERGY INCOME

FUND SHININGBANK ENERGY LTD.

Per: Per:

Per: Per:
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Schedule A dated July 31, 1996, as amended, forming part of a
Royalty Agreement dated July 31, 1996 between Computershare
Trust Company of Canada, as Trustee for and on behalf of
Shiningbank Energy Income Fund and Shiningbank Energy Ltd.

P&NG Rights, Tangibles and Miscellaneous Interests




Royalty Agreenient

Between

SHININGBANK ENERGY LTD.

and

Computershare Trust Company of Canada
Amended and Restated
as of February 28, 2003
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ADMINISTRATIVE SERVICES R VR
AGREEMENT T o Y4 o
.':rv.:”_“ . “ ’"’"« ,!/ -
THIS AGREEMENT is made as of the 9th day of October, 2002, " /7=~ , | "
AMONG:
Shiningbank Energy Ltd., a corporation amalgamated under the laws of Alberta having its
registered office and principal place of business in Calgary, Alberta (the “Corporation”)
OF THE FIRST PART
AND

Computershare Trust Company of Canada, a trust company incorporated under the laws
of Canada (the “Trustee”) as trustee for and on behalf of Shiningbank Energy Income Fund,
a trust formed in accordance with the laws of Alberta (the “Trust™)

OF THE SECOND PART

WHEREAS the Trust was created pursuant to the terms of the Shiningbank Energy Income Fund Trust
Indenture dated May 16, 1996, as amended (the "Trust Indenture");

AND WHEREAS Trust Units in the Trust have been issued to the public;
AND WHEREAS Shiningbank Energy Ltd., the predecessor by amalgamation to the Corporation, has
purchased certain assets and has granted a royalty (the “Royalty”) on the income generated from such assets

to the Trust;

AND WHEREAS the Trust indirectly acquired all of the issued shares of Shiningbank Energy Management
Inc. ("SEMI") on October 9, 2002;

AND WHEREAS Shiningbank Energy Ltd. was a wholly-owned subsidiary of SEMI;

AND WHEREAS Shiningbank Energy Ltd. and SEMI were amalgamated on October 9, 2002, to form the
Corporation;

AND WHEREAS the holders of the Trust Units (the "Unitholders") of the Trust resolved at a Special Meeting
of Unitholders held on October 8, 2002 (the "Meeting"), to approve the transactions referenced above, to
amend the Trust Indenture and to ratify the execution of this agreement;

AND WHEREAS all actions have now been taken to give effect to the resolutions passed at the Meeting;

AND WHEREAS the parties hereto wish to enter into this agreement to reflect the above;
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AND WHEREAS the Trustee wishes to retain the Corporation to provide certain management, adv1s0ry and
administrative services in connection with the Royalty, the Trust and the Trust Units;

NOW THEREFORE the parties hereto agree as follows:

1.1

1.2

ARTICLE 1
INTERPRETATION

Definitions
As used herein, the following terms shall have the meanings set forth below:

"Administrative Expenses” means the amount in aggregate representing all expenditures and costs
incurred by the Corporation in the management and administration of the Trust, including: (i)
reasonable costs and expenses solely and exclusively relating to the Trust which are paid to third
parties by the Corporation; and (ii) reasonable costs and expenses incurred by the Corporation to the
extent such costs and expenses are reasonably identifiable as being incurred specifically for the Trust
including, without limitation, auditing, accounting, bookkeeping, legal, land administration,
engineering, travel, telephone, data processing, reporting, executive and management time, salanes and
bonuses incurred in providing services provided hereunder;

“Agreement” means this Administrative Services Agreement as amended from time to time;

“Managed Entities” means Shiningbank Holdings Corporation, the Corporation, any Subsidiary of
the Trust, any Subsidiary of the Corporation and any Subsidiary of any other Managed Entity;

"Parties” means the parties to this Agreement;

“Properties” means all assets of the Corporation including, without limitation, the working, royalty
or other interests of the Corporation in any petroleum and natural gas rights, tangibles and
miscellaneous interests which the Corporation may own from time to time;

“Royalty Agreement” means the Royalty Agreement entered into between the Corporation and
Montreal Trust Company of Canada as trustee of the Trust as of July 31, 1996 as amended and
restated from time to time;

“Trust Indenture” means the trust indenture establishing the Trust dated May 16, 1996, as amended
between the Trustee, SEMI and Richardson Greenshields of Canada Limited, as further amended and
restated from time to time;

“Trust Services™ mean the services set forth in Section 3.1 hereof.

Additional Definitions
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Unless the context otherwise requires, capitalized terms used herein without definition as well
as the word "person” shall mean the same as defined in the Trust Indenture.

1.3 Headings

The section headings hereof have been inserted for convenience of reference only and shall not
be construed to affect the meaning, construction or effect of this Agreement.

1.4 Generally Accepted Accounting Principles

Eachaccounting term used in this Agreement, unless otherwise defined herein, has the meaning
assigned to it under generally accepted accounting principles which are in effect from time to time in Canada
consistently applied and reference to any balance sheet item, statement of income and retained earnings item
or statement of cash flow item means such item as computed from the applicable financial statement prepared
in accordance with such principles.

1.5 Insurance
With respect to the insurance policies maintained by the Corporation from time to time relating
to liability insurance, the Corporation covenants to use its best commercial efforts to add the Fund and the

Trustee as additional insureds under such policies, as their interests may appear.

1.6 Effective Date

The parties acknowledge that this Agreement shall become effective upon the 9th day of
October, 2002.

ARTICLE 2
ENGAGEMENT

21 Engagement by the Trust

The Trustee hereby engages and delegates to the Corporation and the Corporation hereby
accepts such engagement and delegation and agrees to provide the Trust Services to the Trust, subject to the
terms and conditions of this Agreement and the terms, conditions and limitations contained in the Trust
Indenture, and to perform such duties as are delegated to the Corporation as Administrator pursuant to the
Trust Indenture or otherwise.

2.2 Employees, Agents or Contractors of the Corporation

All employees, agents or contractors used in connection with the provision by the Corporation
of the Trust Services shall be employees, agents or contractors of the Corporation and not of the Trustee or
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4

the Trust, and the Corporation shall be solely responsible for complying with all laws applicable to such
employment, agency or contractor relationship.

3.1

ARTICLE 3
SERVICES PROVIDED TO THE TRUST

Services Provided to the Trust

The Corporation shall during the term of this Agreement, provide and perform for the Trustee

the following services (the "Trust Services"):

a.

exercise the specific powers and authorities of the Trustee set forth in Sections 7.1 and 7.2 of the Trust
Indenture;

exercise the specific authority of the Trust or the Trustee set forth in Section 3.2 and 3.15 of the Trust
Indenture;

calculate or cause to be calculated any amounts to be paid by the Trustee to Unitholders in accordance
with the Trust Indenture;

ensure compliance by the Trustee with its legal obligations, including its continuous disclosure
obligations under all applicable securities legislation;

assist the Trustee in providing the information which is made available to Unitholders pursuant to
Section 16.5 of the Trust Indenture; ‘

prepare and furnish to each Unitholder all reports, financial statements, all necessary tax information
and other information required to be sent to Unitholders pursuant to Sections 16.2, 16.3 and 16.4 of
the Trust Indenture and all notices, reports and information to be provided under applicable legislation
including pursuant to Section 10.2 of the Trust Indenture;

if any material change occurs in relation to the Trust, provide the Unitholders with all such reports as
law or regulatory policy may require and notify Unitholders of such material change in the next

quarterly report of the Trust following such material change;

call, hold and distribute material in respect of any meetings of Unitholders as required pursuant to the
Trust Indenture;

prepare and file all required tax returns on behalf of the Trust;
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J make such changes or corrections to this Agreement as the Trustee may advise are necessary or
desirable and which the Trustee confirms are not adverse to the interests of the Unitholders;

k. provide advisory services, investor relations services and coordination and administration of any assets
of the Trust;

1 have available, in performing its duties hereunder, the office space, equipment and staff including all
accounting, secretarial, corporate and administrative personnel that are reasonably necessary to allow
it to perform its duties hereunder;

m. arrange such audit, legal, insurance and other professional services which, in its discretion, may be
reasonably necessary to allow it to perform its duties hereunder;

n. provide such reports to the Trustee as it may reasonably request in respect of the administration and
affairs of the Trust, including: (i) the status of the assets of the Trust; (ii) on an annual basis, within
140 days of the fiscal year end of the Trust, a certificate signed by the Chief Executive Officer and
Chief Financial Officer of the Corporation, or such other officers of the Corporation as may be
acceptable to the Trustee, certifying that the Corporation is in compliance, in all material respects, with
its covenants, duties and obligations under the Trust Indenture, as amended, and the Royalty
Agreement, as amended, relating to the administration and affairs of the Trust, or if such is not the
case, specifying such non-compliance and providing particulars thereof;

0. provide to the Trustee recommendations in respect of the reinvestment of any amounts by the Trust
in securities or royalties of the Managed Entities or other persons; and

p. provide to the Trustee for the benefit of the Trust such other support as may be necessary for the
Trustee to discharge its responsibilities under the Trust Indenture.

The Corporation shall provide, upon request but not more frequently than monthly, reports
to the Trustee generally outlining the nature and details of the Trust Services that have been provided.

ARTICLE 4
ACTIVITIES OF THE CORPORATION

4.1 Standard of Care

In exercising its powers and discharging its duties under this Agreement, the Corporation shall
exercise the degree of care, diligence and skill that a reasonably prudent administrator would exercise.

4.2 Delegation
The Corporation may delegate specific aspects of its obligations hereunder to any other

corporation or entity, provided that such delegation shall not relieve the Corporation of any of its material
obligations under this Agreement. The Corporation shall not be liable for the action or inaction of any person
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to which any such obligations may have been delegated provided that the Corporation has acted in accordance
with Section 4.1 in selecting such person.

4.3 Limitations on Liability

a. The Corporation, its directors, officers, employees and agents, shall not be liable, answerable or
-accountable to the Trustee, the Trust, or any Unitholder for any loss or damage resulting from,
incidental to or relating to the provision of Trust Services hereunder or other authority delegated to the
Corporation under the Trust Indenture, including any exercise or refusal to exercise a discretion, any
mistake or error of judgement or any act or omission believed by such person to be within the scope
of authority conferred by this Agreement or under the Trust Indenture, provided that this provision
shall not relieve the Corporation or a director, officer, employee or agent of the Corporation, as the
case may be, from loss or damage resulting from its or his own gross negligence, wilful misconduct

or fraud.

b. The Corporation shall not be liable, answerable or accountable for, and shall be fully protectéd from,
any loss or damage occasioned by any reasonable reliance by the Corporation in performing its
obligations hereunder or under the Trust Indenture on (i) any statement of fact by any other person or
persons (any of whom may be persons with whom the Corporation is affiliated) who are reasonably
considered by the Corporation to be knowledgeable of such facts; or (ii) the opinion or advice of or
information obtained from any legal counsel, auditor, valuer, engineer, surveyor, appraiser or other
expert who is reasonably considered by the Corporation to be a person on whom it should rely in the
circumstances.

c. None of the Unitholders, the Trust or the Trustee shall have any right of action against the Corporation
or any of the directors, officers, employees or agents of the Corporation for acts of the Corporation
or any of its directors, officers, employees or agents of the Corporation in respect of matters delegated
to the Corporation under this Agreement or the Trust Indenture where such action is based on any
allegation that the Corporation or any director, officer, employee or agent of the Corporation was a
trustee for, or acting in a fiduciary capacity (or any other basis similar thereto) with respect to the
Unitholders, the Trust or the Trustee.

ARTICLE 5
RESTRICTIONS ON CORPORATION

5.1 General

The Corporation shall at all times during the performance of the Trust Services provide
information to the Trustee on a timely basis in order to allow the Trustee to exercise its powers and discharge
its duties as required by applicable law. The Corporation acknowledges and agrees that the performance of
the Trust Services is subject to the power and duty of the Trustee to set policy and issue directives in respect
of the administration of the Trust and will conduct the administration of the Trust in accordance with the
policies and directives set by the Trustee, from time to time.
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ARTICLE 6
EXPENSES

6.1 Payment of Administrative Expenses

The Corporation shall be entitled to payment from the Trust for Administrative Expenses.
Such payment is not intended to provide the Corporation, directly or indirectly, with any financial gain or loss
and the Corporation agrees that such payment will be made only to the extent necessary to reimburse the
Corporation for actual costs incurred, including carrying costs until payment. Costs and expenses incurred
by the Corporation for the benefit of the Trustee or the Trust and others shall be prorated in a reasonable
manner and shall be subject to reimbursement only to the extent such costs and expenses can reasonably be
attributed to the services provided hereunder.

6.2 Payment of Administrative Expenses

The Administrative Expenses set forth in this Article 6 shall be calculated by the Corporation
and invoiced to the Trust from time to time at intervals no more frequent than each calendar quarter. Such
invoices shall be payable within 30 days of their issuance. The Administrative Expenses may be paid from the
amounts received from the sale of Petroleum Substances collected from the Properties and may be paid prior
to the payment of the Royalty to the Trustee on behalf of the Trust for any such period at the discretion of the
Corporation. Each invoice rendered by the Corporation to the Trust shall be sufficiently detailed to permit the
Trust to verify that the expenses which are the subject of such invoice are properly chargeable to the Trust.

6.3 Audits

The Corporation will allow access by the Trustee or its representatives at all reasonable times
to the books, records and employees of the Corporation for the purpose of conducting an audit in respect of
any Administrative Expenses or other matters necessary or advisable to be audited in order for the Trust to
conduct an audit of its financial affairs. The Corporation agrees to keep and maintain in Calgary suitable

records and accounts for such purposes.

ARTICLE 7
OTHER ACTIVITIES OF THE CORPORATION

71 Other Activities

The Corporation shall not engage, directly or indirectly, in other operations in which the Trust

or any of the Managed Entities (excluding the Corporation) does not have a direct or indirect interest or which
do not relate to the Trust, without the consent of the Trustee.

7.2 Additional Information
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The parties hereto acknowledge that development activities on the Properties may have the
incidental effect of providing additional information with respect to, or augmenting the value of, properties in
which Affiliates of the Corporation or any one of the directors, officers or employees of the Corporation at the
time have an interest not acquired in breach of this Agreement and the parties hereto agree that such :persons
shall not be liable to account to any of them with respect to such activities or results.

ARTICLE 8
CONFIDENTIAL INFORMATION
AND DISCLOSURE OF MATERIAL INFORMATION

8.1 Confidentiality

The Corporation hereby agrees that it will not at any time use, disclose or make available to
any party any confidential information concerning the operation, assets or affairs of the Trust, whether acquired
in connection with the performance of the Trust Services by the Corporation hereunder or otherwise, except:

a. such use as may be expressly permitted in or necessary or advisable for the performance of this
Agreement or the Trust Indenture;

b. such disclosures as may be required in order to comply with any statute, regulation or the order of a
regulatory authority having jurisdiction;

c. such information as comes into the public domain independently; and

d. such information as can be demonstrated by the party desiring to disclose such information, to have
been in its possession prior to this Agreement or to have come into its possession independently of
anything done under this Agreement.

8.2 Binding Effect

The Corporation shall take all necessary steps to ensure that the obligations of confidentiality
imposed under Section 8.1 hereunder are binding upon the directors, officers, employees, agents and
contractors of the Corporation who have access to any confidential information of the Trust that is subject to
an obligation of confidence under Section 8.1 hereof.

8.3 Disclosure of Material Changes
The Corporation acknowledges that the Trust Units of the Trust are listed on the Toronto

Stock Exchange and that the Trust is a reporting issuer under applicable securities laws in each of the
provinces in Canada and as such has certain disclosure obligations pursuant to the rules and policies of such

stock exchange or applicable securities laws.
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ARTICLE 9
INDEMNIFICATION

9.1 Indemnification of the Corporation

The Corporation and any person who is serving or has served as a director, officer, employee,
or agent of the Corporation, shall be indemnified by the Trust out of its assets against all liabilities (including
environmental liabilities), obligations, costs and expenses (including judgments, fines, penalties, amounts paid
in settlement with the approval of the Trust, as the case may be, and reasonable counsel fees) arising from or
related in any manner to this Agreement or the delegation of authority to the Corporation under the Trust
Indenture, provided:

a. the Corporation shall be indemnified only to the extent such liabilities, obligations, costs or expenses
have not resulted from the gross negligence, wilful misconduct or fraud of the Corporation;

b. any other person claiming indemnification hereunder shalil be indemnified only to the extent such
person is not finally adjudged in said action, suit or proceeding to have acted with wilful misfeasance,
bad faith or gross negligence and provided that any such person shall not be indemnified if such person
is finally adjudged to have acted other than honestly and in good faith.

9.2 Indemnification of the Trustee and the Trust

The Trustee and any person who is serving or has served as a director, officer, employee or agent of
the Trustee shall be indemnified by the Corporation out of the assets of the Corporation against all liabilities
(including environmental liabilities), obligations, costs and expenses (including judgments, fines, penalties,
amount paid in settlement with the approval of the Corporation, as the case may be, and reasonable counsel
fees) arising from or related to any manner of breach of this Agreement by the Corporation or in any way
arising from or related in any manner to the fraud, wilful misconduct, or gross negligence of the Corporation
in the performance of its obligations hereunder provided any other person claiming indemnification hereunder
shall be indemnified only to the extent such person is not finally adjudged in said action, suit or proceeding to
have acted with wilful misfeasance, bad faith, or gross negligence and provided that any such person shall not
be indemnified if such person is finally adjudged to have acted other than honestly and in good faith.

9.3 Idem

For the purposes of Section 9.1 and 9.2, “action, suit or proceeding” shall include every action,
suit or proceeding, civil, criminal or other. The foregoing right of indemnification shall not be exclusive of any
other rights to which the Corporation or any person referred to in Section 9.1 and 9.2 may be entitled as a
matter of law which may be lawfully granted to him. The foregoing right of indemnification shall enure to the
benefit of the successors, assigns, personal representatives and heirs of any person entitled to indemnification.
The indemnities and protections provided under Section 4.3 and this Article 9 shall survive the termination of
this Agreement and the removal or resignation of the Trustee and any removal of the Corporation as the
administrator hereunder and, in addition, shall survive with respect to any director, officer, employee or agent
of the Trustee or the Corporation, as the case may be, if such person shall cease to be a director, officer,
employee or agent of the Trustee or the Corporation, as the case may be.
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10.2
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ARTICLE 10
TERM AND TERMINATION

Term

This Agreement shall continue until terminated in accordance with Section 10.4 below.

Effective Date of Termination

For the purposes of this Article, “effective date of termination” means the date on which this

Agreement terminates under Section 10.4 below.

10.3

Payment

From and after the effective date of termination of this Agreement, the Corporation shall be

reimbursed for all expenses incurred in its capacity as Administrator under the terms of this Agreement or the
Trust Indenture, to the effective date of termination.

10.4

ii.

Termination

Notwithstanding anything contained elsewhere in this Agreement, this Agreement may be
terminated by the Trustee, by notice in writing given by the Trustee to the Corporation,
following which this Agreement shall terminate upon the earlier of 3 months from the date of
such notice and the date on which a satisfactory replacement Administrator is appointed in
compliance with the terms of the Trust Indenture respecting the replacement of the
Administrator.

Upon the effective date of termination, the Corporation shall forthwith:

pay to or to the order of the Trust, as the case may be, all monies collected and'héld for it
pursuant to this Agreement, after deducting any amounts incurred to which it is then entitled;
and

deliver to or to the order of the Trust a complete report including a statement showing all
payments collected by it, and a statement of all monies held by it pursuant to this Agreement
during the period following the date of the last audited statement furnished to the Trust
pursuant to this Agreement and prior to the effective date of termination and should an
auditor’s report for this period be requested, the expense of such a report will be borne by the
Trust. ‘
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ARTICLE 11
MISCELLANEOUS

11.1 No Partnership or Joint Venture

The parties to this Agreement are not and shall not be deemed to be partners or joint venturers
with one another and nothing herein shall be construed so as to impose any liability as such on any of them.

11.2 Amendments

This Agreement shall not be amended or varied in its terms by oral agreement or by
representations or otherwise except by instrument in writing executed by the duly authorized representatives
of the parties hereto or their respective successors or assigns. This Agreement may be amended or varied by
the Trustee only with the consent of the Unitholders by Special Resolution provided however, that the
Corporation and the Trustee may, without the approval of the Unitholders, agree to amendments to this
Agreement for the purpose of:

a. removing any conflicts or inconsistencies between this Agreement and any applicable law or regulation
if in the opinion of counsel for the Trust such amendments are not prejudicial to the interests of the
Unitholders; or

b. making such changes or corrections to this Agreement as the Corporation may advise are necessary
or desirable and which the Trustee confirms are not adverse to the interests of the Unitholders.

11.3 Assignment

This Agreement shall not be assigned by any party hereto without the prior written consent
of all other parties and the consent of the Unitholders by Special Resolution as defined in the Trust Indenture;
provided, however, that the Corporation may, without the consent of the Trustee or any of the Managed
Entities, mortgage, pledge, charge or grant a security interest in this Agreement and the rights and benefits of
the Corporation hereunder to secure its obligations and liabilities under the "Credit Facilities” and the "Swap
Arrangements" (as those terms are defined in the Royalty Agreement), and such security may be granted in
priority to all obligations and liabilities of the Corporation under this Agreement. The parties acknowledge that
the obligations of the Corporation to the Trust and the other Managed Entities under this Agreement may be
subject to the terms of subordination and postponement agreements entered into by the Trustee under such
Credit Facilities and Swap Arrangements.

11.4 Subsequent Parties to this Agreement

Any replacement of the Trustee or the Corporation as Administrator shall, prior to becoming
the Trustee or the Administrator, execute one or more counterparts of this Agreement (whether or not the same
has been executed by another corporation acting as a Trustee or Administrator) and shall thereafter be entitled
to all of the benefits of and be bound by the terms and conditions of the Agreement in the same manner as if
it had been an original party hereto.
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11.5 Severability

If any provision of this Agreement shall be held invalid or unenforceable in any jurisdiction,
such invalidity or unenforceability shall attach only to such provisions in such jurisdiction and shall notin any
manner effect or render invalid or unenforceable such provision in any other jurisdiction or any other provision
of this Agreement in any jurisdiction.

11.6 Notices

All notices required or permitted herein under this Agreement shall be in writing and may be
given by delivering same or mailing same by pre-paid registered mail to the address set forth below. Any such
notice or other communication shall, if delivered, be deemed to have been given or made and received on the
date delivered, and if mailed, shall be deemed to have been given or made and received on the fifth (5th)
Business Day following the day on which it was so mailed. The parties hereto may give from time to time
written notice of change of address in the manner aforesaid.

Corporation: Shiningbank Energy Ltd.
1310, 111 - 5th Avenue S.W.
Calgary, Alberta T2P 3Y6
Attention: President
Fax: (403) 268-7499

The Trustee: Computershare Trust Company of Canada
7th Floor
530 - 8th Avenue S.W.
Calgary, Alberta T2P 358
Attention: Manager, Corporate Trust
Fax: (403) 267-6598

If, by reason of a strike, lockout or other work stoppage, actual or threatened, involving postal employees, any
notice to be given hereunder could reasonably be considered unlikely to reach its destination, such notice shall
be valid and effective only if it is delivered at the appropriate address provided in this Section, by
telecommunications device or other means of prepaid, transmitted and recorded communication.

11.7 Further Assurances

Each of the parties hereto shall from time to time do all such further acts and execute and
deliver all such further documents as shall be reasonably required in order to fully to perform and carry out
the terms, intent and purposes of this Agreement.
11.8 Entire Agreement

The terms of this Agreement express and constitute the entire agreement between the parties

hereto (except as provided for in the Trust Indenture) and no implied covenants or liability of any kind on the
part of the parties is created or shall arise by reason of anything contained in this Agreement. This Agreement
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supercedes all other agreements (except as provided for in the Trust Indenture), documents, writings and verbal
understandings between the parties relating to the matters herein contained.

11.9 Liability of Trustee

The parties hereto acknowledge that the Trustee is entering into this Agreement solely in its
capacity as Trustee on behalf of the Trust and the obligations of the Trustee hereunder shall not be personally
binding upon the Trustee or any of the Unitholders of the Trust and that any recourse against the Trust, the
Trustee or any Unitholder in any manner in respect of any indebtedness, obligation or liability of the Trust
arising hereunder or arising in connection herewith or from the matters to which this agreement relates, if any,
including without limitation claims based on negligence or otherwise tortious behavior, shall be limited to, and
satisfied only out of, the Trust Fund as defined in the Trust Indenture.

11.10 Governing Law
The provisions of this Agreement shall be governed by and construed in accordance with the

laws of Alberta.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF each of the parties has caused these presents to be executed by its duly
authorized representatives as of the date first above written.

Shiningbank Energy Ltd.

Per:_ "signed"

Per:__ "signed"

Computershare Trust Company of Canada
as Trustee for and on behalf of Shiningbank
Energy Income Fund.
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Per;:  "signed"

Per:  "signed"
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PROMISSORY NOTE

TO: SHININGBANK ENERGY INCOME FUND ("SEIF")

FOR VALUABLE CONSIDERATION received, Shiningbank Energy Ltd.
("Shiningbank") hereby promises to pay to SEIF at Calgary, Alberta, on demand in writing made
by SEIF to Shiningbank, the sum of CDN $142,000,000.00 with interest thereon calculated and
compounded annually at a rate of interest per annum equal to the prime rate of interest plus one
quarter of one percent announced from time to time by The Toronto-Dominion Bank for
Canadian dollar loans made available in the City of Calgary, in the Province of Alberta, as well
after as before maturity, default and judgment, until paid in accordance with the terms hereof.

The indebtedness evidenced hereunder shall be deemed to be owing as of and
from, and the interest calculated hereunder shall apply and accrue from, the date hereof.

Dated this 8" day of March, 2004.

SHININGBANK ENERGY LTD.

Per: %L&l /Cﬁ)/h
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Agreement Amending and Restating ‘ Y = m
Unitholders' Rights Plan Agreement o [ an
TE e, - ’ ';'/: <. ’
May 31, 2004 Gt O e
o, N;:\ h ‘; s
Recitals
A. Shiningbank Energy Income Fund (the "Fund"), Shiningbank Energy Ltd. ("SEL") and

E.

Montreal Trust Company of Canada ("MT") entered into a Unitholders' Rights Plan
Agreement dated January 25, 2000 (the "URP Agreement") with MT acting as Rights
Agent thereunder.

Pursuant to an Assignment Agreement dated January 16, 2002 among the Fund, SEL, MT
and Computershare Trust Company of Canada ("Computershare"), MT transferred and
assigned to Computershare all of its rights, powers, duties and obligations under the URP
Agreement and resigned as Rights Agent.

At unitholders' meetings held in 2002 and 2004, the unitholders of the Fund reconfirmed
the URP Agreement.

The Fund, SEL and Computershare wish to amend the URP Agreement, such
amendments having been approved by the unitholders of the Fund at the unitholders'

meeting held in 2004,

The parties hereto wish to restate the URP Agreement to reflect the above.

The parties agree as follows:

1.1

ARTICLE 1
Amendment and Restatement

Amendment

The URP Agreement shall be amended, effective as of the date hereof, such that the
definition of "Expiration Time" as contained in Section 1.1(m) of the URP Agreement
will now read as follows:

"Expiration Time" means the earlier of: (i) the Termination Time; (ii) the Close of
Business on the date of the annual meeting of the unitholders of the Trust at which the
Independent Unitholders do not approve the resolution referred to in section 5.21 in
accordance with section 5.21 at such meeting; and (iii) the time which is immediately
after the termination of the annual meeting of the holders of Trust Units held, pursuant to
the terms of the Trust Indenture, in 2006;"



1.2

3.1

32

Restatement

The URP Agreement shall be restated to give effect to the amendment referred to in 1.1
above, such restatement to be in the form attached hereto as schedule "A" to this
Agreement. 3

ARTICLE 2
Continuation

The URP Agreement, as amended and restated as aforesaid, shall continue in full force
and effect in accordance with the terms thereof.

ARTICLE 3
Miscellaneous

Enurement

This Agreement shall enure to the benefit of and be binding upon the parties hereto and
their respective successors and permitted assigns.

Waivers in Writing

No waiver by any party hereto of any breach of any of the covenants, conditions and
provisions herein contained shall be effective or be binding on any other party hereto
unless such waiver is expressed in writing and any waiver so expressed shall not limit or
affect its rights with respect to any other or future breach.




33 Amendments

No amendment, alteration or variation of this Agreement or any of its terms or conditions
shall be binding upon the parties hereto unless made in writing and signed by the duly
authorized representatives of each of the parties hereto.

Executed and delivered.

CAL_LAW\ 103695171

SHININGBANK ENERGY INCOME
FUND by its Administrator,
SHININGBANK ENERGY LTD.

Per:  '"signed'

Per: "signed"

SHININGBANK ENERGY LTD.

Per:  "signed'

Per: 'signed'

COMPUTERSHARE TRUST COMPANY
OF CANADA

Per:  '"signed"'

Per:  "signed"




SCHEDULE "A"

UNITHOLDERS’ RIGHTS PLAN AGREEMENT

AMONG

SHININGBANK ENERGY INCOME FUND

-and -
SHININGBANK ENERGY LTD.

-and -

MONTREAL TRUST COMPANY OF CANADA

Dated: January 25, 2000 and Amended
and Restated as of May 31, 2004
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AMENDED AND RESTATED AS OF MAY 31, 2004

UNITHOLDERS’ RIGHTS PLAN AGREEMENT
THIS AGREEMENT made as of the 25" day of January, 2000,

AMONG:
SHININGBANK ENERGY INCOME FUND, an open-ended
investment trust created under the laws of Alberta
(hereinafter referred to as the “Trust”)

- and -
SHININGBANK ENERGY LTD., a body corporate incorporated
under the laws of Alberta
(hereinafter referred to as “Shiningbank™)

- and -

COMPUTERSHARE TRUST COMPANY OF CANADA, a
trust company incorporated under the laws of Canada
(hereinafter referred to as the “Rights Agent”)

WHEREAS pursuant to articles 7.1 and 7.2 of the Shiningbank Energy Income Fund
Trust Indenture (the “Trust Indenture”) dated May 16, 1996, as amended, between Shiningbank Energy
Management Inc. (the “Manager™) and Montreal Trust Company of Canada (the “Trustee), the Trustee
may exercise from time to time in respect of the Trust any and all rights, powers and privileges that could
be exercised by a beneficial owner of the trust units of the Trust and the Trustee possesses and may
exercise all rights, powers and privileges appertaining to the ownership of all or any part of the assets of
the Trust;

AND WHEREAS pursuant to section 4.1(a) of the Management Agreement (the
“Management Agreement”) dated July 31, 1996, as amended, among the Manager, Shiningbank,
Shiningbank Energy Acquisitions Ltd., and the Trustee, the Manager has the authority to exercise the
specific powers and authorities of the Trustee set forth in articles 7.1 and 7.2 of the Trust Indenture;

AND WHEREAS pursuant to section .6.1 of the Management Agreement the Board of
Directors of Shiningbank (the “Board”) has authority to set policy and issue directives for and on behalf
of the Trust;

AND WHEREAS the Board has determined, after careful consideration of the
recommendations received from its advisors, that it is advisable for the Trust to adopt a unitholder rights
plan (the “Rights Plan”) to ensure, to the extent possible, that all unitholders of the Trust are treated fairly
in connection with any take-over offer for the Trust, to protect the Trust and its unitholders from unfair,
abusive or coercive acquisition tactics, and to provide sufficient time to evaluate unsolicited take-over
bids and to explore and develop alternatives to maximize unitholder value;




AND WHEREAS, in order to implement the Rights Plan, the Board has instructed the
Manager to:

(a) authorize and declare the issuance of one right (a “Right”) effective at the Record
Time (as hereinafter defined) in respect of each Trust Unit (as hereinafter defined)
outstanding at the Record Time;

(b) authorize the issuance of one Right in respect of each Trust Unit issued after the
Record Time and prior to the earlier of the Separation Time (as hereinafter
defined) and the Expiration Time (as hereinafter defined); and

(©) authorize the issuance of Rights Certificates (as hereinafter defined) to holders of
Rights pursuant to the terms and subject to the conditions set forth herein;

AND WHEREAS cach Right entitles the holder thereof, after the Separation Time, to
purchase securities of the Trust pursuant to the terms and subject to the conditions set forth herein;

AND WHEREAS the Board has directed the Manager to propose that the Rights Plan be
ratified by the unitholders of the Trust at the Annual General Meeting of the unitholders to be held in the
2000 calendar year;

AND WHEREAS the Board has directed the Manager to propose that the term of the
Rights Plan be for a period of 6 years, subject to the Rights Plan being reconfirmed by the unitholders of
the Trust every two years;

AND WHEREAS the Board desires to appoint the Rights Agent to act on behalf of the
Trust and holders of Rights, and the Rights Agent is willing to so act, in connection with the issuance,
transfer, exchange and replacement of Rights Certificates (as hereinafter defined), the exercise of Rights
and other matters referred to herein;

NOW THEREFORE in consideration of the premises and respective agreements set forth
herein, the parties hereby agree as follows:

ARTICLE 1
INTERPRETATION
1.1 Certain Definitions

For the purposes of this Agreement, the following terms have the meanings indicated:

() “Acquiring Person” means any Person who is the Beneficial Owner of 20% or
more of the outstanding Trust Units of the Trust; provided, however, that the term
“Acquiring Person” does not include:

(1) the Trust or any Subsidiary of the Trust;

(i1) any Person who becomes the Beneficial Owner of 20% or more of the
outstanding Trust Units of the Trust as a result of any one or a
combination of:




(A)

(B)
(©)

(D)

(E)

an acquisition or redemption by the Trust of Trust Units which, by
reducing the number of Trust Units outstanding, increases the
proportionate number of Trust Units Beneficially Owned by such
Person to 20% or more of the Trust Units then outstanding (a
“Trust Unit Reduction”);

a Permitted Bid Acquisition (as hereinafter defined);

Trust Unit acquisitions: (1) in respect of which the Board has
waived the application of Section3.1 hereof pursuant to
subsections 5.1(b), (c) or (d); or (2) which were made on or prior
to the date of this Agreement; or (3) which were made pursuant to
a distribution reinvestment plan of the Trust; or (4) pursuant to the
receipt or exercise of rights issued by the Trust to all the holders of
the Trust Units to subscribe for or purchase Trust Units or
Convertible Securities, provided that such rights are acquired
directly from the Trust and not from any other person; or (5)
pursuant to a distribution by the Trust of Trust Units or
Convertible Securities made pursuant to a prospectus; or (6)
pursuant to a distribution by the Trust of Trust Units or
Convertible Securities by way of a private placement by the Trust
or upon the exercise by an individual employee of Trust Unit
options granted under a Trust Unit option plan of the Trust or
rights to purchase securities granted under a Trust Unit purchase
plan of the Trust, provided that: (i) all necessary stock exchange
approvals for such private placements, Trust Unit option plan or
Trust Unit purchase plan have been obtained and such private
placement, Trust Unit option plan or Trust Unit purchase plan
complies with the terms and conditions of such approvals; and (i)
such Person does not become the Beneficial Owner of more than
25% of the Trust Units outstanding immediately prior to the
distribution, and in making this determination the Trust Units to be
issued to such Person in the distribution shall be deemed to be held
by such Person but shall not be included in the aggregate number
of outstanding Trust Units immediately prior to the distribution
(“Exempt Acquisition™);

the acquisition of Trust Units upon the exercise of Convertible
Securities received by such Person pursuant to a Permitted Bid
Acquisition, Exempt Acquisition or a Pro Rata Acquisition (as
hereinafter defined) (“Convertible Security Acquisitions”); or

acquisitions as a result of a distribution of Trust Units or a Trust
Unit split or other event pursuant to which such Person receives or
acquires Trust Units or Convertible Securities on the same pro rata
basis as all other holders of Trust Units of the same class (“Pro
Rata Acquisitions”);
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(b)

(©)

(d)

(iii)

(iv)

v)

provided, however, that if a Person shall become the Beneficial Owner of
20% or more of the outstanding Trust Units then outstanding by reason of
any one or a combination of a Trust Unit Reduction, a Permitted Bid
Acquisition, an Exempt Acquisition, a Convertible Security Acquisition or
a Pro Rata Acquisition, and thereafter becomes the Beneficial Owner of an
additional 1% of the outstanding Trust Units (other than pursuant to any of
the foregoing) then, as of the date that such Person becomes a Beneficial
Owner of such additional Trust Units, such Person shall become an
“Acquiring Person”; ‘

a Person who is the Beneficial Owner of 20% or more of the outstanding
Trust Units of the Trust determined as at the Record Time, provided,
however, that this exception shall not be, and shall cease to be, applicable
to such Person in the event that such Person shall after the Record Time
become the Beneficial Owner of any additional Trust Units that increases
its Beneficial Ownership of Trust Units by more than 1% of the number of
Trust Units outstanding, other than through one or any combination of a
Trust Unit Reduction, Permitted Bid Acquisition, Exempt Acquisition,
Convertible Security Acquisition, Pro Rata Acquisition or an acquisition
pursuant to a distribution reinvestment plan of the Trust;

for the period of 10 days after the Disqualification Date, any Person who
becomes the Beneficial Owner of 20% or more of the outstanding Trust
Units as a result of such Person becoming disqualified from relying on
section 1.1(d)B) solely because such Person makes or announces an
intention to make a Take-over Bid, either alone or by acting jointly with
any other Person. For the purposes of this definition, “Disqualification
Date” means the first date of public announcement that any Person is
making or intends to make a Take-over Bid; or

an underwriter or member of a banking or selling group that becomes the
Beneficial Owner of 20% or more of the Trust Units in connection with a
distribution of securities by way of prospectus or private placement;

“Affiliate”, when used to indicate a relationship with a specified Person, means a
Person that directly, or indirectly through one or more intermediaries, controls, or

is controlled by, or is under common control with, such specified Person;

“Associate”, of a specified individual means (i)a spouse of such specified
individual, (i1) any individual of either sex with whom such specified individual is
living in a conjugal relationship outside marriage or (iii) any relative of such
specified individual or of an individual mentioned in clauses (i) or (ii) ‘of this
definition if that relative has the same home as the specified individual,

A Person shall be deemed the “Beneficial Owner” of, and to have “Beneficial
Ownership” of, and to “Beneficially Own™:



AN

(1) any securities as to which such Person or any of such Person’s Affiliates
or Associates is the owner at law or in equity and includes any securities
in respect of which such Person or any of such Person’s Affiliates or
Associates owns at law or in equity any related instalment receipts;

(i)  any securities as to which such Person or any of such Person’s Affiliates
or Associates has, directly or indirectly the right to acquire (A) upon the
exercise of any Convertible Securities, or (B) pursuant to any agreement,
arrangement, pledge or understanding or otherwise, whether such right is
exercisable immediately or within a period of 45 days thereafter and
whether such right is exercisable upon the occurrence of a contingency or
payment of instalments or otherwise (other than: (I) customary agreements
with and between underwriters or banking group or selling group
members, with respect to a distribution to the public of securities; or
(II) pledges of securities in the ordinary course of business); and

(ii1) any securities that are Beneficially Owned within the meaning of
paragraph 1.1(d) (i) or (ii) by any other Person with which such Person or
any of such Person’s Affiliates or Associates is acting jointly or in concert;

provided, however, that a Person shall not be deemed the “Beneficial Owner” of,
or to have “Beneficial Ownership” of, or to “Beneficially Own”, any security:

(A)  where such security has been agreed to be deposited or tendered
pursuant to a Permitted Lock-up Agreement or is deposited or
tendered pursuant to a Take-over Bid made by such Person or any
of such Person’s Affiliates or Associates or any Person referred to
in paragraph 1.1(d)(iii) until such deposited or tendered security
is accepted unconditionally for payment or exchange or is taken up
and paid for;

(B)  where such Person, any of such Person’s Affiliates or Associates
or any Person referred to in paragraph 1.1(d)(iii), holds such
security, provided that:

)] the ordinary business of such Person (the “Investment
Manager™) includes the management of investment funds
for others and such security is held by the Investment
Manager in the ordinary course of such business in the
performance of such Investment Manager’s duties for the
account of any other Person;

2) such Person (the “Trust Company”) is licensed to carry on
the business of a trust company under applicable law and,
as such, acts as a trustee or administrator or in a similar
capacity in relation to the estates of deceased or
incompetent Persons or in relation to other accounts and
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holds such security, and is acting, in the ordinary course of
such duties for the estate of such deceased or incompetent
Person or for such other accounts; ‘

3 such Person (the “Plan Trustee™) is the administrator or
trustee of one or more pension plans or funds {each a
“Plan”) registered under applicable laws and holds such
security for the purposes of its activities as such,

4 such Person (the “Statutory Body™) is a Plan or is a Person
established by statute for purposes that include, and the
ordinary business or activity of such Person includes the
management of investment funds for employee benefit
plans, pension plans, insurance plans (other than plans
administered by insurance companies) of various public
bodies and the Statutory Body holds such security for the
purposes of its activities as such; or

(5) such Person is a Crown agent or agency (collectively, the
“Crown Agent”) and the ordinary business of such Person
includes acting as an agent of the Crown in the
management of public assets;

but only if the Investment Manager, the Trust Company, the Plan Trustee,
the Plan, the Statutory Body, or the Crown Agent, as the case may be, is
not then making a Take-over Bid or has not announced an intention to
make a Take-over Bid, other than an Offer to Acquire Trust Units or other
securities pursuant to a distribution by the Trust or by means of ordinary
market transactions (including prearranged trades entered into .in the
ordinary course of business of such Person) executed through the facilities
of a stock exchange or an organized over-the-counter market, alone or by
acting jointly or in concert with any other Person; or

©

(D)

where such Person is a client of or has an account with the same
Investment Manager as another Person on whose account the
Investment Manager holds such security, or where such Person is a
client of or has an account with the same Trust Company as
another Person on whose account the Trust Company holds such
security, or where such Person is a Plan and has a Plan Trustee
who is also a Plan Trustee for another Plan on whose account the
Plan Trustee holds such security; or

where such Person (i) is a client of an Investment Manager and
such security is owned at law or in equity by the Investment
Manager, or (ii) has an account with a Trust Company and such
security is owned at law or in equity by the Trust Company, or (iii)
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documentation relating to such Permitted Bid is sent to the unitholders of the
Trust, which is indicated in such documentation as the date until which such
Permitted Bid is open for acceptance;

“Flip-in Event” means a transaction or event occurring subsequent to the date of
this Agreement in or pursuant to which any Person becomes an Acquiring Person
provided, however, that a Flip-in Event shall be deemed to occur at the Close of
Business on the tenth day (or later day as the Board may determine) after the
Stock Acquisition Date.

“Independent Unitholders” shall mean holders of outstanding Trust Units, other
than:

Q) any Acquiring Person;
(i)  any Offeror;

(iii)  any Person acting jointly or in concert with such Acquiring Person or
Offeror;

(iv)  any Associate or Affiliate of such Acquiring Person, Offeror or Person
referred to in (iii); or

(v) a Person who is a trustee of any employee benefit plan, deferred profit
sharing plan, unit participation plan or trust for the benefit of employees of
Shiningbank or a wholly-owned Subsidiary of the Trust, unless the
beneficiaries of such plan or trust direct the manner in which such Trust
Units are to be voted or direct whether the Trust Units are to be tendered
to a Take-over Bid;

“Market Price” per security of any securities on any date of determination means
the average of the daily Closing Prices Per Security of such securities (determined
as described below) on each of the 20 consecutive Trading Days through and
including the Trading Day immediately preceding such date; provided, however,
that if an event of a type analogous to any of the events described in Section 2.3
hereof shall have caused the price used to determine the Closing Price Per
Security on any Trading Day not to be fully comparable with the price used to
determine the Closing Price Per Security on such date of determination or, if the
date of determination is not a Trading Day, on the Trading Day immediately
preceding such date of determination, each such price so used shall be
appropriately adjusted in a manner analogous to the applicable adjustment
provided for in Section 2.3 hereof in order to make it fully comparable with the
price per security used to determine the Closing Price Per Security on such date of
determination or if the date of determination is not a Trading Day, on the Trading
Day immediately preceding such date of determination. The “Closing Price Per
Security” of any securities on any date shall be:
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(1) the closing board lot sale price or, if such price is not available, the
average of the closing bid and asked prices, for each of such securities as
reported by the principal Canadian stock exchange (as determined by the
Board) on which such securities are listed or admitted to trading;

(11) if for any reason none of such prices is available on such day or the
securities are not listed or posted for trading on a Canadian stock
exchange, the last sale price, or, in case no such sale takes place on such
date, the average of the closing bid and asked prices for each of such
securities as reported by the principal United States securities exchange
(as determined by the Board) on which such securities are listed or
admitted to trading;

(i)  if for any reason none of such prices is available on such day or the
securities are not listed or admitted to trading on a Canadian stock
exchange or a national United States securities exchange, the last sale
price, or in case no sale takes place on such date, the average of the high
bid and low asked prices for each of such securities in the over-the-counter
market, as quoted by any reporting system then in use (as determined by
the Board); or ‘

(iv)  if for any reason none of such prices is available on such day or the
securities are not listed or admitted to trading on a Canadian stock
exchange or a national United States securities exchange or quoted by any
reporting system (as determined by the Board), the average of the closing
bid and asked prices as furnished by a professional market maker making
a market in the securities selected by the Board,

provided, however, that if for any reason none of such prices is available on such
date, the Closing Price Per Security of such securities on such date shall mean the
fair value per security of such securities on such date as determined in good faith
by an internationally recognized investment dealer or investment banker with
respect to the fair value per security of such securities. Provided further that the
Market Price shall be expressed in Canadian dollars and, if initially determined in
respect of any day forming part of the 20 consecutive Trading Day period in
question in United States dollars, such amount shall be translated into Canadian
dollars on such date by multiplying such amount by the United States- Cahadian
exchange rate set by the Bank of Canada on such date, or where no such rate is
set, as determined by the Board acting in good faith;

“Offer to Acquire” includes:
(1) an offer to purchase or a solicitation of an offer to sell Trust Units; and

(i1) an acceptance of an offer to seil Trust Units, whether or not such offer to
sell has been solicited;
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(W)

or any combination thereof, and the Person accepting an offer to sell shall be
deemed to be making an Offer to Acquire to the Person that made the offer to sell;

“Offeror” shall mean a Person who has announced an intention to make, or who
has made, a Take-over Bid;

“Offeror’s Securities” means the aggregate of the Trust Units Beneficially Owned
on the date of an Offer to Acquire by any Person who is making a Take-over Bid;

“Permitted Bid” means a Take-over Bid made by means of a Take-over Bid
circular and which also complies with the following additional provisions:

() the Take-over Bid is made to all holders of record of Trust Units as
registered on the books of the Trust, other than the Offeror;

(i)  the Take-over Bid contains, and the take up and payment for Trust Units
tendered or deposited thereunder is subject to, an irrevocable and
unqualified condition that no Trust Units shall be taken up or paid for
pursuant to the Take-over Bid prior to the Close of Business on a date
which is not less than 45 calendar days following the date on which the
proper Take-over Bid documentation relating to such Permitted Bid is sent
to the unitholders of the Trust;

(iii)  the Take-over Bid contains irrevocable and unqualified provisions that,
unless such Take-over Bid is withdrawn, Trust Units may be deposited
pursuant to such Take-over Bid at any time prior to the Close of Business
on the date of the first take-up or payment for Trust Units and that any
Trust Units deposited pursuant to the Take-over Bid may be withdrawn at
any time prior to the Close of Business on such date;

(iv)  the Take-over Bid contains an irrevocable and unqualifed condition that
more than 50% of the outstanding Trust Units held by Independent
Unitholders, determined as at the date of first take-up or payment for Trust
Units under the Take-over Bid, must be deposited to the Take-over Bid
and not withdrawn at the Close of Business on the date of first take-up or
payment for Trust Units; and

(v) the Take-over Bid contains an irrevocable and unqualified provision that
in the event that more than 50% of the then outstanding Trust Units held
by Independent Unitholders shall have been deposited to the Take-over
Bid and not withdrawn as at the date of first take-up or payment for Trust
Units under the Take-over Bid, the Offeror will make a public
announcement of that fact and the Take-over Bid will remain open for
deposits and tenders of Trust Units for not less than 10 Business Days
from the date of such public announcement.
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V)

(W)

provided that if a Take-over bid constitutes a Competing Permitted Bid, the term
“Permitted Bid” shall also mean the Competing Permitted Bid;

“Permitted Bid Acquisition” means an acquisition of Trust Units made pursuant
to a Permitted Bid or a Competing Permitted Bid; ‘

“Permitted Lock-up Agreement” means an agreement (the “Lock-up Agreement”)
between a Person and one or more holders of Trust Units (each such holder herein
referred to as a “Locked-up Person”) (the terms of which are publicly disclosed
and reduced to writing and a copy of which is made available to the public
(including the Trust) not later than the date of the Lock-up Bid (as hereinafter
defined) or, if the Lock-up Bid has been made prior to the date of the Lock-up
Agreement, not later than the date of the Lock-up Agreement) pursuant to which
each Locked-up Person agrees to deposit or tender the Trust Units held by such
holder to a Take-over Bid (the “Lock-up Bid”’) made by the Person or any of such
Person’s Affiliates or Associates or any other Person referred to in section
1.1(d)(iii) provided that: :

(1) the Lock-up Agreement permits the Locked-up Person to withdraw its
Trust Units from the Lock-up Agreement in order to deposit or tenber the
Trust Units to another Take-over Bid or to support another transaction
prior to the Trust Units being taken up and paid for under the Lock-up
Bid: '

(A)  ata price or value per Trust Unit that is at least 7% in excess of the
price or value per Trust Unit offered under the Lock-up Bid; or

(B)  for a number of Trust Units at least 7% greater than the number of
Trust Units that the Offeror has offered to purchase under the
Lock-up Bid at a price or value per Trust Unit that is not less than
the price or value per Trust Unit offered under the Lock-up Bid; or

(SN E)) that contains an offering price for each Trust Unit that
exceeds by as much as or more than a specified amount (the
“Specified Amount”) the offering price for each Trust Unit
contained in or proposed to be contained in the Lock-up Bid and
(I) does not by itself provide for a Specified Amount that is
greater than 7% of the offering price contained in or proposed to be
contained in the Lock-up Bid; and

for greater clarity, the Lock-up Agreement may contain a right of first
refusal or require a period of delay to give the Person who made the Lock-
up Bid an opportunity to match a higher price in another Take-over Bid or
other similar limitation on a Locked-up Person’s right to withdraw Trust
Units from the Lock-up Agreement, so long as the limitation does not
preclude the exercise by the Locked-up Person of the right to withdraw
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(aa)
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(cc)

Trust Units during the period of the other Take-over Bid or transaction;
and

(1))  no “break-up” fees, “top-up” fees, penalties, expenses or other amounts
that exceed in aggregate the greater of:

(A)  2%:% of the price or value of the consideration payable under the
Lock-up Bid to a Locked-up Person; and

(A)  50% of the amount by which the price or value of the consideration
received by a Locked-up Person under another Take-over Bid or
transaction exceeds the price or value of the consideration that the
Locked-up Person would have received under the Lock-up Bid;

shall be payable by such Locked-up Person if the Locked-up Person fails
to deposit or tender Trust Units to the Lock-up Bid or withdraws Trust
Units previously tendered thereto in order to deposit or tender such Trust
Units into another Take-over Bid or support another transaction.

“Person” includes any individual, firm, partnership, association, trust, trustee,
executor, administrator, legal personal representative, government, governmental
body or authority, corporation, or other incorporated or unincorporated
organization, syndicate or other entity;

“Record Time” means the Close of Business on the day before the Effective Date;

“Rights” means the right to purchase securities pursuant to the terms and subject
to the conditions set forth herein;

“Rights Certificate” means the certificates representing the Rights after the
Separation Time which shall be substantially in the form attached hereto as
Exhibit ”A”;

“Securities Act” means the Securities Act (Alberta), as amended, and the rules and
regulation or regulations made thereunder;

“Separation Time” means, subject to Section 5.1(d), the Close of Business on the
10th Trading Day after the earlier of:

(1) the Stock Acquisition Date;

(i1) the date of the commencement of, or first public announcement of the
intent of any Person (other than the Trust or any Subsidiary of the Trust)
to commence a Take-over Bid (other than (x) a Take-over Bid which is a
Permitted Bid or a Competing Permitted Bid, or (y), a Take-over Bid in
respect of which the Board has determined to waive the application of
Section 3.1 pursuant to Section 5.1), provided that, if any Take-over Bid
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(ce)
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(gg)

(hh)

(ii)

)

referred to in this clause (ii) expires, is cancelled, terminated or otherwise
withdrawn prior to the Separation Time, such Take-over Bid shall be
deemed, for purposes of this Section 1.1(ee), never to have been made;
and

(i)  the date upon which a Permitted Bid ceases to be a Permitted Bid,;

or such later date as may from time to time be determined by the Board acting in
good faith provided that, if the foregoing results in the Separation Time being
prior to the Record Time, the Separation Time shall be the Record Time;

“Subsidiary” of any specified Person means any corporation or other entity
controlled by such specified Person;

“Take-over Bid” means an Offer to Acquire Trust Units or securities convertible
into Trust Units where the Trust Units subject to the Offer to Acquire, together
with the Trust Units into which the securities subject to the Offer to Acquire are
convertible, and the Offerer’s Securities, constitute, in the aggregate 20% or more
of the outstanding Trust Units at the date of the Offer to Acquire;

“Termination Time” means the time at which the right to exercise Rights shall
terminate pursuant to Section 5.1 hereof;

“Trading Day”, when used with respect to any securities, means the day on which
the principal Canadian or United States securities exchange (as determined by the
Board) on which such securities are listed or admitted to trading is open for the
transaction of business or, if the securities are not listed or admitted to trading on
any Canadian or United States securities exchange, a Business Day;

“Trust Units” shall mean the trust units of the Trust, each trust unit representing
an equal undivided beneficial interest in the Trust as constituted on the date
hereof, and any other security of the Trust into which the Trust Units may be
subdivided, consolidated, reclassified or changed,

“Trust Unit Acquisition Date” shall mean the first date of public announcement
(which, for the purposes of this definition, shall include, without limitation, a
report filed pursuant to Section 141 of the Securities Act) by the Trust or an
Acquiring Person of facts indicating that a Person has become an Acquiring
Person; and

“Trust Unit Reduction” means an acquisition or redemption by the Trust of Trust
Units which, by reducing the number of Trust Units outstanding, increases the
proportionate number of Trust Units Beneficially Owned by any Person to 20% or
more of the Trust Units then outstanding. ‘
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1.2 Currency

All sums of money which are referred to in this Agreement are expressed in lawful money of Canada,
unless otherwise specified.

1.3 Number and Gender

Wherever the context will require, terms used herein importing the singular number only shall include the
plural and vice versa and words importing any one gender shall include the other.

1.4 Sections and Headings

The division of this Agreement into Articles, Sections and subsections and the insertion of headings are
for convenience of reference only and shall not affect the construction or interpretation of this Agreement.
The terms “this Agreement”, “hereunder”, “hereof”, and similar expressions refer to this Agreement and
not to any particular Article, Section or other portion hereof and include any Agreement or instrument
supplemental or ancillary hereto. Unless something in the subject matter or context is inconsistent
therewith, references herein to Articles, Sections and subsections are to Articles, Sections and subsections
to this Agreement.

1.5 Statutory References

Unless the context otherwise requires, any reference to a specific section, subsection, clause, policy, or
rule of any act or regulation shall be deemed to refer to the same as it may be amended, re-enacted or
replaced or, if repealed and there shall be no replacement therefor, to the same as it is in effect on the date
of this Agreement.

1.6 Acting Jointly or in Concert

For the purposes of this Agreement, a Person is acting jointly or in concert with another Person if such
Person has any agreement, arrangement or understanding (whether formal or informal and whether or not
in writing) with such other Person for the purpose of acquiring, or making an Offer to Acquire any Trust
Units of the Trust (other than customary agreements with and between underwriters and banking group or
selling group members with respect to a distribution of securities by way of prospectus or private
placement or pursuant to a pledge of securities in the ordinary course of business).

1.7 Control
A Person is “controlled” by another Person or two or more other Persons acting jointly or in concert if:

(a) in the case of a body corporate, securities entitled to vote in the election of
directors of such body corporate carrying more than 50% of the votes for the
election of directors are held, directly or indirectly, by or for the benefit of the
other Person or Persons and the votes carried by such securities are entitled, if
exercised, to elect a majority of the board of directors of such body corporate; or

(b) in the case of a Person which is not a body corporate, more than 50% of the
voting or equity interests of such entity are held, directly or indirectly, by or for
the benefit of the other Person or Persons,
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and “controls”, “controlling” and “under common control with” shall be interpreted accordingly.

ARTICLE 2
THE RIGHTS

2.1 Legend on Trust Unit Certificates

Certificates for the Trust Units issued after the Record Time but prior to the Close of Business on the
earlier of: (i) the Separation Time; and (ii) the Expiration Time, shall also evidence one Right for each
Trust Unit represented thereby and shall have impressed on, printed on, written on or otherwise affixed to
them the following legend:

“Until the Separation Time (as defined in the Rights Agreement referred
to below), this certificate also evidences and entitles the holder hereof to
certain Rights as set forth in a Unitholders’ Rights Plan Agreement,
dated as of January 25, 2000 (the “Rights Agreement”), between
Shiningbank Energy Income Fund and Montreal Trust Company of
Canada, as Rights Agent, the terms of which are hereby incorporated
herein by reference and a copy of which is on file at the principal
executive office of the Trust. Under certain circumstances, as set forth in
the Rights Agreement, such Rights may be amended or redeemed, may
expire, may become void (if, in certain cases, they are “Beneficially
Owned” by an “Acquiring Person”, as such terms are defined in the
Rights Agreement, or a transferee thereof) or may be evidenced by
separate certificates and may no longer be evidenced by this certificate.
The Trust will mail or arrange for the mailing of a copy of the Rights
Agreement to the holder of this certificate without charge as soon as
practicable after the receipt of a written request therefor.”

Certificates representing Trust Units that are issued and outstanding at the Record Time shall evidence
one Right for each Trust Unit, evidenced thereby, notwithstanding the absence of the foregoing legend,
until the earlier of: (i) the Separation Time; and (ii) the Expiration Time. ‘

2.2 Initial Exercise Price; Exercise of Rights; Detachment of Rights

(a) Subject to adjustment as herein set forth, each Right will entitle the holder
thereof, from and after the Separation Time and prior to the Expiration Time, to
purchase one Trust Unit, for the Exercise Price as at the Business Day
immediately preceding the Separation Time (which Exercise Price and number of
Trust Units are subject to adjustment as set forth below). Notwithstanding any
other provision of this Agreement, any Rights held by the Trust or any of its
subsidiaries shall be void.

(b)  Until the Separation Time: (i) the Rights shall not be exercisable and no Right
may be exercised; and (ii) for administrative purposes, each Right will be
evidenced by the certificate for the associated Trust Unit registered in the name of
the holder thereof (which certificate shall be deemed to represent a Rights
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Certificate) and will be transferable only together with, and will be transferred by
a transfer of, such associated Trust Unit.

After the Separation Time and prior to the Expiration Time, the Rights may be
exercised, and the registration and transfer of the Rights shall be separate from
and independent of Trust Units. Promptly following the Separation Time, the
Rights Agent will mail to each holder of record of Rights as of the Separation
Time (other than an Acquiring Person and, in respect of any Rights Beneficially
Owned by such Acquiring Person which are not held of record by such Acquiring
Person, the holder of record of such Rights) at such holder’s address as shown by
the records of the Trust (the Trust hereby agreeing to furnish copies of such
records to the Rights Agent for this purpose):

(1) a Rights Certificate in substantially the form of Exhibit "A” hereto with
registration particulars appropriately completed, representing the number
of Rights held by such holder at the Separation Time and having such
marks of identification or designation and such legends, summaries or
endorsements printed thereon as the Trust may deem appropriate and as
are not inconsistent with the provisions of this Agreement, or as may be
required to comply with any law, rule or regulation or any rule or
regulation of any stock exchange or quotation system on which the Rights
may from time to time be listed or traded, or to conform to usage; and

(i)  a disclosure statement describing the Rights.

Rights may be exercised in whole or in part (but only with respect to a whole
Right) on any Business Day after the Separation Time and prior to the Expiration
Time by submitting to the Rights Agent, at its office in the City of Calgary or
such other office of the Rights Agent designated for that purpose by the Trust:

(1) the Rights Certificate evidencing such Rights together with an election to
exercise (an “Election to Exercise”) substantially in the form attached to
the Rights Certificate duly completed and executed by the holder or his
executors or administrators or other personal representatives or his or their
legal attorney duly appointed by an instrument in writing in form and
executed in a manner satisfactory to the Rights Agent; and

(il)  payment by cash, certified cheque, banker’s draft or money order payable
to the order of the Trust, of a sum equal to the Exercise Price multiplied by
the number of Rights being exercised and a sum sufficient to cover any
transfer tax or charge which may be payable in respect of any transfer
involved in the transfer or delivery of Rights Certificates or the issuance or
delivery of certificates for Trust Units in a name other than that of the
holder of the Rights being exercised.

Upon receipt of a Rights Certificate, with an Election to Exercise and payment as
set forth in section 2.2(d), the Rights Agent (unless otherwise instructed by the
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Trust if the Trust is of the opinion that the Rights cannot be exercised in
accordance with this Agreement) will thereupon promptly:

(@)

(i)

(iii)

(iv)

)

requisition from the Trust’s transfer agent Trust Unit certificates
representing the number of Trust Units to be purchased (the Trust hereby
irrevocably agreeing to authorize its transfer agent to comply with all such
requisitions); ‘

after receipt of such Trust Unit certificates, deliver such certificates to, or
to the order of, the registered holder of such Rights Certificate, registered
in such name or names as may be designated by such holder;

when appropriate, requisition from the Trust the amount of cash, if any, to
be paid in lieu of issuing fractional Trust Units;

when appropriate, after receipt of such cash, deliver such cash to, or to the
order of, the registered holder of the Rights Certificate; and

tender to the Trust all payments received upon exercise of the Rights.

In case the holder of any Rights shall exercise less than all the Rights evidenced
by such holder’s Rights Certificate, a new Rights Certificate evidencing the
Rights remaining unexercised (subject to Section 5.5) will be issued by the Rights
Agent to such holder or to such holder’s duly authorized assigns.

The Trust covenants and agrees that it will:

(1)

(i)

(iii)

(iv)

take all such action as may be necessary and within its power to ensure
that all Trust Units delivered upon exercise of Rights shall, at the time of
delivery of the certificates for such Trust Units (subject to payment of the
Exercise Price), be duly and validly authorized, executed, issued and
delivered as fully paid and non-assessable;

take all such action as may reasonably be considered to be necessary and
within its power to comply with any applicable requirements of the
formation documents of the Trust and of the Securities Act and
comparable legislation of each of the other provinces and territories of
Canada, and the rules and regulations thereunder or any other applicable
law, rule or regulation, in connection with the issuance and delivery of the
Rights, the Rights Certificates and the issuance of any Trust Units upon
exercise of the Rights;

use reasonable efforts to cause all Trust Units issued upon exercise of the
Rights to be listed on the principal exchanges or traded in the over-the-
counter markets on which the Trust Units are listed at that time;

pay when due and payable any and all Canadian and United States federal,
provincial and state transfer taxes (for greater certainty not including any
19
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(a)

(b)

income taxes of the holder or exercising holder or any liability of the Trust
to withhold tax) and charges which may be payable in respect of the
original issuance or delivery of the Rights Certificates or certificates for
Trust Units issued upon exercise of Rights, provided that the Trust shall
not be required to pay any transfer tax or charge which may be payable in
respect of any transfer of Rights or the issuance or delivery of certificates
for Trust Units issued upon the exercise of Rights, in a name other than
that of the holder of the Rights being transferred or exercised,

(v)  if applicable, cause to be reserved and kept available out of the authorized
and unissued Trust Units of the Trust, the number of Trust Units that, as
provided in this Agreement, will from time to time be sufficient to permit
the exercise in full of all outstanding Rights;

(vi)  after the Separation Time, except as permitted by Section 5.1, not take any
action if at the time such action is taken it is reasonably foreseeable that
such action will diminish substantially or otherwise eliminate the benefits
intended to be afforded by the Rights; and

(vil) provide, or cause to be provided to, the Rights Agent a list of registered
holders of Trust Units as and when requested by the Rights Agent.

Adjustments to Exercise Price; Number of Rights

The Exercise Price, the number and kind of securities subject to purchase upon
exercise of each Right and the number of Rights outstanding are subject to
adjustment from time to time as provided in this Section 2.3.

If the Trust shall at any time after the Record Time and prior to the Expiration
Time:

(1) declare or pay a distribution on the Trust Units payable in Trust Units (or
other securities exchangeable for or convertible into or giving a right to
acquire Trust Units or other securities of the Trust) other than pursuant to
any optional distribution plan;

(i1) subdivide or change the then outstanding Trust Units into a greater
number of Trust Units;

(ili)  combine or change the then outstanding Trust Units into a smaller number
of Trust Units; or

(iv)  issue any Trust Units (or other securities exchangeable for or convertible
into or giving a right to acquire Trust Units) in respect of, in lieu of or in
exchange for existing Trust Units, in a reclassification, amalgamation,
merger, statutory arrangement or consolidation,
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the Exercise Price and the number of Rights outstanding (or, if the payment or
effective date therefor shall occur after the Separation Time, the securities
purchasable upon exercise of Rights) shall be adjusted as follows:

(A) if the Exercise Price and number of Rights outstanding are to be
adjusted:

(1) the Exercise Price in effect after such adjustment will be
equal to the Exercise Price in effect immediately prior to
such adjustment divided by the number of Trust Units that
a holder of one Trust Unit immediately prior to such
distribution, subdivision, change, combination or issuance
would hold thereafter as a result thereof (the “Adjustment
Factor”); and

(2) each Right held prior to such adjustment will become that
number of Rights equal to the Adjustment Factor, and the
adjusted number of Rights will be deemed to be allocated
among the Trust Units with respect to which the original
Rights were associated (if they remain outstanding) and the
Trust Units issued in respect of such distribution,
subdivision, change, combination or issuance, so that each
such Trust Unit will have exactly one Right associated with
it.

(B) if the securities purchasable upon exercise of Rights are to be
adjusted, the securities purchasable upon exercise of each Right
after such adjustment will be the number of securities that a holder
of the securities purchasable upon exercise of one Right
immediately prior to such distribution, subdivision, change,
combination or issuance would hold thereafter as a result thereof.

If after the Record Time and prior to the Expiration Time, the Trust shall issue
any of its securities other than Trust Units in a transaction of a type described in
subsection 2.3(b)(i) or 2.3(b)(iv), such securities shall be treated herein as nearly
equivalent to Trust Units as may be practicable and appropriate under the
circumstances and the Trust and the Rights Agent agree to amend this Agreement
in order to effect such treatment.

If an event occurs which would require an adjustment under both this Section 2.3
and Section 3.1 hereof, the adjustment provided for in this Section 2.3 shall be in
addition to, and shall be made prior to, any adjustment required pursuant to
Section 3.1 hereof.

If the Trust shall at any time after the Record Time and prior to the Separation
Time issue any Trust Units otherwise than in a transaction referred to in
subsections 2.3(b)(1) to 2.3(b)(iv), each such Trust Unit so issued shall

21



®

automatically have one new Right associated with it, which Right shall be
evidenced by the certificate representing such Trust Unit.

If the Trust shall, at any time after the Record Time and prior to the Expiration
Time fix a record date for the making of a distribution to all holders of Trust Units
of rights or warrants entitling them (for a period expiring within 45calendar days
after such record date) to subscribe for or purchase Trust Units (or securities
convertible into or exchangeable for or carrying a right to purchase or subscribe
for Trust Units) at a price per Trust Unit (or, in the case of a security convertible
into or exchangeable for or carrying a right to purchase or subscribe for Trust
Units, having a conversion, exchange or exercise price per Trust Unit (including
the price required to be paid to purchase such convertible or exchangeable
security or right)) less than the Market Price per Trust Unit on such record date,
the Exercise Price in effect after such record date will equal the Exercise Price in
effect immediately prior to such record date multiplied by a fraction:

(1) of which the numerator shall be the number of Trust Units outstanding on
such record date plus the number of Trust Units which the aggregate
offering price of the total number of Trust Units so to be offered (and/or
the aggregate initial conversion, exchange or exercise price of the
convertible or exchangeable securities or rights so to be offered (including
the price required to be paid to purchase such convertible or exchangeable
securities or rights)) would purchase at such Market Price per Trust Unit;
and

(i1) of which the denominator shall be the number of Trust Units outstanding
on such record date plus the number of additional Trust Units to be offered
for subscription or purchase (or into which the convertible or
exchangeable securities or rights so to be offered are initially convertible,
exchangeable or exercisable).

In case such subscription price may be paid in a consideration, part or all of which
shall be in a form other than cash, the value of such consideration shall be as
determined in good faith by the Board, whose determination shall be described in
a statement filed with the Rights Agent and shall be binding on the Rights Agent
and the holder of the Rights. Such adjustment shall be made successively
whenever such a record date is fixed. To the extent that such rights or warrants
are not exercised prior to the expiration thereof, the Exercise Price shall be
readjusted to the Exercise Price which would then be in effect based on the
number of Trust Units (or securities convertible into or exchangeable for Trust
Units) actually issued upon the exercise of such Rights.

For purposes of this Agreement, the granting of the right to purchase Trust Units

(whether from treasury or otherwise) pursuant to any distribution reinvestment

plan or any Trust Unit participation plan providing for the reinvestment of

distributions or the investment of periodic optional payments or employee benefit

or similar plans (so long as such right to purchase is in no case evidenced by the
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(1)

delivery of rights or warrants by the Trust) shall not be deemed to constitute an
issue of rights or warrants by the Trust; provided, however, that in the case of any
distribution reinvestment or Trust Unit participation plan, the right to purchase
Trust Units is at a price per Trust Unit of not less than 90% of the current market
price per Trust Unit (determined as provided in such plans) of the Trust Units.

If the Trust shall, at any time after the Record Time and prior to the Expiration
Time, fix a record date for the making of a distribution to all holders of Trust
Units (including any such distribution made in connection with a merger in which
the Trust is the continuing entity) of evidences of indebtedness, cash or assets
(other than an ordinary course distribution or a distribution referred to in
subsection 2.3(b)(1)) or of rights or warrants entitling them to subscribe for or
purchase Trust Units (excluding those referred to in subsection 2.3(f)) at a price
per Trust Unit (or, in the case of a security convertible into or exchangeable for or
carrying a right to purchase or subscribe for Trust Units, having a conversion,
exchange or exercise price per Trust Unit (including the price required to be paid
to purchase such convertible or exchangeable security or right)) less than the
Market Price per Trust Unit on such record date, the Exercise Price in effect after
such record date shall be equal to the Exercise Price in effect immediately prior to
such record date less the fair market value (as determined in good faith by the
Board, whose determination shall be described in a statement filed with the Rights
Agent and shall be binding on the Rights Agent and the holders of the Rights) of
the portion of the assets, evidences of indebtedness, cash, rights or warrants so to
be distributed applicable to each of the securities purchasable upon exercise of
one Right. Such adjustment shall be made successively whenever such a record
date is fixed.

Each adjustment made pursuant to this Section 2.3 shall be made as of:

(1) the payment or effective date for the applicable distribution, subdivision,
change, combination or issuance, in the case of an adjustment made
pursuant to subsection 2.3(b) above; and

(i1) the record date for the applicable distribution, in the case of an adjustment
made pursuant to subsections2.3(f) or 2.3(g) above, subject to
readjustment to reverse the same if such distribution is not made.

If the Trust shall at any time after the Record Time and prior to the Expiration
Time issue any securities (other than Trust Units), or rights or warrants to
subscribe for or purchase any such securities or securities convertible into or
exchangeable for any such securities, in a transaction of a type referred to in
subsections 2.3(b)(i) to 2.3(b)(iv), 2.3(f) or 2.3(g) above and, if the Board acting
in good faith determines that the adjustments contemplated by subsections 2.3(b),
2.3(f) and 2.3(g) above are not applicable or will not appropriately protect the
interests of the holders of Rights, the Board may, subject to receipt of all
necessary regulatory approvals, determine what other adjustments to the Exercise
Price, number of Rights and/or securities purchasable upon exercise of Rights
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would be appropriate and, notwithstanding subsections 2.3(b), (f) and (g) above,
such adjustments, rather than the adjustments contemplated by subsections 2.3(b),
2.3(f) and 2.3(g) above, shall be made. The Trust and the Rights Agent shall
amend this Agreement as appropriate to provide for such adjustments.

Notwithstanding anything herein to the contrary, no adjustment of the Exercise
Price shall be required unless such adjustment would require an increase or
decrease of at least 1% in such Exercise Price; provided, however, that any
adjustments which by reason of this subsection 2.3(j) are not required to be made
shall be carried forward and taken into account in any subsequent adjustment. All
adjustments made pursuant to this Section 2.3 shall be calculated to the nearest
cent or to the nearest hundredth of a Trust Unit or Right, as the case may be.
Whenever an adjustment is made to the Exercise Price, the Trust shall promptly
file with the Rights Agent and the transfer agent for the Trust Units a copy of a
certificate setting forth such adjustment and a brief statement of facts accounting
for it and mail a summary thereof to the holders of Rights.

All Rights originally issued by the Trust subsequent to any adjustment made to an
Exercise Price hereunder shall evidence the right to purchase, at the adjusted
Exercise Price, the respective number of Trust Units purchasable from time to
time hereunder upon exercise of the Rights, all subject to further adjustment as
provided herein.

In any case in which this Section 2.3 shall require that an adjustment in an
Exercise Price be made effective as of a record date for a specified event, the
Trust may elect to defer, until the occurrence of such event, the issuance to the
holder of any Right exercised after such record date of the number of Trust Units
and other securities of the Trust, issuable upon such exercise over and above the
number of Trust Units and other securities of the Trust, issuable upon such
exercise on the basis of the relevant Exercise Price in effect prior to such
adjustment; provided, however, that the Trust shall deliver to such holder an
appropriate instrument evidencing such holder’s right to receive such additional
Trust Units (fractional or otherwise) or other securities upon the occurrence of the
event requiring such adjustment.

Notwithstanding anything in this Section 2.3 to the contrary, the Trust shall be
entitled to make such reductions in the Exercise Price, in addition to those
adjustments expressly required by this Section 2.3, as and to the extent that in
their good faith judgement the Board shall determine to be advisable in order that
any:

(1) consolidation or subdivision of Trust Units;

(i)  issuance wholly or in part for cash of any Trust Units or securities that by
their terms are convertible into or exchangeable for Trust Units;

(1ii)  Trust Unit distributions; or
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(iv)  issuance of rights, options or warrants referred to in this Section 2.3,

hereafter made by the Trust to holders of its Trust Units shall not be taxable to
such unitholders.

(n) The Trust covenants and agrees that, after the Separation Time, it will not, except
as permitted by Section 5.1 or 5.4, take any action, if at the time such action is
taken it is reasonably foreseeable that such action will diminish substantially or
otherwise eliminate the benefits intended to be afforded by the Rights.

(0) Irrespective of any adjustment or change in the securities purchasable upon
exercise of the Rights, the Rights Certificates theretofore and thereafter issued
may continue to represent the securities so purchasable which were represented in
the initial Rights Certificates issued hereunder.

24 Date on Which Exercise is Effective

Each Person in whose name any certificate for Trust Units or other securities, property or assets, if
applicable, is issued upon the exercise of Rights shall for all purposes be deemed to have become the
holder of record of the Trust Units or other securities, property or assets, if applicable, represented
thereby on, and such certificate shall be dated, the date upon which the Rights Certificate evidencing such
Rights was duly surrendered (together with a duly completed Election to Exercise) and payment of the
Exercise Price for such Rights (and any applicable transfer taxes and other governmental charges payable
by the exercising Person hereunder) was made; provided, however, that if the date of such surrender and
payment is a date upon which the Trust Unit transfer books of the Trust are closed, such Person shall be
deemed to have become the record holder of such Trust Units on, and such certificate shall be dated, the
next succeeding Business Day on which the Trust Unit transfer books of the Trust are open.

2.5 Execution, Authentication, Delivery and Dating of Rights Certificates

(a) The Rights Certificates shall be executed on behalf of the Trust by any one officer
or director of Shiningbank. The signature of any of these officers on the Rights
Certificates may be manual or facsimile. Rights Certificates bearing the manual
or facsimile signatures of individuals who were at any time the proper officers of
Shiningbank shall bind the Trust, notwithstanding that such individuals or any of
them have ceased to hold such offices prior to the countersignature and delivery
of such Rights Certificates.

(b) Promptly after the Trust learns of the Separation Time, the Trust will notify the
Rights Agent of such Separation Time and will deliver Rights Certificates
executed by the Trust to the Rights Agent for countersignature, and the Rights
Agent shall countersign (manually or by facsimile signature in a manner
satisfactory to the Trust) and send such Rights Certificates to the holders of the
Rights pursuant to subsection 2.2(c) hereof. No Rights Certificate shall be valid
for any purpose until countersigned by the Rights Agent as aforesaid.

() Each Rights Certificate shall be dated the date of countersignature thereof.
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(a)

(b)

(c)

(d)

2.7

(2)

(b)

Registration, Registration of Transfer and Exchange

After the Separation Time, the Trust will cause to be kept a register (the “Rights
Register”) in which, subject to such reasonable regulations as it may prescribe, the
Trust will provide for the registration and transfer of Rights. The Rights Agent is
hereby appointed “Rights Registrar” for the purpose of maintaining the Rights
Register for the Trust and registering Rights and transfers of Rights as herein
provided and the Rights Agent hereby accepts such appointment. In the event that
the Rights Agent shall cease to be the Rights Registrar, the Rights Agent will
have the right to examine the Rights Register at all reasonable times.

After the Separation Time and prior to the Expiration Time, upon surrender for
registration of transfer or exchange of any Rights Certificate, and subject to the
provisions of subsection 2.6(d) and 3.1(b) below, the Trust will execute, and the
Rights Agent will countersign, deliver and register, in the name of the holder or
the designated transferee or transferees, as required pursuant to the holder’s
instructions, one or more new Rights Certificates evidencing the same aggregate
number of Rights as did the Rights Certificates so surrendered.

All Rights issued upon any registration of transfer or exchange of Rights
Certificates shall be valid obligations of the Trust, and such Rights shall be
entitled to the same benefits under this Agreement as the Rights surrendered upon
such registration of transfer or exchange.

Every Rights Certificate surrendered for registration of transfer or exchange shall
be duly endorsed, or be accompanied by a written instrument of transfer in form
satisfactory to the Trust or the Rights Agent, as the case may be, duly executed by
the holder thereof or such holder’s attorney duly authorized in writing. As a
condition to the issuance of any new Rights Certificate, under this Section 2.6, the
Trust may require the payment of a sum sufficient to cover any tax or other
governmental charge that may be imposed in relation thereto and any other
expenses (including the fees and expenses of the Rights Agent) in connection
therewith.

Mutilated, Lost, Stolen and Destroyed Rights Certificates

If any mutilated Rights Certificate is surrendered to the Rights Agent prior to the
Expiration Time, the Trust shall execute and the Rights Agent shall countersign
and deliver in exchange therefor a new Rights Certificate evidencing the same
number of Rights as did the Rights Certificate so surrendered.

If there shall be delivered to the Trust and the Rights Agent prior to the Expiration
Time: (i) evidence to their satisfaction of the destruction, loss or theft of any
Rights Certificate; and (ii) such security or indemnity as may be required by them
in their sole discretion to save each of them and any of their agents harmless,
then, in the absence of notice to the Trust or the Rights Agent that such Rights
Certificate has been acquired by a bona fide purchaser, the Trust shall execute and
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upon its request the Rights Agent shall countersign and deliver, in lieu of any
such destroyed, lost or stolen Rights Certificate, a new Rights Certificate
evidencing the same number of Rights as did the Rights Certificate so destroyed,
lost or stolen.

(c) As a condition to the issuance of any new Rights Certificate under this
Section 2.7, the Trust may require the payment of a sum sufficient to cover any
tax or other governmental charge that may be imposed in relation thereto and any
other expenses (including the fees and expenses of the Rights Agent) connected
therewith.

(d) Every new Rights Certificate issued pursuant to this Section 2.7 in lieu of any
destroyed, lost or stolen Rights Certificate, shall evidence an original additional
contractual obligation of the Trust, whether or not the destroyed, lost or stolen
Rights Certificate shall be at any time enforceable by anyone, and shall be entitled
to all the benefits of this Agreement equally and proportionately with any and all
other Rights duly issued hereunder.

2.8 Persons Deemed Owners

The Trust, the Rights Agent and any agent of the Trust or the Rights Agent may deem and treat the
Person in whose name a Rights Certificate (or, prior to the Separation Time, the associated Trust Unit
certificate) is registered as the absolute owner thereof and of the Rights evidenced thereby for all purposes
whatsoever. As used in this Agreement, unless the context otherwise requires, the term “holder” of any
Rights shall mean the registered holder of such Rights (or, prior to the Separation Time, the associated
Trust Units).

2.9 Delivery and Cancellation of Certificates

All Rights Certificates surrendered upon exercise or for redemption, registration of transfer or exchange
shall, if surrendered to any Person other than the Rights Agent, be delivered to the Rights Agent and, in
any case, shall be promptly cancelled by the Rights Agent. The Trust may at any time deliver to the
Rights Agent for cancellation any Rights Certificates previously countersigned and delivered hereunder
which the Trust may have acquired in any manner whatsoever, and all Rights Certificates so delivered
shall be promptly cancelled by the Rights Agent. No Rights Certificate shall be countersigned in lieu of
or in exchange for any Rights Certificates cancelled as provided in this Section 2.9 except as expressly
permitted by this Agreement. The Rights Agent shall, subject to applicable law, destroy all cancelled
Rights Certificates and deliver a certificate of destruction to the Trust.

2.10 Agreement of Rights Holders

Every holder of Rights, by accepting such Rights, consents and agrees with the Trust and the Rights
Agent and with every other holder of Rights:

(a) to be bound by and subject to the provisions of this Agreement, as amended from
time to time in accordance with the terms hereof, in respect of all Rights held;

(b)  that, prior to the Separation Time, each Right will be transferable only together
with, and will be transferred by a transfer of, the associated Trust Unit;
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(d)

(e)
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(b

that, after the Separation Time, the Rights will be transferable only on the Rights
Register as provided herein;

that, prior to due presentment of a Rights Certificate (or, prior to the Separation
Time, the associated Trust Unit certificate) for registration of transfer, the Trust,
the Rights Agent and any agent of the Trust or the Rights Agent may deem and
treat the Person in whose name the Rights Certificate (or, prior to the Separation
Time, the associated Trust Unit certificate) is registered as the absolute owner
thereof and of the Rights evidenced thereby (notwithstanding any notations of
ownership or writing on such Rights Certificate or the associated Trust Unit
certificate made by anyone other than the Trust or the Rights Agent) for all
purposes whatsoever, and neither the Trust nor the Rights Agent shall be affected
by any notice to the contrary;

that, such holder of Rights has waived its right to receive any fractional Rights or
any fractional Trust Units or other securities, upon exercise of a Right (except as
provided herein);

that, such holder of Rights shall not be entitled to any payment on a redemption of
Rights hereunder if the payment owing to the holder would be less than $2.00;

that, if expressly provided in this Agreement, without the approval of any holder
of Rights or Trust Units and upon the sole authority of the Board, this Agreement
may be supplemented or amended from time to time as provided herein; and

notwithstanding anything in this Agreement to the contrary, neither the Trust nor
the Rights Agent shall have any liability to any holder of a Right or any other
Person as a result of its inability to perform any of its obligations under this
Agreement by reason of any preliminary or permanent injunction or other order,
decree or ruling issued by a court of competent jurisdiction or by a governmental,
regulatory or administrative agency or commission, or any statute, rule, regulation
or executive order promulgated or enacted by a governmental authority,
prohibiting or otherwise restraining performance of such obligations.

ARTICLE 3

ADJUSTMENTS TO THE RIGHTS IN THE EVENT OF CERTAIN TRANSACTIONS

31

(a)

Flip-in Event

Subject to subsection 3.1(b) and subsections 5.1(b), (¢) and (d), in the event that
prior to the Expiration Time a Flip-in Event occurs, the Board shall take such
action as shall be necessary to ensure and provide, within 10 Business Days or
such longer period as may be required to satisfy the requirements of the
applicable securities acts or comparable legislation, so that, except as provided
below, each Right shall thereafter constitute the right to purchase from the Trust,
upon exercise thereof in accordance with the terms hereof, that number of Trust
Units having an aggregate Market Price on the date of consummation or
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occurrence of such Flip-in Event equal to twice the Exercise Price for an amount
in cash equal to the Exercise Price (such Right to be appropriately adjusted in a
manner analogous to the applicable adjustment provided for in Section 2.3 in the
event that after such date of consummation or occurrence, an event of a type
analogous to any of the events described in Section 2.3 shall have occurred with
respect to such Trust Units).

Notwithstanding the foregoing or any other provisions of this Agreement, upon
the occurrence of any Flip-in Event, any Rights that are or were Beneficially
Owned on or after the earlier of the Separation Time and the Trust Unit
Acquisition Date by:

() an Acquiring Person (or any Affiliate or Associate of an Acquiring Person
or any Person acting jointly or in concert with an Acquiring Person or any
Associate or Affiliate of an Acquiring Person); or

(i)  a transferee of Rights, direct or indirect, of an Acquiring Person (or any
Affiliate or Associate of an Acquiring Person or any Person acting jointly
or in concert with an Acquiring Person or any Associate or Affiliate of an
Acquiring Person) in a transfer made after the date hereof, whether or not
for consideration, that the Board acting in good faith has determined is
part of a plan, arrangement or scheme of an Acquiring Person (or any
Affiliate or Associate of an Acquiring Person or any Person acting jointly
or in concert with an Acquiring Person or any Associate or Affiliate of an
Acquiring Person) that has the purpose or effect of avoiding
subsection 3.1(b)(i),

shall become null and void without any further action and any holder of such
Rights (including any transferee of, or other successor entitled to, such Rights,
whether directly or indirectly) shall thereafter have no right to exercise such
Rights under any provisions of this Agreement and shall not have any other rights
whatsoever in respect of such Rights, whether under any provision of this
Agreement or otherwise. The holder of any Rights represented by a Rights
Certificate which is submitted to the Rights Agent upon exercise or for
registration of transfer or exchange which does not contain the necessary
certifications set forth in the Rights Certificate establishing that such Rights are
not void under this subsection 3.1(b) shall be deemed to be an Acquiring Person
for the purposes of this subsection 3.1(b) and such Rights shall become null and
void.

Any Rights Certificate that represents Rights Beneficially Owned by a Person
described in either subsections 3.1(b)(i) or (ii) or transferred to any nominee of
any such Person, and any Rights Certificate issued upon transfer, exchange,
replacement or adjustment of any other Rights Certificate referred to in this
sentence, shall contain or will be deemed to contain the following legend:
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3.2

“The Rights represented by this Rights Certificate were
Beneficially Owned by a Person who was an Acquiring Person
or an Affiliate or an Associate of an Acquiring Person (as such
terms are defined in the Rights Agreement) or was acting jointly
or in concert with any of them. This Rights Certificate and the
Rights represented hereby shall become void in the
circumstances specified in subsection 3.1(b) of the Rights
Agreement.”

provided that the Rights Agent shall not be under any responsibility to ascertain
the existence of facts that would require the imposition of such legend but is
required to impose such legend only if instructed to do so by the Trust or if a
holder fails to certify upon transfer or exchange in the space provided on the
Rights Certificate that such holder is not an Acquiring Person or an Affiliate or
Associate thereof. '

In the event that there shall not be sufficient Trust Units authorized for issuance to
permit the exercise in full of the Rights in accordance with this section, the Trust
shall take all such action as may be necessary to authorize additional Trust Units
for issuance upon the exercise of the Rights.

Further Acts

Nothing contained in this Article 3 shall be construed as limiting or prohibiting the Trust or any offeror
from proposing or engaging in any acquisition, disposition or other transfer of any securities of the Trust,
any merger, amalgamation, arrangement, recapitalization or business combination or transaction
involving the Trust, any sale or other transfer of assets of the Trust, any liquidation, dissolution or
winding up of the Trust or any other business combination or other transaction, or any other action by the
Trust or any offeror; provided that the holders of Rights shall have the rights set forth in this Agreement
with respect to any such acquisition, disposition, transfer, merger, amalgamation, arrangement,
recapitalization, sale, liquidation, dissolution, winding up, business combination or transaction or action.

4.1

()

ARTICLE 4
THE RIGHTS AGENT
General

The Trust hereby appoints the Rights Agent to act as agent for the Trust and the
holders of Rights in accordance with the terms and conditions hereof, and the
Rights Agent hereby accepts such appointment. The Trust may from time to time
appoint such co-rights agents (“Co-Rights Agents”) as it may deem necessary or
desirable. In the event the Trust appoints one or more Co-Rights Agents, the
respective duties of the Rights Agent and Co-Rights Agents shall be as the Trust
may determine. The Trust agrees to pay to the Rights Agent reasonable
compensation for all services rendered by it hereunder and, from time to time, on
demand of the Rights Agent, its reasonable expenses and counsel fees and other
disbursements incurred in the administration and execution of this Agreement and
the exercise and performance of its duties hereunder (including the reasonable
fees and disbursements of any expert retained by the Rights Agent with the
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(b)

(©)

(a)

approval of the Board, such approval not to be unreasonably withheld). The Trust
also agrees to indemnify the Rights Agent, its directors, officers, agents and
employees for, and to hold them harmless against, any loss, liability, damages or
expense, incurred without negligence, bad faith or wilful misconduct on the part
of the Rights Agent, for anything done, suffered or omitted by the Rights Agent in
connection with the acceptance, execution and administration of this Agreement
and the exercise and performance of duties hereunder, including the costs and
expenses of defending against any claim of liability, which right to
indemnification will survive the termination of this Agreement or the resignation
or removal of the Rights Agent.

The Rights Agent shall be protected and shall incur no liability for, or in respect
of, any action taken, suffered or omitted by it in connection with its
administration of this Agreement in reliance upon any certificate for Trust Units,
Rights Certificate, certificate for other securities of the Trust, instrument of
assignment or transfer, power of attorney, endorsement, affidavit, letter, notice,
direction, consent, certificate, statement or other paper or document believed by it
to be genuine and to be signed, executed and, where necessary, verified or
acknowledged by the proper Person or Persons.

The Trust shall inform the Rights Agent in a reasonably timely manner of events
which may materially affect the administration of this Agreement by the Rights
Agent and, at any time upon written request, shall provide to the Rights Agent an
incumbency certificate certifying the then current officers and directors of
Shiningbank.

Merger, Amalgamation, Consolidation or Change of Name of Rights Agent

Any corporation into which the Rights Agent or any successor rights agent may
be merged or amalgamated or with which it may be consolidated, or any
corporation resulting from any merger, amalgamation, statutory arrangement or
consolidation to which the Rights Agent or any successor rights agent is a party,
or any corporation succeeding to the unitholder or stockholder services business
of the Rights Agent or any successor rights agent, will be the successor to the
Rights Agent under this Agreement without the execution or filing of any paper or
any further act on the part of any of the parties hereto, provided that such
corporation would be eligible for appointment as a successor rights agent under
the provisions of Section 4.4 hereof. In case at the time such successor rights
agent succeeds to the agency created by this Agreement any of the Rights
Certificates have been countersigned but not delivered, any such successor rights
agent may adopt the countersignature of the predecessor Rights Agent and deliver
such Rights Certificates so countersigned; and in case at that time any of the
Rights Certificates have not been countersigned, any successor rights agent may
countersign such Rights Certificates either in the name of the predecessor Rights
Agent or in the name of the successor rights agent; and in all such cases such
Rights Certificates will have the full force provided in the Rights Certificates and
in this Agreement.
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In case at any time the name of the Rights Agent is changed and at such time any
of the Rights Certificates shall have been countersigned but not delivered, the
Rights Agent may adopt the countersignature under its prior name and deliver
Rights Certificates so countersigned; and in case at that time any of the Rights
Certificates shall not have been countersigned, the Rights Agent may countersign
such Rights Certificates either in its prior name or in its changed name; and in all
such cases such Rights Certificates shall have the full force provided in the Rights
Certificates and in this Agreement.

Duties of Rights Agent

The Rights Agent undertakes the duties and obligations imposed by this Agreement upon the following
terms and conditions, by all of which the Trust and the holders of Rights Certificates, by their acceptance
thereof, shall be bound:

(a)

(b)

(c)

(d)

(e)

The Rights Agent may retain and consult with legal counsel (who may be legal
counsel for the Trust) and the opinion of such counsel will be full and complete
authorization and protection to the Rights Agent as to any action taken or omitted
by it in good faith and in accordance with such opinion; the Rights Agent may
also, with the approval of the Trust (such approval not to be unreasonably
withheld), and at the expense of the Trust, consult with such other experts as the
Rights Agent shall consider necessary or appropriate to properly carry out the
duties and obligations imposed under this Agreement and the Rights Agent shall
be entitled to rely in good faith on the advice of any such expert;

Whenever in the performance of its duties under this Agreement the Rights Agent
deems it necessary or desirable that any fact or matter be proved or established by
the Trust prior to taking or suffering any action hereunder, such fact or matter
(unless other evidence in respect thereof be herein specifically prescribed) may be
deemed to be conclusively proved and established by a certificate signed by a
person believed by the Rights Agent to be an officer or director of Shiningbank
and delivered to the Rights Agent; and such certificate will be full authorization to
the Rights Agent for any action taken or suffered in good faith by it under the
provisions of this Agreement in reliance upon such certificate;

The Rights Agent will be liable hereunder only for its own negligence, bad faith
or wilful misconduct;

The Rights Agent will not be liable for or by reason of any of the statements of
fact or recitals contained in this Agreement or in the certificates for Trust Units,
or the Rights Certificates (except its countersignature thereof) or be required to
verify the same, but all such statements and recitals are and will be deemed to
have been made by the Trust only;

The Rights Agent will not be under any responsibility in respect of the validity of
this Agreement or the authorization, execution and delivery hereof (except the due
authorization, execution and delivery hereof by the Rights Agent) or in respect of
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the validity or execution of any certificate for Trust Units or Rights Certificate
(except its countersignature thereof); nor will it be responsible for any breach by
the Trust of any covenant or condition contained in this Agreement or in any
Rights Certificate; nor will it be responsible for any change in the exercisability of
the Rights (including the Rights becoming void pursuant to subsection 3.1(b)
hereof) or any adjustment required under the provisions of Section 2.3 hereof or
responsible for the manner, method or amount of any such adjustment or the
ascertaining of the existence of facts that would require any such adjustment
(except with respect to the exercise of Rights after receipt of the certificate
contemplated by Section 2.3 describing any such adjustment); nor will it by any
act hereunder be deemed to make any representation or warranty as to the
authorization of any Trust Units to be issued pursuant to this Agreement or any
Rights or as to any Trust Units, when issued, being duly and validly authorized,
issued and delivered as fully paid and non-assessable;

The Trust agrees that it will perform, execute, acknowledge and deliver or cause
to be performed, executed, acknowledged and delivered all such further and other
acts, instruments and assurances as may reasonably be required by the Rights
Agent for the carrying out or performing by the Rights Agent of the provisions of
this Agreement;

The Rights Agent is hereby authorized and directed to accept instructions with
respect to the performance of its duties hereunder from any individual designated
in writing by Shiningbank, and to apply to such individual for advice or
instructions in connection with its duties, and it shall not be liable for any action
taken or suffered by it in good faith in accordance with instructions of any such
individual; it is understood that instructions to the Rights Agent shall, except
where circumstances make it impracticable or the Rights Agent otherwise agrees,
be given in writing and, where not in writing, such instructions shall be confirmed
in writing as soon as reasonably possible after the giving of such instructions;

The Rights Agent and any unitholder or stockholder, director officer or employee
of the Rights Agent may buy, sell or deal in Trust Units, Rights or other securities
of the Trust or become pecuniarily interested in any transaction in which the Trust
may be interested, or contract with or lend money to the Trust or otherwise act as
fully and freely as though it were not the Rights Agent under this Agreement.
Nothing herein shall preclude the Rights Agent from acting in any other capacity
for the Trust or for any other legal entity; and

The Rights Agent may execute and exercise any of the rights or powers hereby
vested in it or perform any duty hereunder either itself or by or through its
attorneys or agents, and the Rights Agent will not be answerable or accountable
for any act, default, neglect or misconduct of any such attorneys or agents or for
any loss to the Trust resulting from any such act, omission, default, neglect or
misconduct, provided reasonable care was exercised in the selecticn and
continued employment thereof.
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44 Change of Rights Agent

The Rights Agent may resign and be discharged from its duties under this Agreement upon 60 days’
notice (or such lesser notice as is acceptable to the Trust) in writing mailed to the Trust and to each
transfer agent of Trust Units by registered or certified mail, and to the holders of the Rights in accordance
with Section 5.9. The Trust may remove the Rights Agent upon 30 days’ notice in writing, mailed to the
Rights Agent and to each transfer agent of the Trust Units by registered or certified mail, and to the
holders of the Rights in accordance with Section 5.9. If the Rights Agent should resign or be removed or
otherwise become incapable of acting, the Trust will appoint a successor to the Rights Agent. If the Trust
fails to make such appointment within a period of 30 days after such removal or after it has received
notice in writing of such resignation or incapacity by the resigning or incapacitated Rights Agent, then the
resigning Rights Agent or the holder of any Rights may apply to any court of competent jurisdiction for
the appointment of a new Rights Agent. Any successor rights agent, whether appointed by the Trust or
by such a court, must be a corporation incorporated under the laws of Canada or a province thereof and
authorized to carry on the business of a trust company in the Province of Alberta. After appointment, the
successor rights agent will be vested with the same powers, rights, duties and responsibilities as if it had
been originally named as Rights Agent without further act or deed; but upon payment by the Trust to the
predecessor Rights Agent of outstanding fees and expenses owing by the Trust, the predecessor Rights
Agent shall deliver and transfer to the successor rights agent any property at the time held by it hereunder,
and execute and deliver any further assurance, conveyance, act or deed necessary for the purpose. Not
later than the effective date of any such appointment, the Trust will file notice thereof in writing with the
predecessor Rights Agent and each transfer agent of the Trust Units and mail a notice thereof in writing to
the holders of the Rights in accordance with Section 5.9. Failure to give any notice provided for in this
Section 4.4, however, or any defect therein, shall not affect the legality or validity of the resignation or
removal of the Rights Agent or the appointment of the successor rights agent, as the case may be.

ARTICLE 5
MISCELLANEOUS
5.1 Redemption, Waiver and Termination

(a) The Board acting in good faith may, with the prior consent of holders of Trust
Units or of the holders of the Rights given in accordance with Section 5.1(f) or
(g), as the case may be, at any time prior to the occurrence of a Flip-in Event as to
which the application of Section 3.1 has not been waived pursuant to the
provisions of this Section 5.1, elect to redeem all but not less than all of the then
outstanding Rights at a redemption price of $0.00001 per Right appropriately
adjusted in a manner analogous to the applicable adjustment provided for in
Section 2.3 in the event that an event of the type analogous to any of the events
described in Section 2.3 shall have occurred (such redemption price being herein
referred to as the “Redemption Price”). The redemption of the Rights by the
Board may be made effective at such time, on such basis and with such conditions
as the Board in its sole discretion may establish. The Board may, prior to the date
of the unitholders’ meeting described in Section 5.19, elect to redeem all but not
less than all of the then outstanding Rights without the approval of the holders of
Rights or Trust Units, provided such redemption is otherwise in accordance with
this Section 5.1(a).
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(c)
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With the prior consent of the holders of Trust Units obtained in accordance with
subsection 5.1(f), the Board may, at any time prior to the occurrence of a Flip-in
Event as to which the application of Section 3.1 has not been waived pursuant to
the provisions of this Section 5.1, if such Flip-in Event would occur by reason of
an acquisition of Trust Units otherwise than pursuant to a Take-over Bid made by
means of a Take-over Bid circular to all holders of record of Trust Units and
otherwise than in the circumstances set forth in subsection 5.1(d), waive the
application of Section 3.1 to such Flip-in Event. In the event that the Board
proposes such a waiver, the Board shall extend the Separation Time to a date
subsequent to and not more than 10 Business Days following the meeting of
unitholders called to approve such waiver.

Subject to Section 5.1(b), the Board, at its option, prior to the occurrence of a
Flip-in Event as to which the application of Section 3.1 has not been waived
under this clause, determine, upon prior written notice to the Rights Agent, to
waive the application of Section 3.1 to that Flip-in Event provided that the Flip-in
Event would occur by reason of a Take-over Bid made by means of a takeover bid
circular sent to all holders of record of Trust Units; further provided that if the
Board waives the application of Section 3.1 to such a Flip-in Event, the Board
shall be deemed to have waived the application of Section 3.1 to any Flip-in
Event occurring by reason of any Take-over Bid made by means of a take-over
bid circular to all holders of record of Trust Units which is made prior to the
expiry of any Take-over Bid in respect of which a waiver is, or is deemed to have
been, granted under this Section 5.1(c).

The Board may waive the application of Section 3.1 to a Flip-in Event provided
that the following conditions are satisfied:

(1) the Board has determined that the Acquiring Person became an Acquiring
Person by inadvertence and without any intention to becorne, or
knowledge that it would become, an Acquiring Person; and

(i1) such Acquiring Person has reduced its Beneficial Ownership of Trust
Units such that at the time of the waiver pursuant to this subsection 5.1(d),
it is no longer an Acquiring Person and has provided the Board with
satisfactory evidence thereof, and in the event of any such waiver, for the
purposes of this Agreement, such Flip-in Event shall be deemed not to
have occurred and the Separation Time shall be deemed not to have
occurred as a result of such Person having inadvertently become an
Acquiring Person.

The Board shall, without further formality, be deemed to have elected to redeem
the Rights at the Redemption Price on the date that a Person who has made a
Permitted Bid or a Takeover Bid in respect of which the Board has waived, or is
deemed to have waived, pursuant to Section 5.1(c), the application of Section 3.1,
takes up and pays for the Trust Units pursuant to the terms and conditions of the
Permitted Bid or Takeover Bid, as the case may be.
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V)

If a redemption of Rights pursuant to Section 5.1(a) or a waiver of a Flip-in Event
pursuant to Section 5.1(b) is proposed at any time prior to the Separation Time,
such redemption or waiver shall be submitted for approval to the holders of Trust
Units. Such approval shall be deemed to have been given if the redemption or
waiver is approved by the affirmative vote of a majority of the votes cast by
Independent Unitholders represented in person or by proxy at a meeting of such
holders duly held in accordance with applicable laws and the formation
documents of the Trust.

If a redemption of Rights pursuant to Section 5.1(a) is proposed at any time after
the Separation Time, such redemption shall be submitted for approval to holders
of Rights. Such approval shall be deemed to have been given if the redemption is
approved by holders of Rights by a majority of the votes cast by the holders of
Rights represented in person or by proxy at and entitled to vote at a meeting of
such holders. For the purposes hereof, each outstanding Right (other than Rights
which are Beneficially Owned by a Person referred to in clauses (i) to (V)
inclusive of the definition of Independent Unitholders) shall be entitled to one
vote, and the procedures for the calling, holding and conduct of the meeting shall
be those, as nearly as may be, which are provided in the formation documents of
the Trust with respect to meetings of unitholders of the Trust.

Where a Take-over Bid that is not a Permitted Bid or Competing Permitted Bid is
withdrawn or otherwise terminated after the Separation Time has occurred and
prior to the occurrence of a Flip-in Event, the Board may elect to redeem all of the
outstanding Rights at the Redemption Price. Notwithstanding such redemption,
all the provisions of this Agreement shall continue to apply as if the Separation
Time had not occurred and it shall be deemed not to have occurred and Rights
shall remain attached to the Trust Units, subject to and in accordance with the
terms of this Agreement.

If the Board elects to or is deemed to have elected to redeem the Rights the right
to exercise the Rights will thereupon, without further action and without notice,
terminate and the only right thereafter of the holders of Rights shall be to receive
the Redemption Price, if applicable, and no further Rights shall thereafter be
issued.

Within 10 Business Days of the Board electing or having been deemed to have
elected to redeem the Rights, the Trust shall give notice of redemption to the
holders of the then outstanding Rights by mailing such notice to each such holder
at his last address as it appears upon the Rights Register of the Rights Agent, or,
prior to the Separation Time, on the register for Trust Units maintained by the
Trust’s transfer agent. Each such notice of redemption shall state the method by
which the payment of the Redemption Price shall be made. The Trust may not
redeem, acquire or purchase for value any Rights at any time in any manner other
than that specifically set forth in this Section 5.1 or in connection with the
purchase of Trust Units prior to the Separation Time.
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5.2

The Trust shall give prompt notice to the Rights Agent of any waiver or proposed
waiver of the application of Section 3.1 made by the Board.

Expiration

No person will have any rights pursuant to this Agreement or in respect of any Right after the Expiration
Time, except the Rights Agent as specified in Section 4.1 hereof.

5.3

Issuance of New Rights Certificates

Notwithstanding any of the provisions of this Agreement or of the Rights to the contrary, the Trust may,
at its option, issue new Rights Certificates evidencing Rights in such form as may be approved by the
Board to reflect any adjustment or change in the number or kind or class of Trust Units purchasable upon
exercise of Rights made in accordance with the provisions of this Agreement.

54
(a)

(b)
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Supplements and Amendments

The Trust may make, without the approval of the holders of Rights or Trust Units,
any amendments to this Agreement specifically contemplated in subsection 2.3(i)
or any other provision hereof, to correct any clerical or typographical error, or
which are required to maintain the validity and effectiveness of the Agreement as
a result of any change in any applicable laws, rules or regulatory requirements.
The Trust may, prior to the date of the unitholders’ meeting referred to in Section
5.19, supplement, amend, vary or delete any of the provisions of this Agreement
and the Rights without the approval of any holder of Rights or Trust Units
{whether or not such action would materially adversely affect the interests of the
holders of Rights generally), where the Board acting in good faith deems such
action necessary or desirable. Notwithstanding anything in this Section 5.4 to the
contrary, no such supplement or amendment shall be made to the provisions of
Article 4 except with the written concurrence of the Rights Agent to such
supplement or amendment.

Subject to subsection 5.4(a), the Trust may, with the prior consent of the holders
of Trust Units obtained as set forth below, at any time before the Separation Time,
supplement, amend, vary, rescind or delete any of the provisions of this
Agreement and the Rights (whether or not such action would materially adversely
affect the interests of the holders of Rights generally). Such consent shall be
deemed to have been given if provided by the holders of Trust Units at a special
meeting called and held in compliance with applicable laws, rules and regulatory
requirements and the requirements in the formation documents of the Trust.
Subject to compliance with any requirements imposed by the foregoing, consent
shall be given if the action requiring such approval is authorized by the
affirmative vote of a majority of the votes cast by all Independent Unitholders
represented in person or by proxy at the special meeting.

The Trust may, with the prior consent of the holders of Rights obtained as set

forth below, at any time after the Separation Time, supplement, amend, vary,
rescind or delete any of the provisions of this Agreement and the Rights (whether
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or not such action would materially adversely affect the interests of the holders of
Rights generally). Such consent shall be deemed to have been given if provided
by the holders of Rights at a special meeting of holders of Rights called and held
in compliance with applicable laws, rules and regulatory requirements and, to the
extent possible, with the requirements in the formation documents of the Trust
applicable to meetings of holders of Trust Units, applied mutatis mutandis.
Subject to compliance with any requirements imposed by the foregoing, consent
shall be given if the proposed amendment, variation or rescission is approved by
the affirmative vote of a majority of the votes cast by holders of Rights (other
than holders of Rights whose Rights have become null and void pursuant to
subsection 3.1(b)), represented in person or by proxy at the special meeting.

Any approval of the holders of Rights shall be deemed to have been given if the
action requiring such approval is authorized by the affirmative votes of the
holders of Rights present or represented at and entitled to be voted at a meeting of
the holders of Rights and representing a majority of the votes cast in respect
thereof. For the purposes hereof, each outstanding Right (other than Rights which
are void pursuant to the provisions hereof) shall be entitled to one vote, and the
procedures for the calling, holding and conduct of the meeting shall be those, as
nearly as may be, which are provided in the formation documents of the Trust
with respect to meetings of unitholders of the Trust.

Any amendments made by the Trust pursuant to subsection 5.4(a) which are
required to maintain the validity and effectiveness of this Agreement as a result of
any change in any applicable laws, rules or regulatory requirements shall:

(i) if made before the Separation Time, be submitted to the unitholders at the
next meeting of unitholders and the unitholders may, by the majority
referred to in subsection 5.4(b), confirm or reject such amendment;

(i)  if made after the Separation Time, be submitted to the holders of Rights at
a meeting to be called for on a date not later than immediately following
the next meeting of unitholders of the Trust and the holders of Rights may,
by resolution on passed by the majority referred to in Subsection 5.4(d)
confirm or reject such amendment.

Any amendment, variation or deletion shall be effective from the date of the
resolution of the Board adopting such amendment, variation or deletion until it is
confirmed or rejected or until it ceases to be effective (as described in the next
sentence) and, where such amendment, variation or deletion is confirmed, it
continues in effect in the form so confirmed. If such amendment, variation or
deletion is rejected by the unitholders or the holders of Rights or is not submitted
to the unitholders or holders of Rights as required, then such amendment,
variation or deletion shall cease to be effective from and after the termination of
the meeting at which it was rejected or to which it should have been but was not
submitted or from and after the date of the meeting of holders of Rights that
should have been but was not held, and no subsequent resolution of the Board to
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amend, vary or delete any provision of this Agreement to substantially the same
effect shall be effective until confirmed by the unitholders or holders of Rights, as
the case may be.

5.5 Fractional Rights and Fractional Trust Units

(a) The Trust will not be required to issue fractions of Rights or to distribute Rights
Certificates which evidence fractional Rights. After the Separation Time there
shall be paid, to the registered holders of the Rights Certificates with regard to
which fractional Rights would otherwise be issuable, an amount in cash equal to
the same fraction of the Market Price of a whole Right in lieu of such fractional
Rights, as of the date such fractional Right would otherwise be issuable.

(b) The Trust shall not be required to issue fractional Trust Units upon exercise of the
Rights or to distribute certificates that evidence fractional Trust Units. In lieu of
issuing fractional Trust Units, the Trust shall pay to the registered holder of
Rights Certificates at the time such Rights are exercised as herein provided, an
amount in cash equal to the same fraction of the Market Price of one Trust Unit at
the date of such exercise.

5.6 Rights of Action

Subject to the terms of this Agreement, rights of action in respect of this Agreement, other than rights of
action vested solely in the Rights Agent, are vested in the respective holders of the Rights; and any holder
of any Rights, without the consent of the Rights Agent or of the holder of any other Rights may, on such
holder’s own behalf and for such holder’s own benefit and the benefit of other holders of Rights, enforce,
and may institute and maintain any suit, action or proceeding against the Trust to enforce, or otherwise act
in respect of, such holder’s right to exercise such holder’s Rights, or Rights to which he is entitled, in the
manner provided in this Agreement and in such holder’s Rights Certificate. Without limiting the
foregoing or any remedies available to the holders of Rights, it is specifically acknowledged that the
holders of Rights would not have an adequate remedy at law for any breach of this Agreement and will be
entitled to specific performance of the obligations under, and injunctive relief against actual or threatened
violations of, the obligations of any Person subject to this Agreement.

5.7 Holder of Rights Not Deemed a Unitholder

No holder, as such, of any Rights shall be entitled to vote, receive distribution or be deemed for any
purpose the holder of Trust Units or any other securities which may at any time be issuable on the
exercise of Rights, nor shall anything contained herein or in any Rights Certificate be construed to confer
upon the holder of any Rights, as such, any of the rights of a unitholder of the Trust or any right to vote
for the election of directors, or upon any matter submitted to unitholders at any meeting thereof, or to give
or withhold consent to any action of the Trust or Shiningbank, or to receive notice of meetings or other
actions affecting unitholders (except as provided in Section 5.8 hereof) or to receive distributions or
subscription rights or otherwise, until such Rights or Right to which such holder is entitled, shall have
been exercised in accordance with the provisions hereof.

5.8 Notice of Proposed Actions

In case the Trust proposes after the Separation Time and prior to the Expiration Time:
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(a) to effect or permit (in cases where the Trust’s permission is required) any Flip-in
Event; or '

(b)  to effect the liquidation, dissolution or winding up of the Trust or the sale of all or
substantially all of the Trust’s assets,

then, in each such case, the Trust shall give to each holder of a Right, in accordance with Section 5.9
hereof, a notice of such proposed action, which shall specify the date on which such Flip-in Event,
liquidation, dissolution, or winding up is to take place, and such notice shall be so given at least
10 Business Days prior to the date of the taking of such proposed action by the Trust.

5.9 Notices

Notices or demands authorized or required by this Agreement to be given or made to or by the Rights
Agent, the holder of any Rights or the Trust will be sufficiently given or made if delivered or sent by
first-class mail, postage prepaid, or by fax machine (with, in the case of fax, an original copy of the notice
or demand sent by first class mail, postage prepaid, to the Trust following the giving of the notice or
demand by fax); addressed (until another address is filed in writing with the Rights Agent or the Trust, as
applicable), as follows:

(a) if to the Trust:

Shiningbank Energy Income Fund

c/o Shiningbank Energy Ltd.

Suite 1050, Bow Valley Square 4

250 - 6th Avenue S.W.

Calgary, Alberta T2P 3H7

Fax: (403) 268-7499

Attention: Corporate Secretary, or
Chief Financial Officer

(b)  ifto the Rights Agent:

MONTREAL TRUST COMPANY OF CANADA
7th Floor, Western Gas Tower

530 - 8th Avenue S.W.

Calgary, Alberta T2P 3S8

Fax: (403) 267-6598

Attention: Manager, Corporate Trust Department

(c) if to the holder of any Rights:

to the address of such holder as it appears on the registry books of the Rights
Agent or, prior to the Separation Time, on the registry books of the Trust for the
Trust Units. Any notice which is mailed or sent or delivered in the manner herein
provided for shall be deemed given whether or not the holder receives the notice.
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Any notice given or made in accordance with this Section 5.9 shall be deemed to
have been given and to have been received on the day of delivery, if so delivered,
on the third Business Day (excluding each day during which there exists any
general interruption of postal service due to strike, lockout or other cause)
following the mailing thereof, if so mailed, and on the day of faxing (provided
such sending is during the normal business hours of the addressee on a Business
Day and if not, on the first Business Day thereafter). Each of the Trust and the
Rights Agent may from time to time change its address for notice by notice to the
other given in the manner aforesaid.

If mail service is or is threatened to be interrupted at a time when the Trust or the
Rights Agent wishes to give a notice or demand hereunder to or on the holders of
the Rights, the Trust or the Rights Agent may, notwithstanding the foregoing
provisions of this Section 5.9, give such notice by means of publication once in
each of two successive weeks in the business section of a national newspaper and,
as long as the Trust has a transfer agent in the United States, in a daily publication
in the United States designated by the Trust, or in such other publication or
publications as may be designated by the Trust and notice so published shall be
deemed to have been given on the date on which the first publication of such
notice in any such publication has taken place.

5.10 Costs of Enforcement

The Trust agrees that if the Trust fails to fulfill any of its obligations pursuant to this Agreement, then the
Trust will reimburse the holder of any Rights for the costs and expenses (including reasonable legal fees)
incurred by such holder in actions to enforce his rights pursuant to any Rights or this Agreement.

5.11 Regulatory Approvals

Any obligation of the Trust or action or event contemplated by this Agreement, or any amendment to this
Agreement, shall be subject to the receipt of any requisite approval or consent from any governmental or
regulatory authority. Without limiting the generality of the foregoing, any issuance or delivery of debt or
equity securities (other than non-convertible debt security) of the Trust upon the exercise of Rights and
any amendment to this Agreement shall be subject to the prior consent of the stock exchange on which the
Trust Units are listed, if required.

5.12 Declaration as to Non-Canadian Holders

1f in the opinion of the Board (who may rely on the advice of counsel) any action or event contemplated
by this Agreement would require compliance with the securities laws or comparable legislation of a
jurisdiction outside of Canada, the Board acting in good faith may take such actions as it may deem
appropriate to ensure such compliance. In no event shall the Trust or the Rights Agent be required to
issue or deliver Rights or securities issuable on exercise of Rights to persons who are citizens, residents or
nationals of any jurisdiction other than Canada and any province or territory thereof in which such issue
or delivery would be unlawful without registration of the relevant Persons or securities for such purposes.
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5.13 Successors

All the covenants and provisions of this Agreement by or for the benefit of the Trust or the Rights Agent
shall bind and enure to the benefit of their respective successors and assigns hereunder.

5.14 Benefits of this Agreement

Nothing in this Agreement shall be construed to give to any Person other than the Trust, the Rights Agent
and the holders of the Rights any legal or equitable right, remedy or claim under this Agreement; this
Agreement shall be for the sole and exclusive benefit of the Trust, the Rights Agent and the holders of the
Rights.

5.15 Governing Law

This Agreement and the Rights issued hereunder shall be deemed to be a contract made under the laws of
the Province of Alberta and for all purposes will be governed by and construed in accordance with the
laws of such province applicable to contracts to be made and performed entirely within such province.

5.16 Language

The parties hereto have required that this Agreement and all documents and notices related thereto and/or
resulting therefrom be drawn up in English,

5.17 Counterparts

This Agreement may be executed in any number of counterparts and each of such counterparts will for all
purposes be deemed to be an original, and all such counterparts shall together constitute one and the same
instrument.

5.18 Severability

If any term or provision hereof or the application thereof to any circumstance is, in any jurisdiction and to
any extent, invalid or unenforceable, such term or provision will be ineffective as to such jurisdiction to
the extent of such invalidity or unenforceability without invalidating or rendering unenforceable the
remaining terms and provisions hereof or the application of such term or provision to circumstances other
than those as to which it is held invalid or unenforceable.

5.19 Effective Date

This Agreement is effective from the date hereof. If this Agreement is not confirmed by resolution passed
by a majority of the votes cast by Independent Unitholders who vote in respect of confirmation of this
Agreement at a meeting of unitholders to be held not later than the date on which the annual meeting of
unitholders of the Trust held in 2000 terminates, then this Agreement and all outstanding Rights shall
terminate and be void and of no further force and effect, on and from that date which is the earlier of (a)
the date of termination of the meeting called to consider the confirmation of this Agreement under this
Section 5.19 and (b) the date of termination of the annual meeting of unitholders of the Trust held in
2000.
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5.20 Time of the Essence

Time shall be of the essence hereof.

5.21 Unitholder Review

At the first annual meeting of unitholders of the Trust following the second anniversary of the date of this
Agreement, and at every second annual meeting of unitholders of the Trust held thereafter, provided that a
Flip-in Event has not occurred prior to such time, the Board shall submit a resolution to the Independent
Unitholders for their consideration and, if thought fit approval, ratifying the continued existence of the
Rights Agreement. If a majority of the votes cast by Independent Unitholders who vote in respect of such
resolution are voted against the continued existence of the Rights Agreement, the Board shall,
immediately upon the confirmation by the chairman of such unitholders’ meeting of the result of the vote
on such resolution and without further formality, be deemed to have elected to redeem the Rights at the
Redemption Price.
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5.22 Determinations and Actions by the Board

All actions and determinations (including all omissions with respect to the foregoing) which are done or
made by the Board in good faith, shall not subject any member of the Board to any liability whatsoever to
the holders of the Rights.

Executed and Delivered

44



EXHIBIT A
FORM OF RIGHTS CERTIFICATE

Certificate No.

Rights
THE RIGHTS ARE SUBJECT TO REDEMPTION, AT THE OPTION OF THE TRUST, ON THE
TERMS SET FORTH IN THE RIGHTS AGREEMENT. IN CERTAIN CIRCUMSTANCES
(SPECIFIED IN SECTION 3.1(b) OF THE RIGHTS AGREEMENT), RIGHTS BENEFICIALLY
OWNED BY AN ACQUIRING PERSON OR TRANSFEREES OF AN ACQUIRING PERSON OR ITS
AFFILIATES OR ASSOCIATES (AS SUCH TERMS ARE DEFINED IN THE RIGHTS
AGREEMENT) OR ANY PERSON ACTING JOINTLY OR IN CONCERT WITH ANY OF THEM,
MAY BECOME VOID.

Rights Certificate

This certifies that , or registered assigns, is the registered holder of the
number of Rights set forth above, each of which entitles the registered holder thereof, subject to the terms,
provisions and conditions of the Unitholder Rights Plan Agreement dated as of January 25, 2000 as
amended from time to time (the “Rights Agreement’) among Shiningbank Energy Income Fund, an open-
ended investment trust created under the laws of Alberta (the “Trust”), Shiningbank Energy Ltd.
(“Shiningbank™), a body corporate incorporated under the laws of Alberta, and Montreal Trust Company
of Canada, a trust company incorporated under the laws of Canada, as Rights Agent (the “Rights Agent”),
which term shall include any successor rights agent under the Rights Agreement, to purchase from the
Trust at any time after the Separation Time (as such term is defined in the Rights Agreement) and prior to
the earlier of (i) the Termination Time (as such term is defined in the Rights Agreement) and (ii) the
termination of the annual meeting of the Trust in the year 2000, one fully paid trust unit of the Trust (a
“Trust Unit”) at the Exercise Price referred to below, upon presentation and surrender of this Rights
Certificate together with the Form of Election to Exercise duly executed to the Rights Agent at its
principal office in the City of Calgary or in such other cities as may be designated by the Trust from time
to time. The Exercise Price shall initially be $50.00 per Right and shall be subject to adjustment in
certain events as provided in the Rights Agreement.

In certain circumstances described in the Rights Agreement, the number of Trust Units, which each Right
entitles the registered holder thereof to purchase, shall be adjusted as provided in the Rights Agreement.

This Rights Certificate is subject to all of the terms, provisions and conditions of the Rights Agrecement,
the terms, provisions and conditions of which are hereby incorporated herein by reference and made a
part hereof and to which Rights Agreement reference is hereby made for a full description of the rights,
limitations of rights, obligations, duties and immunities thereunder of the Rights Agent, the Trust,
Shiningbank and the holders of the Rights Certificates. Copies of the Rights Agreement are on file at the
principal executive offices of the Trust and are available upon written request.

This Rights Certificate, with or without other Rights Certificates, upon surrender at any of the offices of
the Rights Agent designated for such purpose, may be exchanged for another Rights Certificate o1 Rights
Certificates of like tenor and date evidencing an aggregate number of Rights equal to the aggregate
number of Rights evidenced by the Rights Certificate or Rights Certificates surrendered. If this Rights
Certificate shall be exercised in part, the registered holder shall be entitled to receive, upon surrender
hereof, another Rights Certificate or Rights Certificates for the number of whole Rights not exercised.
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Subject to the provisions of the Rights Agreement, the Rights evidenced by this Certificate may be
redeemed by the Trust at a redemption price of $.00001 per Right, subject to adjustment in certain events,
under certain circumstances, at its option.

No fractional Trust Units will be issued upon the exercise of any Rights evidenced hereby, but in lieu
thereof a cash payment will be made, as provided in the Rights Agreement.

No holder of this Rights Certificate, as such, shall be entitled to vote or receive dividends or be deemed
for any purpose the holder of Trust Units or of any other securities which may at any time be issuable
upon the exercise hereof, nor shall anything contained in the Rights Agreement or herein be construed to
confer upon the holder hereof, as such, any of the Rights of a unitholder of the Trust or any right to vote
for the election of directors or upon any matter submitted to unitholders at any meeting thereof, or to give
or withhold consent to any corporate action, or to receive notice of meetings or other actions affecting
unitholders (except as provided in the Rights Agreement), or to receive dividends or subscription rights,
or otherwise, until the Rights evidenced by this Rights Certificate shall have been exercised as provided
in the Rights Agreement.

This Rights Certificate shall not be valid or obligatory for any purpose until the Rights Agent shall have
countersigned it.

WITNESS the facsimile signature of the proper officers of the Trust and its corporate seal.

Date:

By: Shiningbank Energy Ltd.
On behalf of the Shiningbank Energy Income Fund

Authorized Officer Authorized Officer

Countersigned:
Montreal Trust Company of Canada
By:

Authorized Signature
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FORM OF ASSIGNMENT

(To be executed by the registered holder
if such holder desires to transfer the Rights represented by this Rights Certificate.)

FOR VALUE RECEIVED hereby sells, assigns and transfers

to

(Please print name and address of transferee) the Rights represented by this Rights Certificate,
together with all right, title and interest therein, and hereby irrevocably constitutes and appoints
as attorney, to transfer the within Rights on the books of
the Trust, with full power of substitution.

Dated:

Signature Guaranteed:

Signature

(Signature must correspond to name as written upon the
face of this Rights Certificate in every particular, without
alteration or enlargement or any change whatsoever.)

Signature must be guaranteed by a Canadian chartered bank, a Canadian trust company, a
member of a recognized stock exchange or a member of the Securities Transfer Association
Medallion (STAMP) Program.

(To be completed if true)

The undersigned hereby represents, for the benefit of all holders of Rights and Trust Units, that
the Rights evidenced by this Rights Certificate are not, and, to the knowledge of the undersigned,
have never been, Beneficially Owned by an Acquiring Person or an Affiliate or Associate thereof
or by any Person acting jointly or in concert with any of the foregoing (all capitalized terms are
used as defined in the Rights Agreement).

Dated: Signature:

NOTICE

In the event the certification set forth above in the Form of Election to Exercise is not completed
upon exercise of the Right(s) evidenced hereby or in the event that the certification set forth above in the
Form of Assignment is not completed upon the assignment of the Right(s) evidenced hereby, the Trust
will deem the Beneficial Owner of the Right(s) evidenced by this Rights Certificate to be an Acquiring
Person or an Affiliate or Associate thereof (as defined in the Rights Agreement) and, in the case of an
assignment, will affix a legend to that effect on any Rights Certificates issued in exchange for this Rights
Certificate.

(To be attached to each Rights Certificate)
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FORM OF ELECTION TO EXERCISE
TO: SHININGBANK ENERGY INCOME FUND

The undersigned hereby irrevocably elects to exercise whole
Rights represented by the attached Rights Certificate to purchase the Trust Units (or other

securities or property) issuable upon the exercise of such Rights and requests that certificates for
such units (or other securities or title to such property) be issued in the name of :

(Name)

(Street)

(City and State or Province)

(Country, Postal Code or Zip Code)

SOCIAL INSURANCE, SOCIAL SECURITY OR
OTHER TAXPAYER IDENTIFICATION NUMBER
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If such number of Rights shall not be all the Rights evidenced by this Rights Certificate, a new
Rights Certificate for the balance of such Rights shall be registered in the name of and delivered

to:

(Name)

(Street)

(City and State or Province)

(Country, Postal Code or Zip Code)

SOCIAL INSURANCE, SOCIAL SECURITY OR
OTHER TAXPAYER IDENTIFICATION NUMBER
Dated:

Signature Guaranteed:

Signature

(Signature must correspond to name as written upon the
face of this Rights Certificate in every particular, without
alteration or enlargement or any change whatsoever.)

Signature must be guaranteed by a Canadian chartered bank, a Canadian trust company, a
member of a recognized stock exchange or a member of the Securities Transfer Asscciation
Medallion (STAMP) Program.

(To be completed if true)

The undersigned hereby represents, for the benefit of all holders of Rights and Trust Units, that
the Rights evidenced by this Rights Certificate are not, and, to the knowledge of the undersigned,
have never been, Beneficially Owned by an Acquiring Person or an Affiliate or Associate thereof
or by any Person acting jointly or in concert with any of the foregoing (all capitalized terms are
used as defined in the Rights Agreement).

Dated: Signature:

NOTICE

In the event the certification set forth above in the Form of Election to Exercise is not completed upon
exercise of the Right(s) evidenced hereby or in the event that the certification set forth above in the Form
of Assignment is not completed upon the assignment of the Right(s) evidenced hereby, the Trust will
deem the Beneficial Owner of the Right(s) evidenced by this Rights Certificate to be an Acquiring Person
or an Affiliate or Associate thereof (as defined in the Rights Agreement) and, in the case of an
assignment, will affix a legend to that effect on any Rights Certificates issued in exchange for this Rights
Certificate.
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ROYALTY AGREEMENT made effective the 8" day of March, 2004 ERCRIER Y =N
L’"" iy
T

Between: ce T Ay

Shiningbank Energy Ltd., a corporation incorporated under the
laws of Alberta with office in Calgary, Alberta, as Managing ‘
Partner for and on behalf of SHININGBANK ENERGY
PARTNERSHIP, a general partnership formed under the laws of
Alberta, having its office and principal place of business in
Calgary, Alberta (the "Grantor")

and

Computershare Trust Company of Canada, a trust company
incorporated under the laws of Canada with offices in Calgary,
Alberta as trustee for and on behalf of SHININGBANK
ENERGY INCOME FUND, a trust formed in accordance with
the laws of Alberta, having its office and principal place of

business in Calgary, Alberta (the "Royalty Owner")
Recital:

A. The Grantor wishes to grant the Royalty and the Royalty Owner wishes to acquire the
Royalty from the Grantor on the terms and conditions set forth herein; and

B. It is the intent of the parties hereto that the Royalty be a Canadian resource property, as
defined herein.

The parties agree as follows.

ARTICLE 1
DEFINITIONS

1.1 Definitions

For the purposes of this Agreement, including the recitals, the following words and expressions
shall have the following meanings except where the context otherwise expressly provides:

"Additional Properties” means those P&NG Rights and other related Tangibles and
Miscellaneous Interests which are acquired by the Grantor after the Amalgamation Date;

"Affiliate" means an affiliated body corporate within the meaning of Section 2(1) of the
Business Corporations Act (Alberta);

""Agreement' means this agreement;

""Amalgamation" means the amalgamation of Good Ridge Explorations Ltd., Birchill Resources
Limited and SEL into a corporation that shall also be known as Shiningbank Energy Ltd.;
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" Amalgamation Date" means the 8" day of March, 2004;

"ARC'" means credits or rebates in respect of Crown Royalties which are paid or credited by the
Crown, including those paid or credited under the Alberta Corporate Tax Act which are
commonly known as 'Alberta Royalty Credits';

"Arrangement" means the Plan of Arrangement described in a Notice of Special Meeting of
TUSK Energy Inc. Shareholders to be held October 28, 2004 and Notice of Petition to the Court
of Queen's Bench of Alberta and Information Circular with respect to a such arrangement, all
dated September 28, 2004;

""Arrangement Notes' mean the notes issued by the Grantor or any of its Partners or preceding
entities that became due to the Grantee in the course of the Arrangement, as refinanced from
time to time and as described in Schedule "A" hereto, and such other notes or indebtedness as are
described from time to time in Schedule "A" as amended by agreement between the parties;

"Asset Value" in respect of any Property or the Properties at any time means the present worth
(using the Discount Rate) of the estimated pre-tax net cash flow from such Property or the
Properties of the Proved Reserves and 50% of the Probable Reserves shown on the most recent
independent engineering report relating to such Property or the Properties;

"Birchill Notes" means notes in the amount of $170,101,624 issued by SEL to SEIF, which is
the amount of the debt incurred by SEL in the course of its acquisition of Birchill Resources
Ltd., as refinanced from time to time and as described in Schedule "A" hereto and as reduced
(directly or indirectly) by the Royalty Sale Price paid pursuant hereto, and such other notes or
indebtedness as are described from time to time in Schedule "A" as amended by agreement
between the parties;

"Business Day'' means a day other than a Saturday, Sunday or statutory holiday in Alberta;
""Canadian resource property" shall have the meaning attributable to such term in the Tax Act,
"Capital Costs' means:

(a) drilling costs, completion costs and equipping costs of wells; and

(b) all other costs relating to the Properties which are "capital costs" under GAAP,
but does not include Future Acquisition Costs;

"Commodity Price Swaps" means swap, hedging and other arrangements made by the Grantor,
from time to time, the purpose of which is to mitigate or eliminate fluctuations in prices or
commodities which affect Production Costs or revenues attributable to the Properties;

"Credit Facilities" means the Birchill Notes and credit facilities of the Grantor existing as of
the date hereof, and those made available to the Grantor, from time to time hereafter, to fund the
payment of or to refinance the payment of Production Costs, Future Acquisition Costs and other
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requirements of the Grantor, and all amendments thereto, substitutions therefor and replacements
thereof;

"Crown" means Her Majesty the Queen in Right of Canada or a Province thereof;

"Crown Royalties" means any amount paid or payable to or received or receivable by the
Crown by virtue of an obligation imposed by statute or a contractual obligation substituted for an
obligation imposed by statute as a royalty, tax (other than municipal or school tax), lease rental
or bonus or in lieu thereof that may be reasonably regarded as being in relation to P&NG Rights
or the production of Petroleum Substances;

"Currency Exchange Swaps" means swap, hedging and other arrangements made by the
Grantor, from time to time, the purpose of which is to mitigate or eliminate fluctuations in rates
of exchange of one currency for another which affect Production Costs or revenues attributable
to the Properties;

"Debt Service Charges' means, in respect of a Period:

(a) all interest, penalties, fees, indemnities, legal costs, and other costs, expenses and
disbursements pursuant to the Credit Facilities and which, in each case, accrue
during such Period;

(b) all amounts payable during such Period on account of principal pursuant to the
Credit Facilities including, without limitation, scheduled, prepaid (voluntary or
mandatory) and accelerated principal and (subject to the provisos below) any
amounts required to be paid on account of banker's acceptances and letters of
credit (other than fees described in (a) above);

(©) plus (if there is a net loss) or minus (if there is a net profit) the net profit or loss
from Interest Rate Swaps which accrues during such Period;

provided that the difference between the face amount of a banker's acceptance which is
issued and accepted pursuant to the Credit Facilities and its discount proceeds (such
difference being the "imputed interest") shall be treated as interest accruing at the times
that it is considered to accrue in accordance with GAAP and provided that when the
Grantor becomes liable under the Credit Facilities to pay the full amount of a banker's
acceptance, the face amount less the amount of imputed interest for such banker's
acceptance shall be included in the Debt Service Charges;

"Deductible Production Costs" means, in respect of a Period and without duplication:
(a) Production Costs for that Period; plus

(b) Deductible Production Costs which are carried forward to such Period pursuant to
Section 3.4;

less
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(©) Production Costs paid from advances made pursuant to the Credit Facilities; and

(d)  payments made in that Period by the Grantor in respect of Production Costs from
Other Revenues and Grantor Disposition Proceeds pursuant to subsection 2.3(c);

"Deferred Purchase Payment" means any payment in addition to the payment of the Initial
Purchase Payment required to be made by the Royalty Owner to the Grantor pursuant to
Section 2.2 as additional consideration for the Royalty;

"Discount Rate" on any particular day shall be the lesser of:

(a) twice the yield on ten year Government of Canada Bonds on the fifth Business
Day preceding the particular date, rounded down to the nearest whole percentage
point;

(b)  the yield on ten year Government of Canada Bonds on the fifth Business Day
preceding the particular date plus 8%, rounded down to the nearest whole
percentage point; or

(© 15%;

"Farmout" means an agreement whereby a Person at arm's length to the Grantor and the
Royalty Owner agrees to pay for the drilling of one or more wells on one or more of the
Properties in order to earn an interest therein with the Grantor retaining a royalty or residual
interest in such Properties;

"Future Acquisition Costs” means amounts paid by or on behalf of the Grantor in respect of
the costs of acquiring interests in Additional Properties (including purchase price, adjustments,
broker's fees and commissions, professional and consulting fees and disbursements);

"GAAP" means, as of any time, generally accepted accounting principles in Canada as at such
time;

"General and Administrative Costs" means the amount in aggregate representing all
expenditures and costs incurred in the management and administration of the Grantor and the
Royalty Owner including, without limitation:

(a) all reasonable costs and expenses relating to the Grantor and the Royalty Owner
and paid directly to Third Parties by or on behalf of the Grantor or the Royalty
Owner or their Affiliates, including, without limitation, Trustee's fees; and

(b) all reasonable costs and expenses incurred by the Grantor specifically for the
Royalty Owner including, without limitation, auditing, accounting, bookkeeping,
rent and other leasehold expenses, legal, land administration, engineering, travel,
telephone, data processing, reporting, executive and management time, salaries
and all of those costs and expenses incurred by the Grantor in discharging its
obligations to the Royalty Owner and Trustee;
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"Grantor" means Shiningbank Energy Ltd., a corporation incorporated under the laws of
Alberta with office in Calgary, Alberta, as Managing Partner for and on behalf of Shiningbank
Energy Partnership, a general partnership formed under the laws of Alberta;

"Grantor Disposition Proceeds" means:

(a) 1% of the proceeds of assignment, sale or other disposition of the Properties or
any portion thereof (excluding proceeds in respect of Tangibles and
Miscellaneous Interests directly related thereto); plus the portion of the remaining
99% of such proceeds which are utilized to repay borrowings of the Grantor; and

(b) 100% of the proceeds of assignment, sale or other disposition of Tangibles and
Miscellancous Interests directly related to the Properties assigned, sold or
otherwise disposed of;

"Grantor's Share" means the share (determined as if the Royalty had not been granted) which
is attributable to the Properties, for which the Grantor is responsible or to which the Grantor is
entitled;

"Grantor's Share of Production" means the Grantor's Share of the production of Petroleum
Substances from the Royalty Lands and lands pooled or unitized therewith;

"Initial Properties" means those P&NG Rights, Tangibles and Miscellaneous Interests in which
the Grantor has an interest (whether contingent or absolute, legal or beneficial, present or future,
vested or not) as of the Amalgamation Date including, without limitation, the P&NG Rights,
Tangibles and Miscellaneous Interests;

"Initial Purchase Payment" means the payment by the Royalty Owner of the Royalty Sale
Price;

"Interest Rate Swaps' means interest rate swap, hedging and other arrangements made by the
Grantor, from time to time, the purpose of which is to mitigate or eliminate exposure to
fluctuations in interest rates applicable to the Credit Facilities or which otherwise affect
Production Costs;

"In Specie Distribution” means a distribution pursuant to Section 3.13 of the Trust Indenture;

"Leases" means collectively the leases, reservations, permits, licenses, certificates of title or
other documents of title (including all renewals and extensions of such documents and all
documents issued in substitution therefor) by virtue of which the holder thereof is entitled to drill
for, win, own, remove and/or receive proceeds from the sale or disposition of Petroleum
Substances within, upon or under all or any part of the Royalty Lands or lands pooled or unitized
therewith;

"Lender'" means:
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(a) the lender or lenders (if there is more than one) that make the Credit Facilities
available to the Grantor or other pertinent parties and includes any agent acting on
their behalf; and

)] the Person or Persons with whom the Grantor makes Swap Arrangements;

"Miscellaneous Interests" means all interests, property, rights and assets of the Grantor,
whether contingent or absolute, legal or beneficial, present or future, vested or not (and not being
P&NG Rights, Tangibles, seismic or geophysical data), which pertain to the P&NG Rights or
Tangibles or are described below in this definition, including without limitation, the interests of
the Grantor in any of the following property, rights and assets:

(a) contracts, agreements and documents (including Title and Operating Documents)
relating to any of such P&NG Rights or Tangibles or any rights in relation
thereto;

(b) Surface Rights which are used or held for use in connection with any of such
P&NG Rights or Tangibles;

©) permits, licences, authorizations and deposits relating to any of such P&NG
Rights or Tangibles, including in respect of facilities, wells and pipelines, the
export, removal, transportation, purchase or sale of Petroleum Substances;

(d) the wells;

(e) all extensions, renewals, replacements or amendments of the foregoing items
described in subparagraphs (2) to (d) of this definition;

® books, maps, records, documents, geological, engineering, data processing, well,
plant and other reports, studies, data, information, tapes, disks, computer
programs, papers or other records which relate to or are necessary or useful in
connection with the Properties or any of the property or assets referred to in

subparagraphs (a), (b), (c), (d) or (e) of this definition;

provided always that Miscellaneous Interests and Properties shall not include the well
bores for wells located on the Royalty Lands which are dry and abandoned and for which
a certificate of reclamation or certificate of restoration has been issued;

"Month" means a period commencing at 7:00 a.m. Calgary time on the first day of a calendar
month and ending at 7:00 a.m. Calgary time on the first day of the following calendar month;

"Non-Deductible Crown Royalties" means Crown Royalties which are either:
(a)  required to be included in taxable income pursuant to the Tax Act, or

(b) not permitted to be deducted in computing taxable income pursuant to the Tax
Act;
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"Other Revenues' means, in respect of a Period, ARC payable to the Grantor during the Period
and the Grantor's Share of all revenues which accrue during such Period including, without

limitation:

(2)

(b)

(©)

(d)

(e)

(®

(g

(h)

fees and similar payments made by Third Parties for processing, transportation,
gathering, refining or treatment of their Petroleum Substances in facilities
comprised in the Tangibles;

proceeds from the sale of Petroleum Substances purchased from Third Parties and
processed in facilities comprised in the Tangibles;

take or pay and similar payments made to the Grantor in licu of a buyer taking
delivery of all or a portion of the Grantor's Share of Production;

proceeds from the sale of Tangibles and Miscellaneous Interests (except when
sold in connection with P&NG Rights);

insurance proceeds, including business interruption insurance, property damage
insurance and third party liability insurance proceeds;

the net profit or loss (which shall be a negative amount for purposes of computing
the Other Revenues if there is a net loss) from Currency Exchange Swaps which
settled during the Period;

incentives, rebates and credits in respect of Production Costs payable to the
Grantor during the Period; and

proceeds from the sale or licensing of seismic and similar data;

but not including Production Revenues and proceeds from the sale of P&NG Rights and
any related Tangibles and Miscellaneous Interests;

"P&NG Rights'" means all of the right, title, estate and interest of the Grantor (whether absolute
or contingent, legal or beneficial, present or future, vested or not, and whether or not an interest
in land) that are Canadian resource properties in or to:

(a)

(b)
(©)

(d

rights to explore for, drill for, produce, take, save or market Petroleum
Substances;

rights to a share of the production of Petroleum Substances;

rights to a share of the proceeds of, or to receive payments calculated by reference
to the quantity or value of, the production of Petroleum Substances, other than
rights under agreements for the sale of Petroleum Substances;

interests in and to and in respect of the Leases and the Royalty Lands held by the
Grantor as of the Amalgamation Date subject to the burdens, liens and
encumbrances existing as of the Amalgamation Date;
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(e) the interests in and to and in respect of the Leases and the Royalty Lands hereafter -
acquired by the Grantor subject to the burdens, liens and encumbrances existing at
the time of such acquisition;

H rights to acquire any of the rights described in subparagraphs (a) to (e) of this
definition; and

(g)  interests in any rights described in subparagraphs (a) to (f) of this definition;

including, without limitation, all interests and rights known as working interests, royalty
interests, overriding royalty interests, gross overriding royalty interests, profits interests,
net profits interests, revenue interests, net revenue interests, economic interests and other
interests; fractional or undivided interests in any of the foregoing; and all freehold,
leasehold or other interests in any lands, but not including, Tangibles or Miscellaneous
Interests;

"Party" means the Royalty Owner or the Grantor;

"Period" means Month provided that from time to time the Grantor may give notice that Period
shall mean either Month or Quarter, as the case may be, effective at the end of the Quarter within
which such notice is given in each case, and thereafter Period shall mean whatever is specified
by such notice, provided that the first Period shall be deemed to commence on the Amalgamation
Date and end at 7:00 a.m. Calgary time on the first day of April, 2004;

"Permitted Investments' means:

(a) obligations issued or guaranteed by the Government of Canada or any province of
Canada or any agency or instrumentality thereof;

(b)  term deposits, guaranteed investment certificates, certificates of deposit or
bankers' acceptances of any Canadian chartered bank or other financial institution
the short-term debt or deposits of which have been rated at least Al or the
equivalent thereof by Standard & Pools Ratings Group or at least Pl or the
equivalent thereof by Moody's Investor Service, Inc. or which have been rated at
least Al by CBRS Inc. and R1 by Dominion Bond Rating Service Limited; and

(c) commercial paper rated at least Al or the equivalent by CBRS Inc. and Rl (high)
by Dominion Bond Rating Service Limited, in each case maturing within 180
days after the date of acquisition;

"Person" shall be interpreted broadly and shall include any individual, partnership, joint
venture, body corporate, association, trust, unincorporated organization, government or other
entity;

"Petroleum Substances' means petroleum, crude bitumen, oil sands, natural gas, coal bed
methane, natural gas liquids, related hydrocarbons and any and all other substances, whether
liquid, solid or gaseous, whether hydrocarbons or not, produced or producible in association with
any of the foregoing, including hydrogen sulphide and sulphur;
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"Probable Reserves" means those reserves which analysis of drilling, geological, geophysical
and engineering data does not demonstrate to be proved, but where such analysis suggests the
likelihood of their existence and future recovery under current technology and existing or
anticipated economic conditions provided that the Probable Reserves to be obtained by the
application of enhanced recovery processes shall be the increased recovery over and above that
included in Proved Reserves which can be realistically estimated for the pool on the basis of
enhanced recovery processes which can be reasonably expected to be instituted in the future;

"Proceeds Account" means the interest bearing account maintained by the Grantor in trust for
the Royalty Owner with a Canadian chartered bank pursuant to Section 8.3;

"Production Costs' means, in respect of a Period and without duplication, the following items:

(a) Debt Service Charges;

(b) the Grantor's Share of all costs and expenses (including, both operating costs and
Capital Costs) in respect of the Properties and the Title and Operating Documents
incurred in such Period, including, without limitation:

(@

(i)

(iii)

(iv)

V)

(vi)
(vii)

(viii)

(ix)

CAL_LAW\ 1062943\8

costs and expenses for lifting or otherwise recovering Grantor's Share of
Production (including, without limitation, costs and expenses of
waterflood, miscible flood and other secondary and tertiary recovery
operations);

costs and expenses for extracting and processing Grantor's Share of
Production (including without limitation costs and expenses of
compressing, dehydrating, separating and treating Grantor's Share of
Production);

royalty and other amounts pursuant to the Leases (other than Non-
Deductible Crown Royalties);

costs and expenses for storing or stockpiling Grantor's Share of
Production;

costs and expenses for gathering and transporting (whether by pipelines,
trucking or otherwise) Grantor's Share of Production to the point of sale;

costs and expenses for marketing Grantor's Share of Production;

drilling costs, completion costs, equipping costs and operating costs of
wells;

costs and expenses of obtaining, processing, reprocessing and interpreting
of seismic, geological and other data;

insurance premiums and similar items and property, municipal,
production, ad valorem, mineral and other taxes and assessments in
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respect of the Royalty Lands or operations thereon, or the Tangibles or the
operation thereof or the production therefrom;

(x) costs and expenses for the purpose of generating Other Revenues;

(xi)  costs, expenses and other amounts in respect of Third Party claims arising
in connection with the Properties including, without limitation, claims and
adjustments arising out of the acquisition, sale or disposition of the
Properties;

(xii) costs and expenses for clean-up and remediation of spills of hazardous
substances and other environmental damage and costs and expenses paid
for land reclamation obligations associated with the Properties;

(xiii) costs and expenses including payments to a sinking fund for abandonment
of wells and decommissioning of Tangibles;

(xiv) costs and expenses of acquiring Tangibles and Miscellaneous Interests
(except when acquired together with P&NG Rights) and costs and
expenses of maintaining, operating, repairing and replacing Tangibles and
Miscellaneous Interests (including, without limitation, Surface Rights);

(xv) all other costs and expenses (including both operating costs and Capital
Costs) pursuant to the Leases or the Title and Operating Documents; and

(xvi) cash calls paid for any of the costs and expenses enumerated items (i)
through (xv) above, inclusive;

() current income taxes, capital taxes and other direct taxes of the Grantor which
accrue during such Period,;

(d)  the Grantor's general overhead and administrative expenses for the Period,
including without limitation the General and Administrative Costs payable in such
Period; and

(e) all costs and expenses not listed above related to the Properties which are incurred
during such Period;

provided, however, that items (b) through (e) shall not include: (v) Future Acquisition
Costs, (w) depreciation or deferred taxes, (x) losses from Commodity Price Swaps or (y)
Non-Deductible Crown Royalties;

"Production Revenues" means, in respect of a Period, the gross proceeds from the sale of the
Grantor's Share of Production which accrue during such Period (including, without limitation,
the share reserved to the Crown) after taking into account the credit or set off for take or pay
payments plus income from royalties, net profits interests and other similar interests plus the net
profit or loss (which shall be a negative amount for this purpose) from Commodity Price Swaps;
provided, however, that Production Revenues shall not include, (x) proceeds of the Grantor in
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connection with the disposition of any P&NG Rights and any related Tangibles and
Miscellaneous Interests, (y) ARC receivable by the Grantor during such Period or (z) any
revenues that are not derived from Canadian resource properties;

"Properties" means the Initial Properties and the Additional Properties;

"Proved Reserves" means reserves estimated as recoverable with a high degree of certainty
under current technology and existing economic conditions in the case of constant price and cost
analyses and anticipated economic conditions in the case of escalated price and cost analyses,
from that portion of a reservoir which can be reasonably evaluated as economically productive
on the basis of analysis of drilling, geological, geophysical and engineering data, including the
reserves to be obtained by enhanced recovery processes demonstrated to be economic and
technically successful in the subject reservoir;

"Quarter" means the period from 7:00 a.m. Calgary time on the Amalgamation Date to 7:00
a.m. on July 1, 2004 and any period of three consecutive Months thereafter which commences on
the first day of January, April, July or October;

"Regulations” means all statutes, laws, rules, orders and regulations in effect from time to time
and made by governments or governmental boards or agencies having jurisdiction over the
Properties;

"Royalty" means the entitlement granted herein to receive the Royalty Income subject to the
terms described herein;

"Royalty Disposition Proceeds” means 99% of the proceeds of assignment, sale or other
disposition of the Properties, or any portion thereof (excluding proceeds in respect of Tangibles
and Miscellaneous Interests directly related thereto) to the extent not utilized to repay
borrowings of the Grantor;

"Royalty Income'" means in respect of a Period the amount by which 99% of Production
Revenue for such Period exceeds 99% of the Deductible Production Costs for such Period;

""Royalty Lands" means the lands to which the P&NG Rights relate;

""Royalty Owner'' means Shiningbank Energy Income Fund, a trust formed in accordance with
the laws of Alberta pursuant to the Trust Indenture or such other owner or owners of the Royalty;

"Royalty Owner Working Capital Amount" means at any particular time the amount of the
Royalty Owner's available working capital at such time including, without limitation, the
proceeds received by the Royalty Owner from the issue of any Trust Units after the
Amalgamation Date and the funds deposited in the Proceeds Account;

"Royalty Sale Price" means the sum of $10.00 paid by the Royalty Owner to the Grantor
pursuant hereto, the receipt and sufficiency of which is hereby acknowledged, and such
additional amount as is paid by the Royalty Owner to the Grantor by transfer of a portion of the
Birchill Notes, provided that if any revenue authority with jurisdiction to do so assesses or
reassesses the Grantor or the Royalty Owner to income tax or any other tax, levy or charge or
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proposes such an assessment or reassessment on the basis that the fair market value of the
Royalty does not equal the Royalty Sale Price, the following adjustments shall be made:

(a)

(®)

(c)

for the purposes of the adjustments hereunder the fair market value of the Royalty
shall be deemed to be:

(1) subject to paragraph (a)(iii), the fair market value of the Royalty as
determined by the authority making or proposing such an assessment or
reassessment, provided that the parties agree that such determination is
accurate,

(i1) subject to paragraph (a)(iii), where the parties do not agree that the
authority's determination is accurate, the fair market value of the Royalty
as determined by a qualified person whom the Grantor shall appoint to
make that determination forthwith following the making or proposing of
such an assessment or reassessment; or

(iii)  where any such assessment or reassessment is the subject of an appeal to a
court of competent jurisdiction, the fair market value of the Royalty as
determined by that court;

if the fair market value determined pursuant to paragraph (a) is less than the
Royalty Sale Price as previously determined, the Grantor shall pay to the Royalty
Owner the amount of such deficiency plus interest at the rate prescribed pursuant
to the Income Tax Act (Canada) from time to time with respect to employee
benefits and other amounts and calculated from the Amaigamation Date to the
time of payment, such payment to be made by certified cheque, bank draft or
solicitor's trust cheque as soon as reasonably possible but in any event no later
than 90 days following such determination of fair market value; and

if the fair market value determined pursuant to paragraph (a) is more than the
Royalty Purchase Price as previously determined, the Royalty Owner shall pay to
the Grantor the amount of such deficiency plus interest at the rate prescribed
pursuant to the Income Tax Act (Canada) from time to time with respect to
employee benefits and calculated from the Amalgamation Date to the time of
payment, such payment to be made by certified cheque, bank draft or solicitors
trust cheque as soon as reasonably possible but in any event no later than 90 days
following such determination of fair market value;

"Royalty Payment" means in respect of a Period, the payment for such Period to which the
Royalty Owner is entitled pursuant to subsection 2.1(b);

"SEL" means Shiningbank Energy Ltd., a corporation incorporated under the Business
Corporations Act (Alberta);

"Special Resolution” means a resolution passed by a majority of not less than 66%% of the
votes cast, either in person or by proxy, at a meeting of Unitholders (at which a quorum is
present consisting of at least two Persons representing at least 10% of the votes attaching to all
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units held by Unitholders entitled to vote on such resolution), called for the purpose of approving
such resolution, or approved in writing by not less than 66%% of the Unitholders entitled to vote
on such resolution;

"Subsidiary" and "Subsidiaries" have the meaning set out in subsection 2.2(b);

"Surface Rights" means rights (whether fee simple or pursuant to orders, licences, leases,

easements, rights-of-way or otherwise) of the Grantor to enter upon, use or occupy the surface
of:

(a) any Royalty Lands or lands pooled or unitized therewith;
(b) the lands on which any of the Tangibles is located; and
(c) any lands required to gain access to the foregoing lands;

"Swap Arrangements" means Commodity Price Swaps, Currency Exchange Swaps and
Interest Rate Swaps;

"Tangibles" means:

(a) the interests of the Grantor in and to all tangible property, apparatus, plant,
equipment, machinery and facilities used or held for use for purposes of
producing Petroleum Substances or for storing, measuring, compressing, treating,
processing or collecting Petroleum Substances.

(b) all right, title, estate and interest, whether absolute or contingent, legal or
beneficial, present or future, vested or not, held by the Grantor in connection with
the P&NG Rights in and to any tangible property, apparatus, plant, equipment,
machinery and facilities, fixed or non-fixed, real or personal, used or capable of
use in exploiting any Petroleum Substances (whether the P&NG Rights to which
such Petroleum Substances are attributable are owned by the Grantor or by others
or both), including:

(1) systems, plants and facilities used or useful in producing, gathering,
compressing, dehydrating, scrubbing, processing, treating, separating,
collecting, refrigerating, refining, measuring, storing, transporting or
shipping Petroleum Substances;

(ii))  tangible property and assets used or intended for use in exploring for,
producing, storing, injecting or removing Petroleum Substances; and

(iii)  all extensions, additions and accretions to any item described in
subparagraphs (i) or (ii) of this definition;

excluding the lands on which any system, plant or facility, property or asset
described in subparagraphs (a) or (b) of this definition is located, but including all
producing, shut-in, injection, disposal and other wells, casing, tubing, wellheads,
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buildings, plants, erections, production equipment, improvements, flowlines,
pipelines, pipeline connections, extraction facilities, meters, generators, motors,
compressors, separators, gas treating and processing equipment, dehydrators,
scrubbers, pumps, refineries, pump jacks, tanks, boilers, communications
equipment, enhanced recovery systems and other machinery, apparatus and
equipment;

"Tax Act" means the /ncome Tax Act (Canada), R.S.C. 1952 c.148 and the regulations
thereunder, as amended;

"Third Party"” means any Person other than the Grantor and the Royalty Owner;

"Title and Operating Documents" means, in respect of the Properties, all of the agreements,
contracts, instruments and other documents (including Leases, reservations, permits, licences of
all sorts, exploration agreements, operating agreements, unit agreements, pooling agreements,
assignments, trust declarations and other agreements to recognize the interests of the Grantor,
participation agreements, farm-in and farm-out agreements, royalty agreements, purchase
agreements and transfers; gas, oil, condensate and other production sale contracts; gathering,
common stream, transportation and processing agreements; and agreements for the construction,
ownership and/or operation of Tangibles) by virtue of which such P&NG Rights or Tangibles
were acquired or constructed or are held by the Grantor or pursuant to which the construction,
ownership, operation, exploration, exploitation, development, production, transportation or
marketing of such P&NG Rights, Tangibles or Petroleum Substances are subject or which grant
rights which are or may be used by the Grantor in connection therewith; and the rights and
benefits (except for P&NG Rights) granted under or created by such documents;

"Trust Indenture" means a trust indenture dated May 16, 1996, as amended among the Trustee,
Shiningbank Energy Management Inc., Richardson Greenshields of Canada Limited and
Montreal Trust Company of Canada;

"Trust Unit" means a fractional undivided interest in the Royalty Fund, which represents an
undivided beneficial interest in any distributions from the Royalty Fund and in the net assets of
the Royalty Fund in the event of termination or winding-up of the Royalty Fund;

"Trustee" means Computershare Trust Company of Canada in its capacity as trustee for and on
behalf of the Royalty Fund; and

"Unitholders" means holders, from time to time, of Trust Units.

1.2 Number and Gender

Words importing the singular number include the plural and vice versa and words importing
gender include the masculine, feminine and neuter genders.

1.3 References

The table of contents and headings herein are for convenience of reference only and shall not
affect the construction or interpretation of this Agreement. A reference herein to an Article,
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Section or subsection without further reference shall be a reference to an Article, Section or
subsection of this Agreement.

1.4 Choice of Law

This Agreement shall be governed by the laws of the Province of Alberta and the laws of Canada
applicable therein and shall be construed, interpreted and performed in accordance therewith.

1.5 Attornment

Any legal action or proceedings with respect to this Agreement shall be brought in the courts of
the Province of Alberta and the courts of appeal therefrom. Each Party hereby attorns to and
accepts for itself and in respect of its assets generally, irrevocably and unconditionally, the
exclusive jurisdiction of such courts.

1.6 Monetary Sums
All references herein to dollar amounts or sums of money are to lawful funds of Canada.
1.7 In Specie Distribution

In the event of an in specie distribution of an interest in the Royalty pursuant to the rights of
retraction in the Trust Indenture, as amended, there shall be no further acquisition of properties
under this Agreement.

1.8 Canadian resource property

It is the intent of the parties hereto that the Royalty be a Canadian resource property as that term
is defined herein. Accordingly, if the operation of any provision herein would render the
Royalty something other than a Canadian resource property, such provision shall be modified to
the minimum extent possible to cause the Royalty to be a Canadian resource property while
changing the economics of the relationship hereby created as little as is reasonably possible.

ARTICLE 2
ROYALTY

2.1 Royalty Grant

(a) Subject to the terms and conditions hereof, the Grantor hereby grants, transfers,
assigns and conveys the Royalty to the Royalty Owner.

(b)  Subject to the terms and conditions hereof, the Royalty Owner, as the owner of
the Royalty, shall be entitled to a payment from the Grantor with respect to each
Period equal to the Royalty Income and the Grantor hereby covenants and agrees
to make such payment.
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(c)

@)

2.2
(2)

(b)

Upon written invoice from time to time with respect to a specified period, the
Royalty Owner shall reimburse to the Grantor the portion specified by the Gantor
of all Non-Deductible Crown Royalties payable by the Grantor in respect of the
Properties or the production of Petroleum Substances therefrom with respect to
such period, which shall not be more than ninety-nine percent (99%) of all such
Non-Deductible Crown Royalties payable by the Grantor in respect of such
period. The Grantor shall be entitled to set off such reimbursable amounts against
any payment required hereunder.

Subject to Section 6.6, the Grantor may acquire Additional Properties. Upon the
acquisition of Additional Properties by the Grantor, such Additional Properties
shall also automatically be subject to the Royalty, subject, to the extent
applicable, to the security described in subsection 9.2(b).

Payment for Royalty Grant

The Royalty Owner shall pay to the Grantor as consideration for the granting and
transferring of the Royalty:

(1) the Initial Purchase Payment; and
(il)  the Deferred Purchase Payments.

If the Grantor acquires any Additional Properties, whether by way of a purchase
of Additional Properties or the acquisition of the shares of a corporation or an
interest in a partnership, trust or other entity (such corporations, partnerships,
trusts and other entities being hereinafter referred to as a "Subsidiary”" or
"Subsidiaries") that owns Additional Properties and the subsequent winding-up,
liquidation or similar combination (a "Combination") of such Subsidiary with the
Grantor, the Royalty Owner shall make a Deferred Purchase Payment to the
Grantor in an amount equal to 99% of the amount of the purchase price (including
adjustments) for such Additional Properties that is allocated to Canadian resource
property, to the extent that such purchase price is not financed with indebtedness
incurred or assumed by the Grantor, provided that in the event of an acquisition of
Additional Properties by way of acquisition of a Subsidiary and its subsequent
Combination with the Grantor for purposes of determining the amount of the
Deferred Purchase Payment respecting such Additional Property:

® the purchase price for such Additional Property shall be deemed to include
the purchase price paid for the securities of such Subsidiary and the
indebtedness of such Subsidiary that is not discharged prior to such
acquisition; and

(ii)  the purchase price for such Additional Property shall be allocated among
the assets of such Subsidiary in accordance with their fair market value
and the indebtedness of such Subsidiary and any indebtedness incurred to
acquire such Subsidiary or assumed as a result of such acquisition
(including for greater certainty all indebtedness of such Subsidiary that is
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(©

(d)

23

not discharged prior to such acquisition) shall be deemed to be
indebtedness incurred or assumed by the Grantor in that regard, and such
indebtedness shall be first allocated to any Canadian resource property that
is included in such Additional Property up to the fair market value of such
Canadian resource property, and the remaining indebtedness, if any, shall
be allocated among the other components of such Additional Property pro
rata in accordance with their respective fair market values.

If the Grantor designates any Capital Costs on or before the date on which the
same are incurred, the Royalty Owner shall make a Deferred Purchase Payment to
the Grantor in an amount equal to 99% of the amount of such designated Capital
Costs incurred by the Grantor to the extent that such Capital Costs are not
financed with indebtedness incurred or assumed by the Grantor.

If at any time while the Royalty Owner has an obligation to make a Deferred
Purchase Payment to the Grantor, the Grantor is indebted to the Royalty Owner,
the Deferred Purchase Payment shall be set off against such indebtedness.

Use of Other Revenues and Grantor Disposition Proceeds

The Grantor shall not pay or be required to pay to the Royalty Owner the Other Revenues or the
Grantor Disposition Proceeds. The Royalty Owner shall have no interest of any kind whatsoever
in the Other Revenues or the Grantor Disposition Proceeds, provided however, after the
Amalgamation Date and as soon as reasonably practicable after receipt thereof by the Grantor,
the Grantor shall use the Other Revenues and such portion of the Grantor Disposition Proceeds
not utilized to repay borrowings of the Grantor for any of the following purposes:

(2)
(b)
(©)
(d)

purchase of Permitted Investments;
payment of Future Acquisition Costs;
general corporate purposes of the Grantor; and

payment of or provision for Production Costs (which would otherwise be
deducted in determining Deductible Production Costs);

provided that the Grantor shall not use the Other Revenues for the payment of or provision for
Production Costs unless the grantor is of the opinion that such payment shall not have any
adverse tax consequences for the Grantor or the Royalty Owner.

24

No Right to Take In Kind

The Royalty Owner shall not have the right:

()

to take in kind all or any portion of the Grantor's Share of Production for a Period;
or
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(b)

2.5

to separately sell or market all or any portion of the Grantor's Share of Production
for a Period.

No Share of Production

The Royalty Owner shall not own or have any rights to any of the Grantor's Share of Production.

2.6

Petroleum Substances Used in Operations

The Royalty shall not apply to Petroleum Substances lost or consumed in operations.

2.7

The Royalty:
(a)
(b)
()
(d)

3.1
(a)

(b)

(c)

(d

Not an Interest in Land

is not a covenant attached to or running with the Royalty Lands;
is not an interest in land;

1s not an interest in real property; and

does not attach to or form part of the Leases.

ARTICLE 3
PAYMENTS AND STATEMENTS

Payments

As soon as is reasonably practicable following the end of a Period the Grantor
shall pay the Royalty Payment for such Period to the Royalty Owner.

To the extent that Royalty Disposition Proceeds create a credit balance in the
Grantor's cumulative Canadian oil and gas property expense account (as defined
under the Tax Act) as at the end of any calendar year, the Grantor shall remit to
the Royalty Owner on or before the tenth day of the following January, an amount
from the Proceeds Account equal to such credit balance so as to permit the
distribution thereof.

Royalty Disposition Proceeds shall be paid by the Grantor to the Royalty Owner
in accordance with any required approval obtained from the Unitholders or the
board of directors of the Grantor to an assignment, sale, exchange or other
disposition of Properties and in any event, any Royalty Disposition Proceeds
which are not used to purchase Additional Properties within one year from the
date the same are deposited in the Proceeds Account shall be forthwith paid by the
Grantor to the Royalty Owner.

On the fifteenth day of the Month following the end of a Period or the next
following Business Day, if such day is not a Business Day, interest income
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3.2

33

(e)

()

(a)

accrued on the Proceeds Account during such Period shall be paid by the Grantor
to the Royalty Owner.

Where there are amounts owing by a Royalty Owner as a result of the provisions
of this Agreement, any payments pursuant to this Article may be offset against
such amounts owing

The Grantor shall satisfy, perform and discharge all obligations and
responsibilities under the Income Tax Act (Canada) or any similar provincial
legislation, including withholding any taxes required to be withheld from such
payments.

Statements

Each Royalty Payment in respect of a Quarter, and each Royalty Payment in
respect of the last Month in a Quarter, shall be accompanied by a statement
setting forth:

(1) the amount of the Royalty Payment for such Quarter;

(i1) all calculations used in determining the Royalty Payment for such Quarter;

(ii1)  the Grantor's Share of Production (itemized by product) sold during such
Quarter;

(iv)  the Non-Deductible Crown Royalties for such Quarter;
(v) the Production Revenues for such Quarter;
(vi)  the Other Revenues for such Quarter;

(vii) an itemized list of the Production Costs and Deductible Production Costs
for such Quarter;

(viii) the Properties surrendered, farmed out, disposed of or acquired in such
Quarter;

(ix)  wells drilled, cased, or abandoned in such Quarter; and
(x) the amount of the Proceeds Account and Royalty Owner Working Capital
Account as at the end of such Quarter and the amount of the Deferred

Purchase Payments, if any, made in such Quarter.

Overpayments

If the payment made by the Grantor on account of the Royalty for a Period is greater than the
actual amount of the Royalty Payment for such Period, the Grantor shall be entitled to recover
the overpayment by set off against Royalty Payments for subsequent Periods.
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34 Carry Forward of Deductible Production Costs

If the Deductible Production Costs for a Period exceed the Production Revenues for such Period,
there shall be no Royalty Payment for such Period and the amount of the excess shall be carried
forward and treated as Deductible Production Costs for the following Period and, if required,
subsequent Periods.

3.5 Collection of Production Revenues and Other Revenues

The Grantor shall use all commercially reasonable efforts to obtain the payment of Production
Revenues and Other Revenues but shall not have any liability to the Royalty Owner to the extent
that it fails to collect them, notwithstanding such commercially reasonable efforts to do so.

ARTICLE 4
INSURANCE

4.1 Maintenance of Insurance

The Grantor shall obtain and maintain such property damage and third party liability insurance
with respect to the Properties with reputable insurers in such amounts and covering such risks as
it reasonably determines to be appropriate, having regard to the insurance maintained by the
operators pursuant to the Title and Operating Documents.

ARTICLE 5
BOOKS AND RECORDS

5.1 Examination

During the term hereof and for a period of two years thereafter the Grantor shall maintain in
Calgary, Alberta complete books and records pertaining to (i) the Royalty, (ii) Petroleum
Substances attributable to the Royalty Lands consumed or sold by the Grantor, and (iii) all
calculations made by the Grantor to determine the amount of payments on account of the
Royalty. The Royalty Owner shall have the right at all reasonable times during business hours to
inspect such books and records to the extent reasonably necessary in order to verify the amount
paid or payable hereunder in respect of the Royalty.

5.2 Audit

Upon notice to the Grantor, the Royalty Owner shall have the right to audit the books and
records referred to in Section 5.1 within the 24 month period next following the end of the
calendar year to which they relate. The costs of any such audit shall be borne by the Royalty
Owner. Any claims of discrepancies disclosed by such audit shall be made in writing to the
Grantor within two months of the completion of such audit. The Grantor shall respond to any
claims within six months of receipt of such claims. If the Grantor is unable to respond to the
claims during the six month period, one extension of three months may be allowed if requested
in writing by the Grantor within such six month period. If the Grantor disagrees with such claim
or discrepancy and such matter cannot be settled, then the matter shall be referred to arbitration
in accordance with the Arbitration Act (Alberta) as amended. In the event that the Grantor
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agrees with the claim or discrepancy or the claim or discrepancy is upheld, in whole or in part,
by arbitration, the Grantor shall forthwith rectify same and where such rectification includes
payment of sums, promptly credit such sums to the Production Revenues, Other Revenues,
Grantor Disposition Proceeds or otherwise as appropriate.

53 Confidentiality

The Royalty Owner shall keep all information provided to it pursuant to this Agreement
(including, without limitation, information made available to it in connection with the audits,
examinations and inspections conducted by it pursuant to the foregoing provisions of this
Article 5) strictly confidential, except for information which it is required by law to be disclosed
or becomes publicly available through no act or omission of the Royalty Owner or which
becomes available to the Royalty Owner from a source other than the Grantor, without
confidentiality restrictions.

ARTICLE 6
OPERATIONS

6.1 Generally

Having regard to and subject to the provisions of the Title and Operating Documents and the
Grantor's rights and obligations thereunder, the Grantor shall use all reasonable efforts so that:

(a) operations on the Royalty Lands and lands pooled or unitized therewith for the
recovery of Petroleum Substances and the operation of the Tangibles are
conducted in compliance with all applicable Regulations and in accordance with
good oil and gas field practices;

(b) all duties and obligations of the Grantor under the Title and Operating Documents
are diligently and promptly performed and all amounts payable as rental, royalty
or similar charges from time to time due in respect of the Properties or in
accordance with applicable laws are paid and all other actions as may be
reasonably necessary to maintain the Title and Operating Documents in good
standing at all times are taken, subject to the terms and provisions hereof; and

(c) all Surface Rights needed for the proper operation of the Royalty Lands and the
Tangibles are acquired and maintained in good standing and all taxes, rates,
assessments and other amounts from time to time payable in respect of the
Royalty Lands and the Tangibles are promptly paid.

(d) the Grantor:

(1) shall pay or cause to be paid, as they become due and payable, Grantor's
Share of all accounts of contractors and claims for wages or salaries for
services rendered or performed for the Grantor and for materials supplied
to the Grantor;
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(1) shall keep the Royalty Lands free from liens and encumbrances resulting
from the failure to pay the costs described in subsection 6.1(d)(1) above,
unless and to the extent there is a bona fide dispute with respect thereto;
and

(ii1)  shall not permit any dues or claims from any Workers' Compensation
Board or similar authority established under any Regulations to become in
arrears with respect to Grantor's employees.

6.2 No Obligation to Develop

Nothing contained in this Agreement shall impose any obligation, expressed or implied, on the
Grantor to explore or develop the Royalty Lands.

6.3 Compliance with and Maintenance of Title and Operating Documents

The Grantor covenants to and in favour of the Royalty Owner that, except as provided in
Article 7, the Grantor shall:

(a) observe and perform all of its duties and obligations under the Title and Operating
Documents; and

(b) not, without the written consent of the Royalty Owners owning greater than 50%
of the Royalty which shall not be unreasonably withheld or delayed:

(1) agree to the amendment or termination of the Title and Operating
Documents; or

(i)  waive or consent to a departure from the performance by any Person of
any of such Person's obligations under the Title and Operating
Documents;

which could have a material, adverse effect on the Royalty or the rights and
obligations of the Royalty Owner in respect of the Royalty, provided, however,
that acts or omissions by Persons (including operators) without specific
authorization from the joint operators and acts or omissions approved by
affirmative vote of the joint operators which the Grantor did not vote in favour of
and which are binding upon the Grantor shall not constitute a breach of the
foregoing provisions.

6.4 Rights and Obligations

Except as otherwise expressly provided for herein, as between the Royalty Owner and the
Grantor, the Grantor shall have exclusive control and authority over the production, operation,
exploration and development of the Royalty Lands and lands pooled or unitized therewith and
the recovery of Petroleum Substances from the Royalty Lands and lands pooled or unitized
therewith and the marketing thereof. As between the Royalty Owner and the Grantor, the
Grantor shall make all decisions regarding drilling, completion, equipping, suspension and
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abandonment of wells and the rates of production of Petroleum Substances therefrom. Subject to
the other provisions of this Article 6, the Grantor shall undertake and implement such activities
in such manner as it determines in its sole discretion. The Royalty Owner acknowledges that, as
owner of the Royalty, it shall not be entitled to any interest in the Properties or the Title and
Operating Documents and the Grantor acknowledges that the Royalty Owner, as owner of the
Royalty, shall not be liable for any of the duties or obligations arising thereunder. The Grantor
shall arrange for the sale of the Grantor's Share of Production on such terms and conditions as
the Grantor (acting in good faith and in accordance with good oil and gas field practices) may
determine.

6.5 Capital Costs

The Grantor may approve future Capital Costs or other obligations intended to maintain or
improve production from the Properties. The Grantor shall not approve Capital Costs on
exploration drilling without the approval of the Unitholders except where such drilling relates to
the extension of an existing pool. The Grantor may finance Capital Costs by borrowings or by
using Grantor's working capital. The Royalty Owner acknowledges that the non-approval of
Capital Costs on exploration or development drilling may result in a production penalty or
forfeiture under the Title and Operating Documents.

6.6 Borrowing

(a) Subject to subsection 6.6(b) below, the Grantor may borrow funds pursuant to the
Credit Facilities or from the Royalty Owner or otherwise to finance the purchase
of Additional Properties, for Capital Costs or for other financial obligations or
encumbrances in respect of the Properties or for working capital purposes and
grant security on the Properties in priority to the Royalty in accordance with
subsection 9.2(b);

(b) The Grantor may not borrow funds under subsection 6.6(a) in circumstances
where immediately after such proposed borrowing:

1) the Grantor's total indebtedness pursuant to the Credit Facilities to parties
other than the Trustee and the Grantor's Affiliates shall exceed 40% of the
aggregate Asset Value of all Initial Properties and the Additional
Properties owned by the Grantor and its Affiliates, including for greater
certainty any Additional Properties to be acquired with the proceeds of
such proposed borrowing; or

(i)  the projected Debt Service Charges for the next twelve Months exceed
30% of the projected Royalty Payments for the next twelve Months.

Notwithstanding the above limitations on borrowing:

©) Any present or future liability or obligation of the Grantor to a financial
institution in respect of a borrowing that contravenes subsection 6.6(b) including
any obligation to repay a financial institution upon demand, shall not be affected,
reduced or impaired by such contravention; and
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(d)  the priority, validity, effectiveness and enforceability of any mortgage, charge,
security interest or other security whatsoever now or hereafter granted by the
Grantor to any financial institution and which contravenes subsection 6.6(b) shall
not be affected, prejudiced or impaired by such contravention.

6.7 Costs of Tangibles and Miscellaneous Interests

The cost of Tangibles and Miscellaneous Interests comprising any Additional Properties shall be
paid by the Grantor utilizing its own working capital or funds borrowed by it for such purposes
pursuant to the Credit Facilities or from the Royalty Owner or otherwise.

6.8 Site Restoration Costs

If an In Specie Distribution has occurred, the Grantor may, at its discretion, create a sinking fund
to fund site restoration and other liabilities as a result of abandonment of wells.

ARTICLE 7
FARMOUTS, POOLING, UNITIZATION, SURRENDER, ABANDONMENT

7.1 Farmouts

The Grantor shall have full right, power and authority to Farmout (and subsequently assign any
interest earned pursuant thereto) any of the P&NG Rights comprised in the Properties, from time
to time, provided that, in the Grantor's sole discretion, the Farmout is prudent and the terms
thereof are in accordance with normal oil and gas industry practices.

7.2 Pooling and Unitization

The Grantor shall have full right, power and authority to pool or unitize any of the P&NG Rights
comprised in the Properties, from time to time, with other P&NG rights provided that, in the
Grantor's sole discretion, the pooling or unitization is prudent and the terms thereof are in
accordance with normal oil and gas industry practices.

7.3 Surrender

Subject to the Title and Operating Documents, the Grantor may surrender a Lease, in whole or in
part, without the consent of the Royalty Owner, provided that in the reasonable opinion of the
Grantor there are no wells located on the lands covered by the Lease capable of producing
Petroleum Substances in paying quantities from the zones which the Grantor proposes to
surrender. From and after any such surrender, this Agreement and the Royalty shall cease to

apply to the Royalty Lands surrendered except as to matters which occurred prior to the
surrender.

7.4 Abandonment and Reclamation

The Grantor shall have the full right, power and authority without the prior consent of the
Royalty Owner to authorize the abandonment of any well comprised in the Properties and/or the
reclamation of any of the Properties if:
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(a) the Grantor determines in its sole discretion that such well is not capable of
producing Petroleum Substances in paying quantities;

(b)  the operator of such well or portion of the Properties recommends or elects to do
$O; or

(c) it is in accordance with the Regulations or any order of any government or

agency.
ARTICLE 8
DISPOSITION OF PROPERTIES
8.1 Dispositions of Properties

Except as provided in Article 7 and Sections 8.2, 8.3 and 9.2, the Grantor shall not assign, sell or
otherwise dispose of any interest in the Properties without first notifying the Royalty Owner of
its intention to do so and obtaining the written consent of the Royalty Owner, which consent
shall not be unreasonably withheld or delayed.

8.2 Release of Royalty

The Grantor may assign, sell, exchange or otherwise dispose of all or any portion of the
Properties and the Royalty Owner irrevocably authorizes the Grantor to release the Royalty
therefrom provided that the Grantor determines such assignment, sale, exchange or other
disposition would be in the best interests of the Unitholders and that such assignment, sale,
exchange or other disposition is in accordance with the following:

(a) an assignment, sale, exchange or other disposition of Properties for proceeds in
excess of 5% of Asset Value must be approved by the board of directors of the
Grantor. In connection with such approval, the board of directors of the Grantor
shall determine whether the Royalty Disposition Proceeds in respect of such
assignment sale or other disposition should be distributed to Unitholders or used
to purchase Additional Properties; and

(b) all assignments, sales, exchanges or other dispositions of Properties in a calendar
year having an aggregate Asset Value of greater than 25% of the Asset Value of
all Properties must be approved by a Special Resolution of the Unitholders. In
connection with such approval, the Unitholders shall determine whether the net
proceeds of such assignments, sales, exchanges or other dispositions should be
distributed to the Unitholders or used to purchase Additional Properties.

83 Proceeds of Disposition of Properties

(a) As consideration for the release of the Royalty as provided for in Section 8.2, the
Grantor shall, forthwith upon the receipt of any Royalty Disposition Proceeds,
deposit the same in an interest bearing account maintained by the Grantor in trust
for the Royalty Fund with a Canadian chartered bank (the "Proceeds Account”).
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(b)  Subject to the entitlement of the Royalty Owner to receive payments in respect of
interest earned on the Proceeds Account and to receive distributions of principal
from the Proceeds Account as specifically provided for in this Agreement, the
Grantor shall hold and apply the funds deposited in the Proceeds Account towards
the Royalty Owner's obligation to make Deferred Purchase Payments in
accordance with the provisions in this Agreement.

ARTICLE 9
ASSIGNMENT

9.1 Consent to Assign; Assumption

Except as provided in Section 9.2, a Party shall not assign, sell, mortgage, pledge, charge or
grant a security interest in, or otherwise dispose of any interest under this Agreement without
first notifying the other Party of its intention to do so and obtaining the written consent of the
other Party, which consent shall not be unreasonably withheld or delayed. Subject to
subsections 9.2, no such assignment, sale or transfer shall be effective as against the other Party
until the assignee, purchaser or transferee shall have executed and delivered a written
undertaking, in favour of, and enforceable by, such other Party, agreeing to be bound by and to
perform all of the terms and provisions of this Agreement applicable to the interest assigned, sold
or disposed of.

9.2 Grant of Security
Notwithstanding Sections 8.1, 8.2 and 9.1:
(a) the Grantor, without the consent of the Royalty Owner, may:
(i) dispose of tools, machinery and equipment which is surplus to its needs;
(ii) dispose of Petroleum Substances in the ordinary course of business;

(b) the Grantor, without the consent of the Royalty Owner, may mortgage, pledge,
charge or grant a security interest in the Initial Properties, the Additional
Properties or this Agreement:

(1) to secure its obligations and liabilities under the Credit Facilities or under
Swap Arrangements, which security may be granted in priority to the
Royalty;

(i)  to secure its obligations and liabilities under any guarantee, contract of
indemnity or contract of suretyship (in each case, a "Guarantee") in
respect of any liabilities and obligations of any Person, including, without
limitation, any Guarantee given in respect of any liabilities and obligations
of SEL or any of its Affiliates or any other Person in which the Royalty
Owner directly or indirectly holds an interest (whether shares, partnership
interests, beneficial interests or otherwise), which security may be granted
in priority to the Royalty; and
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(iii)  to finance the purchase of Additional Properties or for Capital Costs or
other financial obligations or encumbrances in respect of the Initial
Properties and/or the Additional Properties or for working capital
purposes, and such security on the Initial Properties and/or the Additional
Properties may be granted in priority to the Royalty to secure the
borrowing of such funds,

and may enter into subordination and postponement agreements with the holders
of the obligations owed under the Credit Facilities, the Swap Arrangements, any
Guarantees and other financing or guarantee transactions confirming the
subordination of the Royalty thereto.

(c) the Lender, any holder or beneficiary of any Guarantee or a receiver or receiver-
manager of the Grantor or of all or part of its assets or any other enforcement
agent may sell, mortgage or otherwise dispose of the Properties or the Grantor's
interest under this Agreement, in whole or in part, without the approval of the
Royalty Owner in the course of realization on security for the Grantor's liabilities
and obligations under or in connection with the Credit Facilities or Swap
Arrangements or any Guarantee and the Royalty may be released, terminated or
foreclosed out in accordance with subsection 9.2(d); and

(d) if all or a portion of the Properties is to be sold, transferred or conveyed (a
"Disposition") by a receiver or receiver-manager of the Grantor or any of its
assets or a secured creditor of the Grantor in the course of enforcement of any
security having priority over the Royalty (a "Disposing Person") and the Royalty
in relation thereto is released, terminated or foreclosed, the portion of the
proceeds of the Disposition, net of the cost of the Disposition, to which the
Royalty Owner shall be entitled on account of the release, termination or
foreclosure of the Royalty and the Royalty Owner's interest in this Agreement or
portion thereof pursuant to the Disposition shall be the greater of the following:

()  $10.00; and

(11) 99% of the amount remaining (the "Remainder") after the proceeds of the
Disposition, net of the cost of Disposition, have been applied to (A)
Production Costs for the Month in which the Disposition occurs
(determined as if such Month ended on the date that the Disposition
occurred) and (B) the amount of all outstanding liabilities and obligations
in respect of the Credit Facilities and Swap Arrangements and all
outstanding Guarantees, to the extent (if any) not included in such
Production Costs; provided that payment of the Remainder pro rata to the
Royalty Owners shall only be made when payments by the Person to
whom the Disposition is made are received and after the applications
described in items (A) and (B) above have been made.

The balance of the net proceeds of a Disposition not allocated to the interest in the
Royalty and the Royalty Owner's interest in this Agreement released pursuant
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10.1

thereto shall be allocated to the interest in the Properties disposed of pursuant
thereto.

ARTICLE 10
TERM OF AGREEMENT

Term

Subject to Article 9, this Agreement shall continue in full force and effect until there are no
Properties to which the Royalty applies. Thereafter, this Agreement shall nevertheless remain in
full force and effect:

(a)
(b)

11.1

in respect of any accrued and unfulfilled obligations of either Party; and
as to Articles 5 and 9.

ARTICLE 11
NOTICES AND PAYMENTS

Addresses for Service and Payments

All payments hereunder in respect of the Royalty shall be paid or tendered to the Royalty Owner
at its address for notices hereunder or such other place or depository as the Royalty Owner may
request by written notice to the Grantor, provided that no change in the place at which payments
on account of the Royalty are to be paid or tendered shall be effective until 30 days after written
notice thereof has been provided to the Grantor by the Royalty Owner.

11.2

Giving and Deemed Receipt of Notices

Whether or not so stipulated herein, all notices, communications and statements (herein called
"notices") required or permitted hereunder shall be in writing. Notices may be served:

(a)

(b)

by delivering them to the Party on which they are to be served at the Party's
address for notices hereunder, provided such delivery shall be during normal
business hours of the addressee. Such notices shall be deemed received by the
addressee when actually delivered as aforesaid; or

by telecopier (or by any other like method by which a written and recorded
message may be sent) directed to the Party on which they are to be served at the
Party's telecopy number for notices hereunder. Such notices shall be deemed
received by the addressee thereof (i) when actually received by it if sent within
the normal working hours of a Business Day of the addressee, or (ii) otherwise at
the commencement of the next ensuing Business Day following transmission
thereof, whichever is earlier.
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11.3 Addresses

The address for service for telecopy numbers and notices hereunder of each of the Parties shall
be as follows:

Grantor:
Shiningbank Energy Partnership
1310, 111 — 5™ Avenue S.W.
Calgary, AB T2P 3Y6
Attention: Chief Financial Officer
Telecopy: (403) 268-7499
Royalty Owner:

Shiningbank Energy Ltd.

as Administrator for

Shiningbank Energy Income Fund
1310, 111 — 5™ Avenue S.W.
Calgary, AB T2P 3Y6

Attention: Chief Financial Officer
Telecopy: (403) 231-3099

with a copy to:

Computershare Trust Company of Canada
710, 530 - 8" Avenue S.W.
Calgary, Alberta T2P 3S8

Attention: Manager, Corporate Trust Department
Telecopy: (403) 267-6598

11.4 Change of Address

A Party may change its said address or telecopy number for notices hereunder by notice to the
other Party.

11.5 In Specie Distribution

Should an In Specie Distribution occur, the new Royalty Owner shall provide an address for
payment and service to the Grantor.
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ARTICLE 12
MISCELLANEOUS

121 Enurement

Subject to Section 9.1, this Agreement shall enure to the benefit of and be binding upon the
Parties and their respective successors and permitted assigns.

12.2 Waivers in Writing

No waiver by any Party of any breach of any of the covenants, conditions and provisions herein
contained shall be effective or be binding on any other Party unless such waiver is expressed in
writing and any waiver so expressed shall not limit or affect its rights with respect to any other or
future breach.

12.3 Time of Essence
Time is of the essence of this Agreement.
124 No Partnership

Nothing herein shall be construed as creating a partnership between the Parties and neither Party
shall have any partnership rights or liabilities hereunder or in connection herewith.

12.5 Severability

This Agreement are severable. In the event of the unenforceability or invalidity of any one or
more of the terms, covenants or conditions of this Agreement under applicable law, such
unenforceability or invalidity shall not render any of other terms, covenants or conditions hereof
unenforceable or invalid and the Parties agree that this Agreement shall be construed as if such
unenforceable or invalid term, covenant or condition was never contained herein.

12.6 Amendments

No amendment, alteration or variation of this Agreement or any of its terms or conditions shall
be binding upon the Parties unless made in writing and signed by the duly authorized
representatives of each of the Parties.
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ARTICLE 13
CONCERNING THE TRUSTEE

13.1 Acknowledgement

The Parties hereto acknowledge that Computershare Trust Company of Canada is entering into
this Agreement solely in its capacity as trustee of the Royalty Fund and the obligations of the
Royalty Owner hereunder shall not be personally binding upon Computershare Trust Company
of Canada or any of the Unitholders and that any recourse against the Royalty Fund,
Computershare Trust Company of Canada as trustee of the Royalty Fund, or any Unitholder in
any manner in respect of any indebtedness, obligation or liability of the Royalty Owner arising
hereunder or arising in connection herewith or from the matters to which this Agreement relates,
if any, including without limitation, claims based on negligence, tortious behaviour or otherwise,
shall be limited to, and satisfied only out of, the Royalty Fund as defined in the Trust Indenture
dated as of May 16, 1996 as it may be amended by supplemental from time to time.

Executed and delivered.

SHININGBANK ENERGY LTD. as SHININGBANK ENERGY LTD., as
Administrator, for and on behalf of General Partner for and on behalf of
COMPUTERSHARE TRUST COMPANY SHININGBANK LIMITED

OF CANADA, Trustee of SHININGBANK PARTNERSHIP

ENERGY INCOME FUND

Per:  'signed' Per: "signed"
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Royalty Agreement
Between
SHININGBANK ENERGY LTD.
and
Computershare Trust Company of Canada
Effective
as of March §, 2004
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Shiningbank Energy Income Fund
Ninth Supplemental Trust Indenture
BEOTue,
March 7, 2003 q VLD
RERCLES ST

Recitals ..
G ppe T S
A. The holders of the trust units (the "Unitholders") of the Shiningbank Energyklrh“ '
(the "Trust") resolved at a Special Meeting of the Unitholders held on October 8, 2002 (the
"Meeting"), that the Trust indirectly acquire (the "Internalization Transaction") 100% of the
shares of Shiningbank Energy Management Inc. (the "Manager"), that the Manager and
Shiningbank Energy Ltd. be amalgamated to form Shiningbank Energy Ltd. and that
Shiningbank Energy Ltd., as amalgamated, be the Administrator of the Trust, and that the
Shiningbank Energy Income Fund Trust Indenture dated May 16, 1996, as amended (the

“Trust Indenture™) be further amended.

B. All actions have now been taken to give effect to the Internalization Transaction and the
amalgamation.
C. The parties hereto wish to amend and restate the Trust Indenture to reflect the above.

The parties agree as follows:

Article 1
Amendment and Restatement

The Trust Indenture shall be amended and restated, such restatement to be in the form attached as
Schedule "A" to this Agreement and such restated Trust Indenture shall be the Trust Indenture for
the purposes of the Trust.

Article 2
Continuation

The Trust Indenture, as amended and restated as aforesaid, shall continue in full force and effect in
accordance with the terms thereof.

Article 3
Miscellaneous

3.1 Enurement

This Agreement shall enure to the benefit of and be binding upon the parties hereto and their
respective successors and permitted assigns.

me Fund: & -



3.2  Waivers in Writing

No waiver by any party hereto of any breach of any of the covenants, conditions and provisions herein
contained shall be effective or be binding on any other party hereto unless such waiver is expressed
in writing and any waiver so expressed shall not limit or affect its rights with respect to any other or
future breach.

3.3  Amendments
No amendment, alteration or variation of this Agreement or any of its terms or conditions shall be
binding upon the parties hereto unless made in writing and signed by the duly authorized

representatives of each of the parties hereto.

Executed and delivered.
SHININGBANK ENERGY LTD.

Per:_ "signed"

Per:  "signed"

COMPUTERSHARE TRUST COMPANY
OF CANADA

Per: “signed"

Per:___ "signed"
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SCHEDULE "A"

Amended and Restated as of March 7, 2003

Shiningbank Energy Income Fund
Trust Indenture
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Amended and Restated as of October 9, 2002.

Shiningbank Energy Income Fund
Trust Indenture

May 16, 1996

Between

RICHARDSON GREENSHIELDS OF CANADA LIMITED, a
body corporate incorporated under the laws of Canada with offices
in Calgary, Alberta (“Settlor”)

and

COMPUTERSHARE TRUST COMPANY OF CANADA, a
trust company incorporated under the laws of Canada, with offices
in Calgary, Alberta (“Trustee”)

and
SHININGBANK ENERGY LTD., a body corporate

amalgamated under the laws of Alberta, with offices in Calgary,
Alberta (“Administrator™)

Recitals

A

The Settlor has paid to the Trustee one hundred dollars in lawful money of Canada as the
Settled Amount for the purpose of settling the Trust constituted hereby;

The Trustee has agreed to hold the Settled Amount and all amounts and other property
subsequently received under this Indenture in trust in accordance with the provisions
hereinafter set forth;

It is intended that the beneficiaries of the Trust shall be the holders of Trust Units, each of
which Trust Units shall rank equally in all respects with every other Trust Unit;

It is intended that the Trust will offer the Trust Units for sale from time to time and that
the net proceeds of the first Offering thereof shall be used to acquire the Royalty, as
hereinafter defined;

It is intended that the Trust shall qualify as a “unit trust” and as a “mutual fund trust”
under the provisions of paragraph 108(2) and subsection 132(6) of the /ncome Tax Act
(Canada); and
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F. The parties hereto desire to set out the terms and conditions which shall govern the
settlement and the administration of the Trust.

The parties agree as follows.

Article 1
Interpretation

1.1 Definitions

In this Indenture including the recitals and in the Trust Certificates and schedules hereto, unless
the context otherwise requires, the following words and expressions shall have the following
meanings:

"Administrative Services Agreement" means the agreement to be entered into between the
Administrator and the Trustee as trustee for and on behalf of the Trust dated October 9, 2002 as
the same may be amended from time to time and includes any subsequent agreement between the
Trustee and an administrator whereby an administrator is engaged to provide certain services in
connection with the management and administration of the Trust or the Royalty, as set forth
herein and therein;

"Administrator" means Shiningbank Energy Ltd., in its capacity as administrator of the Trust in
accordance with the provisions of the Administrative Services Agreement and shall be deemed to
include any replacements or successor administrators under such agreement or as the Trustee may
appoint hereunder, or its successor or successors in the office of the administrator of the Trust
hereunder;

“Affiliate” or “Associate”, when used to indicate a relationship with a person or company, means
the same as is set forth in the Securities Act (Alberta);

“ARC” means credits or rebates in respect of Crown Royalties which are paid or credited by the
Crown, including those paid or credited under the Alberta Corporate Tax Act which are
commonly known as ‘Alberta Royalty Credits’;

“Auditors” means KPMG LLP, Chartered Accountants, or such other firm of chartered
accountants as may be appointed as auditor or auditors of the Trust and of the Managed Entities,
by or in accordance with Article 15;

“Business Day” means a day other than a Saturday, Sunday or statutory holiday in the Provinces
of Alberta, Ontario and Quebec, as may be applicable;

“Certified Resolution” means a copy of a resolution or bylaw certified by the Secretary or an
Assistant Secretary or other authorized officer of the Administrator under its corporate seal to
have been duly passed by the directors or shareholders thereof, as the case may be, and to be in
full force and effect on the effective date of such certification;
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“Closing Market Price” means an amount equal to the closing price of the Trust Units if there
was a trade on the date; an amount equal to the average of the highest and lowest prices of Trust
Units if there was trading and the exchange or other market provides only the highest and lowest
prices of Trust Units traded on a particular day; and the average of the last bid and last ask prices
of the Trust Units if there was no trading on the date.

“Corporation” means Shiningbank Energy Ltd.;
“Counsel” means a law firm acceptable to the Trustee acting reasonably;
“Crown” means Her Majesty the Queen in Right of Canada or a Province thereof;

“Crown Royalties” means any amount paid or payable to or received or receivable by the Crown
by virtue of an obligation imposed by statute or a contractual obligation substituted for an
obligation imposed by statute as a royalty, tax (other than municipal or school tax), lease rental or
bonus or in lieu thereof that may be reasonably regarded as being in relation to petroleum and
natural gas rights or the production of Petroleum Substances;

“Date of Closing” means the date on which an issue of Trust Units to the public pursuant to an
Offering is completed;

“Deferred Purchase Payments” means any additional payments made by the Trust to the
Managed Entities pursuant to the Royalty Agreement as further consideration for the Royalty;

"Distribution Date" means the fifteenth day of the month following a month within which a
Distribution Record Date occurs, or such other date as may be specified by written notice given to
the Trustee by the Administrator in respect of any Distribution Record Date specified by the
Administrator therein;

“Distribution Record Date” means such dates as the Trustee may from time to time, upon the
written direction given to the Trustee by the Administrator, designate as a ‘Distribution Record
Date’ except that December 31 shall be a Distribution Record Date;

“Issue Expenses” means all expenses of an Offering payable by the Trust including legal fees,
acco